
COMPLIANCE PARTNERS UP
WWW.COMPLlANCEPARTNERS.NET

1629 K STREET. NW • SUITE 300
WASHINGTON. DC 20006

TEL: (202) 905-0487 • FAX: (202) 449-1388

WRITERS EMAIL ADDRESS:
AGLENN@COMPLlANCEPARTNERS.NET

December 3, 2010

Via Electronic Filing and US Mail

Ms. Colleen M. Dale
Secretary
Missouri Public Service Commission
200 Madison Street, Suite 100
P. O. Box 360
Jefferson City, MO 65102·0360

DEC 9 2010
.J

Missouri Public
SOI'Vlce Commission

Re: Application for Certificate of Service Authority to Provide Basic Local
Exchange Telecommunications Service and for Competitive Classification of
Net Talkcom, Inc.

Dear Ms. Dale:

On behalf of Net Talkcom, Inc. ("Net Tall,"), enclosed please find an original of Net
Talles Application for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity, along with
supporting documentation and exhibits. Net Talk is requesting authority to operate as a
competitive local exchange carrier in Missouri.

Copies are being served electronically on the General Counsel's office and the Office
of the Public Counsel. Should you have any questions regarding the application, please do
not hesitate to contact the undersigned.

Sincerely,

Audrey Glenn
Counsel to Net Talh.com, Inc.

Encl.



BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

)
In the Matter of the Application of )

)
NET TALK.COM, INC. )

)
For Certificate of Service Authority to )
Provide Basic Local Telecommunications )
Services in the State of Missouri and for )
Competitive Classification )

------------ )

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF
PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY

COMES NOW Net Talk.com, Inc. ("Net Talk" or "Applicant"), by its undersigned

counsel, and hereby applies, pursuant to Sections 392.361, 392.410, 392.420, 392.430 and

392.450, RSMo, the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, and 4 CSR 240-2.060 and 4 CSR

240-3.510, for authority to provide basic local telecommunications service in portions of the

State of Missouri and to classify said service and company as competitive. Applicant

respectfully requests that the Missouri Public Service Commission ("Commission") issue an

order that:

a. grants the Applicant a cel1ificate of service authority to provide basic local
exchange telecommunications services, pursuant to Chapter 392 RSMo;

b. grants competitive status to Applicant and Applicant's requested services; and

c. waives certain Commission rules and statutory provisions pursuant to Sections
392.420 and 392.361RSMo, and 4 CSR 240-32.010 (2), consistent with the
Commission's past treatment of other certificated providers of competitive
telecommunications services. I

In sUPP011 of this Application, Net Talk states as follows:

1 All statutory citations herein are to RSMo 2000 unless otherwise indicated.



I. IDENTIFICATION OF APPLICANT

Applicant's exact legal name is NetTalk.com, Inc. NetTalk is a Florida corporation with

its principal place ofbusiness located at 1100 NW 163rd Drive, Suite B-4, Miami, FL 33169.

All inquiries, cOl1'espondence, communications, pleadings, notices, orders, and decisions

relating to this Application should be directed to:

Audrey Glenn
COMPUANCEPARTNERSLLP
1629 K Street, NW
Suite 300
Washington, DC 20006
Te1ephone:(202) 905-0487
Facsimile: (202) 449-1388
Email: aglenn@compliancepal.tners.net

Questions concerning the ongoing operations of Applicant, including consumer

complaints and inquiries, should be directed to:

Kenneth Hosfeld
Executive Vice President
NetTalk.com, Inc.
1100 NW 163rd Drive
Suite B-4
Miami, FL 33169
Telephone:(305) 621-1200
Facsimile: (305) 621-1201
Email: kenneth.hosfeld@nettalk.com

The contact information for Net Talk's registered agent in the State of Missouri is as

follows:

National Registered Agents, Inc.
300 B East High Street
Jefferson City, MO 65101
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II. AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS

NetTalk was organized under the laws of the State of Florida on May I, 2006, and is

currently in good standing under the laws of that state. Copies of Applicant's Florida articles of

incorporation and certificate of good standing are attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Applicant is qualified to conduct business within the State of Missouri as a foreign

corporation. A copy of Applicant's qualification to transact business in Missouri is attached

hereto as Exhibit B.

III. CLEC AUTHORIZATIONS & REGULATORY HISTORY

Net Talk is well-qualified to provide telecommunications services in Missouri. NetTalk

currently holds Certificates of Public Convenience and Necessity to provide local exchange

services in the following 28 states:

Alabama
Arkansas
California
Connecticut
District ofColumbia
Florida
Georgia
Idaho
Indiana
Kansas
Kentucky
Massachusetts
Montana
Nebraska

New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
North Carolina
NOlth Dakota
Ohio
Oregon
South Dakota
Texas
Utah
Vermont
Washington
West Virginia
Wisconsin

On December 8, 2008, the Iowa Utilities Board denied without prejudice Net Talk's

request for a certificate of public convenience and necessity filed by Net Talk on November 4,

2008 (Docket No. TCO-08-B).
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On July 13, 2009, the Wyoming Public Service Commission denied without prejudice

Net Talk's application for a certificate of public convenience and necessity filed by Net Talk on

January 15, 2009. (Docket No. 70212-1-TA-09).

Because both applications were rejected or denied without prejudice, Net Talk has filed

revised and updated applications in each of these states. Net Talk has corrected the deficiencies

noted in its initial application filings, and believes that the revised and updated applications each

demonstrate that it possesses the technical, managerial, and financial competence to provide

telecommunications services in these and all other states for which it seeks such authority.

IV. PROPOSED SERVICES AND SERVICE AREAS

Net Talk seeks to be classified as a competitive teleconnnunications company. Net Talk

requests authority to offer basic local teleconnnunications services on a facilities-based and

resold basis to customers tln·oughout the exchanges currently served by: Southwestern Bell

Telephone, L.P. d/b/a AT&T Missouri (AT&T Missouri), Embarq Missouri, Inc. (Embarq),

CenturyTel of Missouri, LLC (CenturyTel), and Spectra Communications Group, LLC d/b/a

CenturyTel (Spectra) ("proposed service areas"). The specific exchanges within which

Applicant proposes to offer service are listed in the local exchange tariffs ofthe respective

incumbent local exchange providers, and will be listed in Applicant's initial proposed tariff

Applicant may seek authorization to provide service in exchanges served by other incumbent

LECS in a subsequent proceeding.

Net Talk will satisfy the minimum standards established by the Commission. Applicant's

proposed service areas will follow the respective exchange boundaries of the stated incumbent

LECs and shall be no smaller than an exchange as required by Section 392.455(3) RSMo. Net

Talk will offer basic local telecommunications service as a separate and distinct service in
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accordance with applicable law. Applicant will give consideration to equitable access for all

customers in Missouri, without regard to their income or where they might reside, to affordable

telecommunications services in Applicant's proposed service areas in accordance with applicable

law.

Net Talk proposes to offer a full range of telecommunications services in the proposed

service areas tln'ough the use of its own facilities, resold facilities, UNEs, and tln'ough a

combination of these provisioning methods. Applicant seeks to provide its services at rates that

are competitive with the services of other providers.

Net Talk will provide comprehensive customer service to its customers. Customers may

repOlt complaints to the Applicant's customer service department. Customer service will be

available to answer customer service inquiries in connection with service, repair, or billing. Net

Talk's representatives are available twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week.

Customers may contact Net Talk in writing at the company's principal place ofbusiness at 1100

NW 163'd Drive, Suite B-4, North Miami Beach, FL 33169, or by calling Applicant's toll-fi'ee

customer service number, 1-800-983-8289.

Applicant will promptly file tariffs bearing no less than 45 day effective date with the

Commission in a manner consistent with the Commission's practice in similar cases. In any

circumstance, Applicant will file its proposed basic local exchange telecommunications service

tariff no later than 30 days after Commission approval of Applicant's interconnection andlor

resale agreement.

Net Talk is willing to comply with all applicable Commission rules and regulations and is

willing to meet all relevant service standards including, but not limited to, qualify of service,

billing, and tariff filing and maintenance in a manner consistent with the Commission's
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requirements for incumbent local exchange carrieres) with whom Net Talk seeks authority to

compete.

Net Talk does not have any pending action or final unsatisfied judgment or decisions

against it ii-om any state or federal agency or comi that involve customer service or rates, which

action, judgment or decision has occurred within 3 years of the date of application.

Applicant hereby affIrms that the Company does not have any overdue annual reports or

fees owed to the Missouri Public Service Commission.

V. TECHNICAL, MANAGERIAL AND FINANCIAL QUALIFICATIONS

As demonstrated below, NetTalk possesses suffIcient technical, financial and managerial

resources and abilities to provide basic local telecommunications service. Applicant's

management team includes individuals with substantial technical and managerial expeliise in

operating telecommunications networks. Specific details of the business and technical

experience of Company's offIcers and management personnel are attached as Exhibit C.

Net Talk's financial statements are attached hereto as Exhibit D. As detailed in Exhibit

D, the Company currently possesses the financial ability to provide local telecommunications

services on a competitive basis.
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VI. REQUEST FOR WAIVERS

Net Talk seeks classification of itself and its new basic local telecommunications service

offerings as competitive, with accompanying reduced regulation pursuant to Sections 392.362

RSMo and 4 CSR 240-3.510(1 )(A). Applicant believes that its proposed services will be subject

to sufficient competition to justify a lesser degree ofregulation and that granting this request will

allow greater price and service options for telephone users.

Consistent with the Commission's treatment of other certificated competitive local

exchange telecommunications companies, Applicant request that, at minimum, the following

statutes and regulations for Applicant and its proposed basis local exchange service offering be

waived at this time:

Statutes
392.210.2
392.240.1
392.270
392.280
392.290
392.300.2
392.310
392.320
392.330
302.340

Regulations
4 CSR240-1O.020
4 CSR 240-30.040
4 CSR 240-3.550(5)(C)
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Description
Uniform System of Accounts
Just & Reasonable Rates
Ascertain Property Values
Depreciation Accounts
Issuance of Securities
Acquisition of Stock
Issuance of Stock and Debt
Stock dividend payment
Issuance of securities, debts & notes
Reorganizations

Description
Depreciation fund income
Uniform system ofaccounts
File exchange boundary maps with
Commission



VII. PUBLIC INTEREST STATEMENT

Net Talk submits that the public interest will be served by Commission approval of this

Application because Net Talk's proposed services will create and enhance competition and

expand customer service options consistent with the legislative goals set forth in the federal

Telecommunications Act of 1996 and Chapter 392 RSMo. Prompt approval of this Application

also will exp,and the availability of innovative, high quality, and reliable telecommunications

services within the State ofMissouri.

Net Talk submits that, notwithstanding the provision of Section 392.500 RSMo, as a

condition of certification and competitive classification, Net Talk agrees that, unless otherwise

ordered by the Commission, Net Talk's originating and terminating switched exchange access

rates will be no greater than the lowest Commission-approved conesponding access rates in

effect for each ILEC within whose service area(s) Net Talk seeks to provide service. In addition,

pursuant to the Cornnlission's Report and Order in Case No. TO-99-596, Net Talk agrees that if

the ILEC in whose service area Net Talk is operating decreases its originating and/or

terminations access service rates, Net Talk shall file an appropriate tariff amendment to reduce

its originating and/or terminating access rates within thirty (30) days of the ILEC's reduction of

its originating and/or terminating access rates in order to maintain the cap on switched exchange

access rates.

8



VIII. CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, for the reasons set forth above, NetTalk respectfully requests that

the public interest, convenience, and necessity would be furthered by a grant of this

Application for to operate as a competitive local exchange carrier with authority to provide a

full range of local exchange services on a facilities-based and resale basis tlu'oughout the

Proposed Service Areas. Net Talk's provision of these services will promote the public

interest by providing high quality services at competitive rates, and by creating economic

incentives for the development and improvement of other competitive telecommunications

services and networks.

Respectfully submitted,

NET TALK.COM, INC.

Audrey Glenn
COMPLIANCE PARTNERS LLP

1629 K Street, NW
Suite 300
Washington, DC 20006
Tel: (202) 905-0487
Fax: (202) 449-1388
Email: aglenn@compliancepartners.net

Counsel to Net Talk.com, Inc.

Dated: December 3, 2010
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing document was

sent via e-mail on this 3rd day of December 2010, to General Counsel's Office at

gencounsel@psc.mo.gov and Office ofPublic Counsel at opcservice@ded.mo.gov.

Digitally 51gned by Audrey Glenn
DN:m=AudreyGlenn,o=Compfiarw~

Audrey Glenn ',"",,,,lLP, "0_
·email=aglenn@cornplian(epartners.net.

,,,us
Date: 2010.12.0411:12:17 -05'00'

Audrey Glenn
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OATil

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE

I<"nn"lh Ilo'leld. being dlily ';\VOJ'll. '!al"s lhal he Iiles lhis Applkalion as Fxeculive Vke

I'residenl or NET TALK.COM. INC.: lhal in slieh eapacily. he' is ,!lIalilit'd and aUlhoriz"d 10 Ii'" and

""dl)' su"h Appliealion: lhat he h,,, earcltdly examined all stat,'mellk; alld matlers conlained in lhe

Applieatioll: lhal all such slatements made and malleI'S Sci Itwlh the'rein art' lrue and e<JlTeel 1<) lhe best or

his kllO\Vkdg". inl,mnalion and I",lid: I\nianl Itll·ther slates that the Apl)liealion is made in good lililh.

with the intention of presenting evidence i" ::;upporl thereof ill t'\'C'fY partkular.

(SEAL) NOlary Pnhlke
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NET TALK. COM, INC.

EXHIBIT A

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING



MAt \.2006 10:26AM BUSH ROSS ? A.

ARTICLES OF n-ICOro-ORATION

OF

DISCOVER SCREENS, mc.

. NO. 5313 P. 2
FILm

06HAY-! MilG:03

t~£G!i£Jt\I1Y Of Si{\TE
iiUAHASSEE, FLORIDA

The undersigned, acting as inoorporator of the captioned corporation under the Florida

Business COJ;porlltion Act, adopts the foUcwing .A.ttieles ofIncorporation:

ARTICLE I

CORl'ORATE NAME AND PRlNClPAL OFFICE

The name ofthis corporation is DISCOVER SCREENS, INC. (the "Corportltion'? and its

principal office and mailing address la 50 Dogwood Grove, Asheville, North Carolina 28805.

ARTICLE U

COMMENCEMENt QF CORPORATE EXlSTENCE

The Corporation shall commence its exist<:oce upon the filing of these Articles of

Incorporation with the Florida Secretary ofState.

ARTlCLEIU

GENERAL NATURE OFBUSINJj)SS

The Corporation may transact any lawful bus.ine.ss for which corporations may be

incorporated underFlorida law.

Stend. K. Holland, Pan.l.1;'Il
Buoh R<>$O, P.A.
220 S.Fr~Slree~ '1'~mp., :F.L 33602
813·224-9255.
Fac.w.w.AurlitNo.: 11060001204633



MAV. I. 2006 (0: 2MM BUSH ROSS P A NO.5313 P. 3

Facsimile Audit No.: H06000120463 3

ARTICLE IV

CAPITAL STOCK

The aggregate nWllber ofshares of stock authorized to be issued by this oOlporation shall

be 7,500 shares of common stock, each with a par value of $.001. Each share of issu.ed and

oUtlltanding oommon stock sllall entitle Ille holder thereof to fully participate in all shareholder

meetings, to cast one vote on each matter with respect to which shareholders have the right to

vow, and to share ratably in all dividlltlds md other distributions deolared and paid with respect

to the common stock, as well as in fu" net ass..ts of th" Corporation upon liquidation or

dissolution.

ARTICLE V

lNr11AL REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT

The street address of the initial registered office of the Corporation shall be 220 S.

Franklin Street, Tampa, Florida 33602, and the initial registered agent of the Corporation at such

address is JohnN. Giordano.

M.IICLEYI

lNCQRPQMIOR

The name and address of1he Coxporation's incorpora1cr is:

Address

Brenda1(. Rolland

Facsimile Audit No.: H06000120463 3

220 S. Franklin. Street
T.aT.Ilpa, Florida 33602

Page 20f4
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MAV. I. 2006 iO: 26AM BUSII ROSS PA MD. ,313 P. 4.

Facsimile Audit No.: H06000120463 3

ARTlCLEvrr
BY-LAWS

The power to adopt, alter, amend or repeal by-laws ofthis Corporation shall be vested in

its shareholders and sepatately in its Boatd of Directors, as proscribed by the by-laws of the

Corporation.

ARTICWVrrI

INDEMNIFICATION

If fue criteria set forth in §607.0850(1) or (2), Florlaa Statrttes, 8S then in effoct, havo

been met, then the Corporation shall indemnify any director, officer, employee or agent thereof,

whether eurrent or fonner, together with roa or ner peJ:$ollal representatives. devisees or heirs, in

fue manner and to fue extent contemplated by §607.0850, as thell. in effect, or by any SUCcessor

law thereto.

IN WITNESS \VBERlWF, the undersigned hM exeouted these Articles of Incorporation

this 1" day ofMay, 2006.

Facsimile Audit No.: H060001204633 Page 3 of4



Fae-'iimile Audit No.: H06000120463 3

MAl'. L2006 IO:27AM BUSH «0$$ P A-··

CERTIFICATE n.ESIQNATfflG

REGISTERED AGENX

nO.5Ji3 P. 5
FILED

. 06tiAY -I AM 10: 03

T~\W{\~t\fiY OF STATE
'''UJinASSEE, FLORIDA

Pursuant to lhe provisions of §§48.091 and 607.0501, Florida Statutes, D:rsCOVBR

SCREENS, JNC~ desiring to ors<mize uudel: the laws of the State of Florida, hereby designates

John. N. Giordano, en individual resident of fhe State of Florida, as its Registered Agent for the

purpose ofacc~gservice of process within such slate and designates 220 S. Franklin Street,

Tampa, Florida 33602, the business office oBts RegiStered Agent, liS its RegisteJ:ed Office.

DISCOVER SCREENS, INC.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

r hel:eby accept my appointment as Registered Agent of fue above named corporation,

acknowledge that I am familiar with and accept the obligations imposed by Florida law upon that

position, and agree to act as such in ac<:ordance with the prodsiotlS of §§48.091 IDld 607.0505,

Florida Statutes.

381673.1

Facsimile Audit No.: H06000U0463 3 Page40f4



Facsimile Audit 1'<6.: H080002119743

AR'l'ICLES OF AMENDMENT TO 'I'IJE
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF

DISCOVER SCREENS, INC.

.,.~E? 1O. 2008 1: 15PM BUSH ROSS P A

*****.** •••• ************** •• **

DISCOVER SCREENS, INC., a Florida corporation (the "Corporation''), hereby certlftes
as follows:

1. The Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation (Florida Division. of
CorporatioDll Document Number P06000061S39) are bereby wended by deletlns the present
form of Article I in its entirety and by substituting, in lieu thereof, the following:

"ARTICLEI

CQRPOR4TENAME AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The name Of this corp01atWn is NET TALK.CQM, INC. (the "Co1'[101'aJion'? and its

principal o1flce and malUng address is 11{)O NW163 Drille, Miami, :FW1'iJ/a 33169."
•••••••••••••••••••••• t •••• ~ •••••

2. The foregoing amendment ahaIl become effective 8S of the close of business on
the date these .AJ'ticles ofAmendment are approved by the Florida Department ofState and all
filing fees then due have been paid, all in accordancc with the corporation la.ws of the State of
Florida. .

3. The !\ll1endlllent l'eCited in Section 1. above has been duly adopted in accordance
with the provisioDll of §607.0821•.0704, .1003 and .1006, Florida Statutes. the shareholders and
directors of the Corporation having executed, a written statement. dated effective December 30,
2007, manifesting their intention that the amendment be adopted.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the COlpOration has caused these Articles of Amendment to
be prepared under the signature afits ChiefExecutive Officer this 10'h day ofSeptember, 2008.

DISCOVER SCREENS, INC.,
a Florida corporetion

BY;~
. ~ver, ChiCiExecutive Officcr

l'AesbnU. Andlt NIl•• 11080002119743



State ofFlorida
Department ofState

I certifY from the records of this office that NET TALKCOM, INC. is a
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Florida, filed on
May 1,2006.

The document number of this corporation is P06000061539.

I further certifY that said corporation has paid all fees due this office
through December 31, 2010, that its most recent annual report was filed
on August 6, 2010, and its status is active.

I further celtifY that said corporation has not filed Articles of
Dissolution.

Given lIluler my hand alUI the Great Seal of
Florida, at Tullahassee, the Capital, this the First
day ofDecember, 2010

Secretmy o.lState

Authentication ID: 000188294320-120110-P06000061539

To authenticate this certificate,visit the following site, enter this
ID, and then follow the instructions displayed.
https://efiIe.sunbiz.org/certauthver.html



NET TALK. COM, INC.

EXHIBITB

SECRETARY OF STATE CERTIFICATE





NET TALK. COM, INC.

EXHIBIT C

MANAGEMENT BIOGRAPHIES



The following individuals are key managers of NET TALK.COM, INC. and may be contacted at the
Company's headquarters located at 1100 NW 163rd Drive, Ste. 3, NOlih Miami Beach, Florida 33169

MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY

Anastasios N. Kyrialddes

Anastasios N. Kyriakides is President. Mr. Kyriakides received a Bachelor of Science degree in business
from Florida International University in 1975; in 1977, he received a degree in investment banking from
the American Institute of Banking. From 1979 to the present, Mr. Kyriakides has consulted for numerous
companies in the areas of shipping, travel, banking, and electronics. His cruise ship career started with
Carnival Cruise line out of the Port of Miami, and continued to a successful start up with Tropicana
Cruises; one of the first gaming ships out of the POli of Miami. In 1994, Mr. Kyriakides became the
Chairman of Montgomery Ward Travel, a company created to provide full travel services to eight million
Montgomery Ward customers and credit card holders; he served in this capacity from 1994 to 1996. Mr.
Kyriakides had previously organized the successful start-up of Seawind Cruise Line in 1990; there, he
was the founder, and later, the Chairman, CEO, and Secretary until 1994. In 1984 Mr. Kyriakides founded
Regency Cruise Line, the world's first publicly traded company in passenger shipping, and served as its
Chairman and Secretary until 1987. In 1983, Mr. Kyriakides founded the Mylex Corporation to develop
and produce the world's first hand-held optical scanner and VGA card for personal computers. As the
President and Chairman, Mr. Kyriakides guided Mylex fi'om its beginning as a private company to its
becoming a public company traded on the NASDAQ under the stock symbol MYLX until it was acquired
as a wholly owned subsidiary of IBM (NYSE: IBM). In 1983, Mr. Kyriakides was the founder and
Chairman of Tower Bank NA, a full service commercial bank, with three offices, headqu81iered in Dade
County, Florida.

In 1980, Mr. Kyriakides, was the founder of Delcor Industries of Hollywood, Florida, an electronics
manufacturing facility, assembling OEM products for various electronics companies including IBM
mainframe and cable division employing over ISO skilled employees. In 1979, he was the founder and
Chairman of Lexicon Corporation, the world's first hand held electronic language translator the LK3000
that translated into 12 different languages. This company, publicly traded on the NASDAQ, under the
symbol LEXI, was ultimately acquired by Nixdorf Computers of Germany.

Prior to founding NET TALK.COM, INC., Mr. Kyriakides was a co-founder and CEO ofInterlink Global
Corp. a Telephone company that was built up to include subsidiaries in three countries, including a
nationwide full service telephone company in Venezuela (recently sold to the largest cable company in
Venezuela).



Bill Rodriguez

Bill Rodriguez is the CFO. Prior to his CFO duties at NET TALKCOM, INC., Bill was a CFO at Interlink
Global Corp. a Telephone company that was built up to include subsidiaries in three countries, including a
nationwide full service telephone company in Venezuela (recently sold to the largest cable company in
Venezuela). A copy of Mr. Rodriquez's resume is attached.

Kenneth Hosfeld

Kenneth Hosfeld is Executive Vice President. Kenneth has over twenty-two years of international sales,
marketing, and business management experience in the telecommunications industry. Kenneth was a
co-founder ofInterlink Global Corp. a Telephone company that was built up to include subsidiaries in
three countries, including a nationwide full service telephone company in Venezuela (recently sold to the
largest cable company in Venezuela). Before co-founding Interlink Global Corp, he co-founded another
VOIP telephone company (NetExpress) which was eventually rolled up into One Ring International. Prior
experience includes being the Regional Director of Brazil, the Andinos, and the Caribbean for Tellabs,
Inc. He secured Tellab" first "turn-key" contract (a complete, fully managed network deployment
including all products and services and project financing). He opened Tellabs' offices in Brazil and
regularly exceeded revenue targets. Prior to that, Kenneth was Vice P"esident ofNera Latin America, a
subsidiary ofNera Telecommunications (formerly ABB), with full P&L responsibility for the region. He
opened offices throughout Latin America including Brazil, Colombia, Mexico, and Venezuela and
additionally penetrated the Mexican and Chilean markets. Prior to Latin America, Kenneth was
responsible for sales in Africa and in China. He speaks over six languages including fluent Spanish and
Portuguese.

Nicholas Kyriakides

Nicholas Kyriakides is the Marketing Director. Nicholas received dual degrees in Finance and
Multinational Business Operations from Florida State University and a Masters of Business
Administration from Nova Southeastern University. In addition to his current marketing capacities at
NET TALKCOM, INC., was the Director of Marketing & Business development at Interlink Global
Corp. a Telephone company that was built up to include subsidiaries in three countries, including a
nationwide full service telephone company in Venezuela (recently sold to the largest cable company in
Venezuela). Nicholas also teaches Principles of Marketing at Miami Dade College School of Business.
Nicholas is fluent in both English and Spanish. A copy ofMr. Kyriakides' resume is attached.

Leo Manzewitsch

Leo Manzewitsch is the CTO. Leo has more than 18 years in the Telecommunications industry. Leo
received a Master's in Electronics Engineering, from the University of Buenos Aires, Argentina in 1991
and previously received a degree in mechanics from the Argentinean National School of Technical
Education, Buenos Aires in 1981. Before coming on board, Leo was the CTO of Interlink Global Corp. a
Telephone company that was built up to include subsidiaries in three countries, including a nationwide
full service telephone company in Venezuela (recently sold to the largest cable company in Venezuela).
Previously, Leo held positions sale support management at UT Starcom, Business Development Manager
for STRATEKGY Telecom Solutions, Marketing Manager for Tellabs International in their South
American market, and finally various positions at NEC Corporation ranging from new product
engineering up to and including management of new product marketing. Leo is fluent in both English and
Spanish.



GUILLERMO (BILL) RODRIGUEZ

PROFILE

Self motivated, honest, reliable and professionally skilled with extensive experience in'
Accounting, Business Administration and hands-on day to day operations.

EXPERIENCE

Controller/Financial Officer, Land Cellular Corporation; Oct. 2005 - March 1, 2007
Responsible for day to day operations including GAAP Accounting, Financial Repotiing,
Inventory Control, Accounts Receivable (AR), Accounts Payable (AP), Human Resources (HR),
InsurancelRisk Management, Bank Relationships, Sales Management, Budgets,
Manufacturing/Cost Accounting for Sales and Distribution of wireless modems - sold Domestic
and International.

Major Achievements:
Implementation of Treasury Functions (i.e., electronic payments and receipts, AR and AP
monitoring, On Line banking, etc.)
Setting up Accounting Policies and Procedures - GAAP

ControllerlFbulIlcial Officer; Brenner Real Estate Group; Feb. 1999 - Oct. 2005
Responsible for day to day operations of Brenner Real Estate Group, a licensed Commercial
Real Estate Broker and Property Management Company. Responsible for GAAP Accounting,
Financial Operations and Financial RepOliing of Managed Properties including CAM
reconciliations, Mortgage Financing, Bank Relationships, InsurancelRisk Management, AR, AP,
Human Resources, Budgets, Lease Management, conversion of Accounting Software, Year End
Financial Reporting Packages - Audit and Tax and vendor selection - Preferred List ofVendors.

Major Achievements
- Bringing in-house all client prepared work-papers for Annual Audit and Tax - Preparation

from outside auditors.
- Set up Lease Abstract and Lease Management Functions.

Controllel'lFbul/lcial Officer; Primary COIpomte Group (CSWAssociates, Inc.)
Nov. 1993 - Feb 1999
Primary Corporate Group managed Commercial Buildings, owned t1u'ee Centmy 21 Franchises,
a MOligage Company and Title Company, Responsible for day to day operations including
GAAP Accounting, Financial Reporting, Budgets, AR, AP, Bank Reconciliations, Human
Resources, Propetiy Management, Escrow Account Reconciliations and Annual Audits and Year
End Tax Packages. CSW was a sub-contractor to FDIC/RTC on three large government
contracts. Responsible for GAAP Financial Accounting and Reporting to FDICIRTC and for
selection and awarding contracts to sub-contractors - Minority Owned Business- (i.e.: Brokers,
Environmental and Operating Contracts).



Major Achievements
- Setting up selection and awarding contracts to sub-contractors in compliance with

FDICIRTC Guidelines for Minority Owned Businesses.
- Setting up Accounting Procedures to comply with RTC/FDIC Guidelines.

Auditoriinvestigator, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation FDICIRTC
Sept. 1991-Nov.1993.
Employed as Case Investigator and Auditor to review, audit and write up cases on failed
Financial Institutions. Cases were written on Appraisals, Loan Approval, Loan Management and
bank's practices and procedlU'es. Claims were made on Error/Omissions Policies and
Officers/Directors.

Major Achievement
- Wrote up two cases on failed banks presented to FDIC attorneys for action.

Vicc President Controller; Consolidated Bank, N.A. March 1986 - Sept. 1991
Responsible for GAAP Accounting and Financial Reporting of Bank Holding Company and
Subsidiaries including a major Bank with seven locations and a Data Processing Center.
Functions included: consolidation and Reporting to FDIC and Federal Reserve Bank, Annual
Budgets, Monthly Operational Meetings, Annual Audits and Year End Tax Reporting Package­
client prepared work-papers. Assisted in operation of Other Real Estate Owned Depatiment ­
"take-over" functions of foreclosed commercial properties - Hotels, Office Buildings, Shopping
Centers, etc.

Major Achievements
Implementation of new GAAP Ruling on recognition of loan fees and cost.

- Bringing in-house all client prepared work-papers for Annual Audit and Taxes.

Controller/Financial Officer: International Housing Ltd. Nov. 1981 - March 1986.



Nicholas Kyriakides
1030 Washington Street Hollywood, Florida 33019 • 561.329.3209 • nicholaskyriakides@gmail.com

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Miami Dade College-SchoolofBusilless Miami, FL
Adjullct Facult)' Present

• Instructor; Principles ofMarketing, presented with a hands-on approach whereby students play the roll of marketing
executives

NET TALK.COIII, Illc.
Dilvxtor ofMarketillg

• Coordinating nationwide marketing roll-out for venture-backed development stage enterprise
• Developing advertising model utilizing nationwide infomercials, print and digital media
• Implennnenting national CLEC footprint and obtaining regulatOly approval in the lower 48 US states

Miami, FL
Present

Miami,FL
Present

Miami,FL
2005-2008

A GORAZ.colII LLC
PJ'illcipal

• Founded and developed an internet application for a socially-driven marketplace
• Developed and managed business strategy and framework ofthe application in its entirety
• Formulated partnership with Miami Dade College School of Computer and Engineering Technologies to provide back-end system

architecture
• Developed an overall project management strategy that provides maxhnum efficiency with minimal face-to-face interaction, based on

object-oriented procedures and thorough systems logic

Illterlink Global CO/po
Director ofEllsille" Developmellt

• Frequently u1lveled to South America to develop VoIP interconnection agreements
• Developed satellite services business by providing cOl1l1ectivity to call centers in Venezuela and Colombia limn the Interlink data

center in Miami
• Acted as South American liaison between corpomte office in Miami and wholly owned subsidiaries, New Global Telecom Venezuela

and Meu'01P Colombia while living on location
• Prepared quarterly presentations ofnew business progress

Willgs Bar alld Grille RestaulYlllt
Gelleml Manager

• Assisted owners in the start-up ofan American restaurant
• Managed the day-to-day operations, plannhlg, payroll and employment conU1lcts
• Negotiated vendor pricing and developed additional revenue opportunities within the opemtion

PERSONAL PROFILE

Athens, Greece
2003-2004

• Bilingual (English/Spanish), conversant in Greek. Obtained meaningful work experience while traveling abroad.
• Ability to interface with different levels of personnel and diverse groups as part ofa team or project lead
• Detail and profit-oriented to establish effective scope management processes with strict regard for deadlines

'. Proven ability to use quantitative and qualitative research to identifY, analyze, repair and solve problems
• Technical skills include proficiency in the majority ofall Windows offerings and the potential to master new programs
• Volunteer at Best Buddies Broward Citizens Program mentoring individuals with mental/physical disabilities

EDUCATION

Nova Southeastel'l1 University
Ma.ster ofBusiness Administration, GPA 3.9

Florida State University
Bachelor of Science, Finance
Bachelor of Science, Multinational Business Operations

Fort Lauderdale, FL
June 2006

Tallahassee, FL
April 2005
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Forward Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in tim alUmal report on Fonn 10-K and other mitten nnternl and ami statements Imde from tin~ to tirre by lIS do not relate to Imtork:al or current
-mets. As such, they arc referred to as "furn'llrd-Iooking statemellts,""ilk:hare intended to cOlwey our exvectations or predk:tions regarding the occurrence ofpossible fitturc
events or the existence oftrends and m.etors that may impact our firture plans and opemling results. These fom'llfd-Jooking statements are derived, in part, from \'llrious asstUllptbns
and analyses we have nnde in the context ofOlif current business plan and infonmtion currently a\'lliJablc to 115 and in light ofour e;.;perience and perceptk)JlS ofhistork:al trends,
current cond~ions and exvected fbtnre developments and other m.etors we belkve to be approprhte in the cIrcwnstances. You cangenemlly idcntil}' rorv.ard-Iooking statements
through words and phmses such as "seck, "" antbipate, "" belkve, "" estinnte, "" eXl)ect, " " intend, "" plan, "" budget, "" project, "" nny be, "" nnycontinue, "" may likely
result, "and similar eX1>ressions. When reading any rom'llrd looking statcn-cnt, you should rennin m.indfiJ1that actual resohs or de\'Clopments uny vmy sllbstantill~' from those
exveeted as expressed in or impl~d by that statenx:nt for a number ofreasons or mctors, such as those relating to:

• ,,1tether or not a Imrket fur our products and servkcs develop and, ira nurket develops, the pace at wh):h it develops;

• our ab~ity to successfiilly sell our products and ser"kes ifa rrnrket develops;

• our ability to attract the qualified persOlmel to implcn~tlt our gro"th strategies;

• our ability to develop sales and marketing capabl1ities;

• the accuracy ofOllr estinntes and projections;

• our ability to fimd our short-tennand Iong-teon financing lteeds;

• changes in our business plan and corpomte strategies; and other risks and uncertainties discussed in greater detail in tlte sections ofthis prospectus, inchlding tlte sectKll1
captioned ''Plan ofOpcmtK:lI1".

Each forn'llrd-Iooking statement should be read in context \"ith, and with an understanding of, the "urDus other disclosures concemingour Company and our btlSiness nnde
else,,11Ore in tim prospectus, as well as odter ptlbl): reports filed with tlte SEC. You should not place UndtlO relilnce on any forward-lookilgstatcn~nt as a predbtion ofactual
results or developll-cnts. We are not obligated to update or revise any rorward-looking staterrcnl contained in this report to reflect 110W events or cirCtUll5tances unless and to tlte
extent required by applkablc nw.
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PaitI

Item 1. Business

Company and Business

We are a telephone company, who provkles, sells and supplies commercial and resklentnl teleconmlwticatbn services, including services utilizing yoke oyer intemet protocol
(''VoIP'') technology, session inithtion protocol ("SIP") teclmology, wireless fijelity technology, wircless nnximwn technology, nnrine satenite serviccs technology and othcr simihr
type'teclU1olog~s. Our nnin product t> the 1K 6000, an an,.-llog telephone adapter that provkles connectivity ror analog telephones and fiIxcs to home, home ofli:c or corpomte
local area networks ("LAN").

Our TK 6000 and its related seT\1::es is a cost eficcti\'e sohrtbn fur indi\iluals, snnll businesses and te1ecomllllrtcrs cOllllccling to any analog telephone, fitx or private branch
exchange ("PBX''). 'Ille TK 6000 provkles one USB port, one Ethemet port and one analog telephone I)ort. A fill suite ofintemet protocol features is available to maxinw..e
uni\'eTSRI connectivity. Tn addition, analog tclephones attached to the TK 6000 arc able to use advanced calling features such as call forwarding, caller 10, 3-way callilg, call
holding, caJl retrkval and call transfur.

IIistory and O,'cl"iew

We tlre a Florida corporatbn, incorporated on May I, 2006 wtder thc IlftIYC Discover Screens, Inc. ("Discon:r Screens'').

Prior to September to, 2008, we were kl1O\\l1 as Discover Screens, a dcvclopment-stage company, dedicated to providing advertising through interactive, audio\'isua~ inlOnmtion
and advertising portals located in high-traffu irtdoor vellues. Our name and business operations changed in a series oftrallsactions begilming in December of2007, Pursuant to an
asset purchase agreement dated December 30, 2007, we sold all ofthe assets assocnted with the advertising busincss as a goingcollcem to Robert H. Blank, who was then our
Presklent and ChiefOperatirtg Officer. Following that transaction, \\'e ceased all cxislingoperations, and from December 30, 2007 to September 9, 2008, we 0\\1ted nominal
assets and generated no revenue. In Febmary of2008, Mr. Bhnk resiglted as offi::er and director.

On September 9, 2008, Robin C. Hoover, our sole remaining offi::er and director, appointed four new members to the Board ofDirectors, Anastasios Kyril.kides, Kelllteth
Hosfcld, Guillenm Rodriguez and Leo Manzewitsch. Mr. Hoover then resigned as an officer and director. Mr. Richard Dilm:md was appointed by the Board ofDirectors to fill the
\'l1CffilCY left by Mr. Hoover's resignation. Mr. Dilnxmd resiglted as a director ofthe Company, efrectr.'C November 23,2009.

On September 10, 2008, we changed our lIame from Discover Screens, Inc. to Net Talk.com, Inc. On September 10,2008, we entered irltO a Contribution Agrcement v.-ith Vicis
Capital Master FlUID ("Vbis") by wloch Vicis contributed certain operating assets to the Company in exchange for (a) a 12% Senior Secured COIwertible Debenture in the principal
aummt 0[$1,000,000; and (b) a Series B Warrant to purchase 4,000,000 shares ofconmxm slock oftile Company. Also on September 10, 2008, the Company entered into a
Securities Purchase Agreemcnt ....-ith Debt Opport1.mity Fund, LLP (''DOF'') by wltich DOF purchased (a) a 12% Senior Secured COll\'Crtible Debenture in thc principal amount of
$500,000; and (b) a Series B Warrant to purchase 2,000,000 slmres ofCommon Stock ofthc Company.

On September 10,2008, we acquired certain tangible and intangible assets, ronnerly o....ned by Interlink Global Corporation ("Interlink"), (the "Interlink Asset Group") directly
from Interlink's creditor WI10 had seized the assets pursuant to a Security and CoThltcral Agreement. Our purpose irl acquiring these assets, \\'hich includcd employment rights to the
exeolrti\'C nnnagement team oflnterlink, WI10 now currently serve as our ofli:ers, was to advance the 1K 6000 VoIP Technology Program, v.ilich Interlink hundted in July 2008.
Accordingly, these assets substantially comprise our current business assets and the infrastmcture ror our firturc operations. COlltemporaneotlst' with this purchase, we executed an
assignmcnt and irltcllectual property agreement with Interlink that seT\'ed to pertect ollr O\\nership rights to the assets.

Considemtbn for the acquisition consisted ofa filce value $1,000,000 cOll\'Crtible debenture, phIS warrants to purchase 4,000,000 shares ofotlf commn stock. On the date oftile
Interlink Asset Group acquisition, we also entered into a fRlancingagreemcnt with the DOF (as described abo\'C) that provkled fur the issuance ofa fuce vahle $500,000
convertible debentllfe, plus warrants to purchase 2,000,000 shares ofollr connnon stock fur net cash consideration of$448,300. In cOilltectbn ....ith this acquisitbn, we issued
6,000,000 shares ofcol11lnon stock to our new Ilnnagement team in COlUlcction with the Interlink Asset Group acquisitbn.
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OUI'Stmteg)'

We continue to improve and enhance the fOllowing mctors in building and e;'\lJanding our custorrcr base:

• Deployment and distributim ofour main product TK 6000 devi:e.

• Attractive and innovative value propositbn. We olrer our customers an attractr.·e and innovative vahle proposition: a portable telephone replacelllent "\\'ith Illilltip1c and tmGue
reatures that diffurentiates our servi:es from the competition.

• Innovative, high technology and low cost technology pJatfonn. We belie,'C our innovatr.'C sollware and network tec1mology platlOnn proviles lIS with a cOIfq)etitive
ad''Rntage over our con:petitioll and alloy.'S lIS to maintain a low cost infrastmcture relatr.,c to our competitors.

Plan ofOpcl'lltion

We provide, sell and supply commercel and resi:lential te1ecolllIllimicatim services, including services utilizing yoh oyer intentet protocol ("YoIP") technology, sessX:lIl initiatKHl
protpcol (''SIP'') technology, wireless frlelity teclmology, wireless Il'llximum technology, nnrine satellite servk:es technology and othcr similar type technologcs. We are de,'Cloping
our bllSotess infrastrllcture and IteW products and services.

OUI'Product

At tlili ton::, our main product s the '''IK 6000". TIte TK 6000 is designed to provkle specifk:ations lmiq\te to each cllStomer's existing equipm:nt. It allows the ClIslorner 1hH mobile
fleXibility by being able to take intentetinterfuce all)where the custorrcr has an oltemet cOllnectkm. TIle TK 6000 has tlte rolbwing features:

A Unr.'Crsal Serial BIIS (''USB'') cOllnection allowing the illtercOlmection ofthc TK 6000 to any computer. The USB cOlUlection results in shared power belween the TK
6000 and the host computer.

In additbn to the USB power source option, the TK 6000 w:ill also haye an extemal power supply allowing tlte photte to oIdependently power i1:selfwhen not connected to
a host computer;

UtlN\:e Imsl VolP telephone systems, tlte TK 6000 has a stmIdalol1c reature allowing it 10 be phlgged directly into a statIdard intentet connection.

T11C TK 6000 s a compact, space·ef!k:ient product.

T11C TK 6000 has an olterfuce component so that tile cllstonx:r can purchase multiple units tltat can cOlrul1l.U1K:ate v.ith each other allowing simultaneollS ringing from nnl1tiple
locations.

Our product s portable and allows ollr custon~rs to nklke mId recer.'C pllOlte calls with a telcpllOne anywhere broadband intentet connection is avaihble. We trall'il11it thc calls
llSOlg Voice oyer Intentet Protocol "YOIP" teclmology, which conyerts yok:c signals Olto digital data transnllisions O\'Cr the infentel.

Our Services

Onr bllsotess is to provide products mId services Ihat utilize Voice Oyer Intemet Protocol "\\1lk:h we rerer to as "YoIP." VolP is a teclulOlogytltat allows tlte COllSlnrcr to Imke
telephone calls over a broadbalId inlentet cOlmection instead OfUSOlg a reguhr (or analog) telepllOllC Iinc. VolP works by COll\'C1101g the user's yoice into a digital signal that tra,'Cls
O\'er the oltemet until it reac1tes its destination. lfthe lIScr is calting a reguhr telepholte litte lltm1ber, tlte signal is conwrted back into a yoi:e signal once it reacltes the end lISeI'. Our
busotess model is to deYelop and cOll1lrcrdliize software tedmology sohlfions fur cost cffcctr,.'e, real-tol~ communkations over tlte illtemet and related servi:es.
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SClyices provided or to be provided:

Text to phone reminder service. We are currentfy developing a service that \\111 allow VoIP to S)1lChronize with the cllstonl2r's data base schcdule managel'r.::nt system
(stich as Mbosofi Office Outlook r,). Our goal i<; to de\'Clop a service that will call the customer at a pre~dcsignated tin-c to provile an audio reminder ofthat day's
agenda to the custorr.::r. By offering tim servi:e at a low price point ofless than five dollars per llDl\th we hope to apI>eal to a broad customer base. 11lis sofiware B
currently under development.

Free conference server. TIlli product is currently available to all our Cllstorrcrs.

Future Voice .Message Delivel)'. TItis sCrvK:e alJo",s the user to record a \'oke message which will be delin~red to a recipient at a later date and tin);: specified by the
user.

Speech to text services/or the hearing impaired. TItis k a standalone service that \',111 allow the hearing inpaired to receive real tinlJ conversion ofincoming voice
signals into tex1 displayed all an incorporated display paneL

Maii<eting

We have dc\'clopcd direct sales channels, as represented by web sites and toll free lllUnbcrs. Our direct sales channels arc supported by highly integrated ad\'ertisilgcanwaigns
across multiple medit such as infoll);:rcitls, television and other Il~dil channek Our website is \\vlw.nettalk.colll, our telephone number is 305 621 1200 and aura" llIunber is
305621 1201.

Our pritml)' source ofre\'ellue is the sale and distribution ofour 1K 6000 product. We also genemtc revenue from the sale ofaccessarks to ollr product and intemationallong
distance nxmthly charges that arc billed to our customcrs.

A(h:cI1ising

Our goal S to position ourselves as a premier supplier ofchoice for VolP sef\i:es. Our current business strategy is to fucus our ad\'ertisingdolhrs on our horoo nurket in South
Florida. Our ad\'ertising will consist ofnms nnrkcting campaigns fucusing on televiskm infOn~rcials for the SouthFlorkia nmket and other states including cable televiskm
chalUlCls. We havc been nmning infOn);lrcial since July 2009 at tIlC present tnl);: the infOn);lrciak are numing through the United States on a routDlCly basis e\'eI)' wcek.

Customel'S

Our custOIl~rs are nude up ofresklential and snull busilCsses. We anticipate that filtm-c services will appeal to our existDlg custon~rs and hope that our add~ional phollC products
and services \',111 provkle a complete phone package experience to our cllslolll2rs.

Our target audience is individual consmners and stroll busnlCsses looking to lower tllCircurrent cost oftelecomlllunkations. We are also reachDlg a largc audience with our websites.
We hope that COllSlUrcrs will find our websites by doing an iltemet search for VolP service provklers. We also lLSe other means ofad\'ertising such as direct to COllSlUl~r sales,
ecomlllerce and wholesale sales to retail stores.

Geographic Markets

Our primaly geographic market s our home nnrket ofSouth Florida. Our target audience are iJ.l<livitual COllStuners and stroll busilCsses looking to lower tllCir current cost of
teleconununicatbns. We also e:.:pect to reach a large audie-nce wilham websites. We hopc that conStuners will fUld our websites by dODlg an intenlCt search for VolP seme
providers. We will also use other n~ans ofadvertising such as direct to COllSlUll2f sales, econnnerce and v.11Olesale sales to retail stores.
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We have been granted and or are applying for Competiti\'e Local Exchange Carrier ("CLEC") Li:ellses in thirty-five states, as fullows:

Alabann Georgia Massachusetts New Mexko South Dakota
Arizona Idaho Minnesota New York Texas
Arkansas Illinois Montana North Carolina Utah
Califomia Indiana Nebraska North Dakota Venmnt
Connectkut Kansas Nevada Ohio Washington DC
De1<nvare Kentucky New Jersey Oregon Washington
Florida Mat)'hnd New York Pennsylvania Wisconsin

It is our intent to fucus our expansion on the geographic markets in V.1lK:h we have been granted CLEC Licenses. We also iltend to expand our nnrket place to reach CtlstOIl-X:rs
worklwidc.

The.lndush')'

In the past decade, the usc oftile intemet fur aU purposes has exploded. VolP is a tec1Ulology that enables communications ovcrtlle iltemct through tile compression ofvoice,
video and/or otller n-edn into data packets that can be e"fl'bientlytransmittcd over data networks and thcn converted back inlo tile original media at tile other end oftile
tmnsmissKIil. Sillce tile introduction oftile first VolP technology in thc mid 1990s, the quality and clarity ofVoIP COlUlcctbns have contimcd to cvolve and ilnprove. Perhaps the
biggestjwnp it VolP quality can~ with the introduction ofSIP, or Scsskm Initiation Protocol SIP is a te)l.1-based protocol suitable fur integrated voice-data appIk:ations. Today
SIP is the prcdominant industry standard fur establishing multmdia COllllllluocations ovcr the Inteolet. As the clarity and quality ofVolP servi::es havc increased, so has the
acceptance ofVoIP by COllSlUl'Crs.

As a result oftile potential cost saving;> and added feature availability ofVoIP, consmrers, industry leaders and traditional telcconlllUlllk:ation service providers see VoIP as the
filluro oftclceOlllllUlnK:ations. Factors that havc bcen contributing to the boom in VoIP use ilChide: (a) increased consumer dennnd fur knver cost telcphOile services; (b) increased
deuUlid fur long distance servi::es as tile nmket place becomes increasingly globaL (c) improved reliability and quality ofVoIP dlle to technologk:al advances; and (d) innovations
that allow services fur VolP users tlmt are not aWliiable in traditiollal telephOile services. lllese factor, and otllers, have resllltcd in \'llriollS service providers and COllSlUllerS
ehlJloring VoIP altematives to traditKlIml analog phOlle services.

OUI' Competition

TIle COll1l11lmk:atK:ms indllStry is highly competitivc and significantly affected by rcgllhtOly changes, technology evolution, marketing strategies, and pricing decisions oftlle larger
industry parti::ipants. TIlC Il"tuket fur our services is evolving mpi:llymid is subject to shifting cllstomer den'llllds and tllC introduction oflleW products and services. Our ClUTCnt and
potential competitors con~ from different nnrket sectors and vmy in size mid scope with respect to tllC products and servi:es that Ihey ofter or iltend to after il tIle fillurc.

OllC ofour competitors in tllC donlestic mukct is tmditional telephOlle service providers that are nlCreasilgly addilg advanced service "features to traditilnal telephone scrvices.
Domestic telephollC providcrs have the ad\'llntage ofhaving slrong naUle recognition, hrge research and developnXlnt budgets mid existing scrvi:e and muket lletworks.

In additbn, nunlerous veridors sell products and servk:es using VolP technology. OUf compelitors use nmo\'lltK:ms such as Analoguc Tenninal Adaptcrs, or ATAs, to connect all
analogue telephone to a VoIP nctwork. Sometines referred to as VolP Gateways, these devices are wideO' advertised and sold. Sales arc conducted by nnny diffurent lllethods,
including intcnlet and inromercil1 sales, and barriers to entry ilto tile busitlesS arc low.

We also fRce competition fromaltenmt1\'c comllRinication n-x:thods sllCh as intelllCt, fix providers and \.Oi::email service providers.
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Many ofour competitors may be better established, larger and beller financcd than us, and are able to use their visibility and substantill mukeling resources to aUmct custon~rs. In
partbilar, many ofour competitors are largc, established network servicc providers that are able to Inuket and distribute enhanced conlllltuocatiln servk:es within their already
large base ofsubscribers. As a result, these competitors Imybe able to adapt lrore quickly to !lew or errcrging tedmologies and changes il customer requirements. l1ley nuy also
be able to devote greater resources to the prolIDtiln and sale oftheir products. MoreO\'er, \\'e lmy nollla,·e sufficient resources to lUldertake the contiming research and
de\'elopn~nt necessaT)' to rennin competitive.

We difrerentiate our setvkes from those offi:red by our competitors by ofthitg exceptional custoll~r sef\i:e and lower cost altemativcs. We have worked hard to control the
de\'clopn~nt costs associated with the TK 6000. We have donc this by choosing phonc components and componcnt wlldors that are ecollomk:al but do not compromise on
qualily. We have de\'eloped and nmkcted our 0\\11 products and servi:es, rather than simply reselling another Ilnnumcturer's umovations. Finally, ourTK 6000 product is a
statldabne phone product that does not require the user to first invest in a computer. For these reasons, we know that our TK 6000 product is a lower cost altemative to similar
telephone products currently being Imrketed. Because \\'e are engaged in thc san~ cost saving ~asures fur the servi::es wc offi:r, we are able to offi:r those servk:es at a
competitive prk:e.

Our'products and services are user frielld~' and COIlVeltklnt for our customers. For example, our packaging includes detailed, user frkndly instmctions and dngrams to aiklw for
easy installatKm and actimoon. We llave distinguished olU'selres from our Imin competitors through the 1e\'e1ofcuston'Cr service offi:red to our consumers fullowing their purchase
or our products or services. ClUTcntly, our competitors only offcr custon~r setvke through an email qtlCT)'program This does not allow tllC customer to rccciye rapid, real-time
problem SOhrilg assistance in the event our competitor's product or seni:e mils. In contrast, we established a customer sef\lce online fonun v.here our users can post their
questions and read other users' responses. '1lIC funull has key word or key phrase search optim so that our custon~rs can easily find a sohrtbn to the problem they are
experiencing. Our funm1 is lmderated by one ofour de\'elopn~nt engineers to cnsure Illat all qllCstions are being properly addressed and isSllCS resolved. We also offi:r a
pay-per-use live cnstoll~r support hotlilC. By paying a "fee, either per minute or percal~ our custotrurs are able to reach a support specnllit to get a direct answer to tllCir
qllCstbns. TItis allows us to provile superior cllston~r sCf\lce, while still keeping our costs low.

GO\'CInmcnt Regulation

As a telecommunications supplier, we are subject to extensive gO\'emment regulatiln. 'lllC nnjorityofour goYcmment regulation comes from the Federal Commmlications
Commission (tllC ''FCC').

TeJeCOlllllllmk:ations is an area ofrapid regulatory change. Changes Ul tllC lav."S and regulations and new interpretations ofexisting laws mid regulations Imy aflect pemlissible
activities, tllC relative costs associated with dOUlg busDlCss and allXHlllls paid to us fur our services. We cmmol predict tllC firture oftCderaL state and local regulations or legishtion,
ulCludDlg FCC regulations.

Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") regulation

The'FCC is an ildcpendent United States gOYenUl~nt agcllCY. The FCC was established by the COIlYllunkations Act ofl934 and is ch,1rged with regulating interstate mid
intematilnal cOlllllllUlk:ations byradb, te1cvisbn, wire, satellite and cable. TIlC FCC'sjurisdiction covers all fifty states, the District ofCohmlbit and U.S. possessions.

11le FCC works to create an enviromrcnt prOlwting competition and innovatbn to benefit conmuUlkations customers. Where necessaT)', tllC FCC liaS acted to ensure voir
providers COlltpO' \yith unportant public sarety requirell~nls and public polby goals.

Interconnected VoIP provXlers IllllSt COIllP~' with tile COllllllssioll'S Telecolllmuni:ations Relay Scrvices (TRS) requirenx:nls, i1lChldingcontributing to tIle TRS Fund used to
support tIle provision oftelecon:UlUIIlk:ations setvkes to persons with speech or hearilg disabilit~s, and offi:rillg 711 abbrevilted dnling ror access to relay servi:es. InterCOlUlCcted
VoJP provilers and equipnx:nt manumcturers also mmt CIlSUrc that, cOilSistent with Secton 255 oftile COIlllllluocatiln Act, tlleir services are available to and mabie by uldivXluals
with disabilit)es, ifSllCh access is readily achievable.
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FinaJ~', the FCC now requires interconnected VolP provilers and telephone compank:s that obtain lIIullbers from them to conlp~' ",1Ih Local NlUllber Portabilfty (LNP) mles.
'Illese rules allow telephone, and now VolP, subscribers that change providers to keep the subscribers telephone munbers proviled that they stay in tllC sa~ geographi; area.
VolP providers must also contribute to fimds established to share LNP and numbering administrati\'e costs allDng all telecolllmlUl~ations providers benefiting from these services,

TIlC FCC m:l11itors and Ji1\'est~ates cOJllplaints against VoIP provi:lers and, ifnecessalY, can bring enlOrcementactions against VoIP providers that do not comp~'with applicable
regulatbns,

State Telecommunication Regulation

We are also registered with the Florida Public Umit~s Commission as a Compelfti\'C Local Exchange Carrh (''CLEC'') and Interexchange ("IXC'') Carder.

In Florida, a "competitive local exchange carrk:r" is defined as any company, other than an incmnbent local exchange company, certifkated by the Publi; Seni:e ConnnissKlIlto
provide local exchange telecOnll111Ulk:ation seni:es in the state ofFlorida on or after July 1, 1995, CLEC companies providing serv~es in Florida after July 1, 1995, must be
certificated by the PlorKla Public Service COmnlliSK'll1, and competitive local exchange companies are required to file a price list specil)1l1g theirratcs and charges for basic local
telecommunication servk:es.

Florkla, as well as other states, also regulates providers oflnterexehallge Telecol1unmtications ("IXC"). llte Florida Pllbli: Seni:e Comnllision includes tlte following as examples
oflXC providers: (1) operator service providers; (2) reselkrs; (3) SwitChleS5 re·billers; (4) multi-location discount aggregators; (5) prepail debit card provilers; and (5) fueilities
based inlerexchange carriers. Section 364,02(13) ofthe Florida Statutes requires IXCs to provide ClUrent contact inKmnation and a tariffto tlte Florkla Publk: Service COlllmission.

We Jtavc applied and or recei\'ed CLEC and IXC registrations in 35 stMes including:

Alabama Georgia Massaellll'ieHs New Mexico South Dakota
Arizona Idaho Mumesota New York Texas
Arkansas Illinois Montana North Carolina Utah
Califumia Indrllta Nebraska North Dakota Venmnt
COlUlCctblt Kansas Nevada Ohio Washington DC
Delaware Kentucky New Jersey Oregon Washington
Florida Mal)'land New York PelUlSylvania Wis:comin

'nlC law relating to reglwtion ofVolP technology is in a flll\(. In recent eOllrt cases, other VoIP providers have challenged whetllCr state regulatK:lllS can be applied to VolP
tec1~loklgy or whether such regulation has been preempted bytilC Telecommuniatims Act ofl996 and other Fedemllaws, At least OIlC ofour competitors l'I<lS sllccesslttlly fought
the application ofslate laws to VoIP technology. However, to be cautious, we will continue to obtain a competitive local exchange carrier Ikeme from each state in whkh we
conduct business, An added advantage ofobtaining a CLEC l~ellSe from each state is that we can obtain an operational carrer number from tIte North Amer~an Ntunbering Plan
Administratioll The operational carrier number will allow lIS to assign our cllStomers telepllOllC llumbers in the area code in ",11~h they reside,

Employees

We employ nute filil-time and no part-tune employees, NOlte ofour enlployees is subject to a collecti\'C bargaining agreement, and we comider our employee relations to be
satisfuctolY,

Intellectual ProPCI'ty

We regard ollrdOlmin names, patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade dress, trade secrets, proprietary technologies and sinu1u intellectual property as critk:alto our success, and
we rely on patent, traderrark and cop)'right law, trade·secret protection, and cOl1fxlellt~lity and/or licellSe agreements with our employees, custon~rs, partners, and others to
protect our proprietary rights.

10



We have filed 2 patcnt appJicatkms with the Unitcd States Patent and Tradelmrk Oflke fur the teclmology associated 'with our products. We also have software under
developnlent by ouremplo)'ees, subcontractors and consultants.

TIle status ofany patent itwol.,.es complex legal and fuctual questbns, and the breadth ofclain15 allowed is uncertain. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that anypatenl applicatbll
filed by us will result in a patcnt bcitlg t>sued or that our -&sued patcnts, and any patents that nn)' bc t>sued in tile fillure, \vill affurd adequatc protectbn against compctitors wih
similar tec1mology. We sinilarlyfuce tIle rkk that any patcnts issued to us might be infrDlged or designed arolUxl by others.

Research and Development

We expense research and developnlent expenses, as thesc costs are incurred. We aCCOlmt for our o:trering-related software development costs as costs incurred Dltcmally il
creating a computer software product and are charged to expense when incurred as research and dc.,.elopn~nt until tecllllologi:al feasibility has been established fur the product.
Tecllllological feasibility k estabfuhcd upon completion ofa detail program dcsign or, in its absence, completion ofa working Imdel At this time our nnin product TK6000 is
bcing sold in thc nnrket place. TIICrefore, research and development cost reported in our financial statetrnnts relates to pre -marketing cost and are e:..:pensed accordilgly.

Item 1 A. Risk factors

This Annual Report on Form IO-K containsjmward-looking statements within the meaning ofthe "saje harbor" provisions ofthe Prl\'ate Securities Litigation Reform
Act of1995. Reference is made in particular to the description ofour plans and objectivesforfuture operations, assumptions underlying sllch plans and objectives and
otherfmward-looking statements included in this section, "Item I Business, " "Item 7 Management's Discussion and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of
Opel·ations, " and in otherplaces in this Annual Report. Such statements may be identified by the use ojfO/ward-looking terminology such as "may", "lI'ilI", "expect",
"belie\'e ", "estimate ", "anticipate OJ, "intend", "continue ", or similar terms, variations ofSlIch terms or the negath'e ofsuch terms. Such statements are based on
management's current expectations andare subject to a number offactors and uncertainties that could cause actllal results to differ materiallyjrom those described in
thefonl'Ord-looking statements. We expressly disclaim an)' obligation or undertaking to release publicly an)' updates or re\'isions to an)'jonl'ard-looking statements
contained herein to reflect any change in our expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which an)' such statement is
based Factors that could cause such results to differ materiallyjrom those described in thejonl'ard-looking statements include those setforth below.

Risks Relating to Our Business:

WE lL\VEA HISTORY OF LOSSES WHICH MAY CONTINUE, WinCH MAYNEGATIVELYIMPACT OUR ABILITY TO ACHIEVE OUR BUSINESS
On~ECnVES.

We incurred net losses of$2,737,817 and $2,009,907 fur the years cnded September 30, 2009 mxl2008, respecti\'ely. We cannot assure you that we can achieve or sustain
profitability on a quartcrly or alUlllal basis in tllC firture. Our opemtions are subject to tllC r~ks and compctitbn inherent in the establishn~nt oCa busincss enterprise. TI1ere can be
no assurance that future operatkms will be profitable. RevcmICs and profits, ifan)', will depend upon varbus mctors, including whether we will be able to contnllle e;\pansion oCour
revenue. We may not achiJve our busRICss objecti\'Cs and the fuilurc to achieve such goals would have an adverse Dnpact on us.

OUR INDEPENDENT AUDITORS HAVE EXPRESSED SUBSTANTIAL DOUBT ABOUT OUR ABlLlTYTO CONTINUE AS A GOING CONCERN,
WHICIIl\IAYIIINDER OUR ABILITY TO OnTAIN FUTURE FINANCING.

In tlteir report dated Decembcr 3, 2009, our independent auditors stated that our financial staten);lnts for tllC year ended Scptember 30, 2009 wcre prepared assuming that we
would continue as a going concem. Our ability to contitlllC as a goitlg concem is an issue raised as a result ofrecurrilg losses from opemtions. We contimlC to experience net
opemtDlg losscs. Our ability to contime as a gonlg coneem k subject to our ability to gCllerate a profit and/or obtaitlnccessary Rllldnlg from Olrtsi:le sources, Dlcllxling obtailing
additional fimdRlg from the sale ofour securities, increasRlg sales or obtaining hans and grants frolUvarbu$ finaneial instittrtbns where possible. Our conlnllled llet opemling hsses
increase tllC difficulty in nl':etitlg such goals and there can be no assurances that such methods \\111 prove sllceessfid.
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WE HAVE A U"UTED OPERATING HISTORY AND IFWE ARE NOT SUCCESSFUL IN CONTINUING TO GROW OUR BUSINESS, THEN WE MAY
HAVE TO SCALE BACK OR EVEN CEASE OUR ONGOING BUSIi~ESSOPERATIONS.

We have received a limited anmmt ofrevenues from opcrations and have Jinited assets. We have yet to generate positive eamings and there can be no assurancc that we will cver
operate profitabb'. Our company has a limited opcrating histOIy and must be cOilsklered in the e~:pJoratKHl stage. Our success is sig;niocallt1y dependent on a successfitl acquisition,
drilling, completion and production program Our operations will be subject to all the risks irtllerent in the establlilnrcnt ofa developing enterprise and the lUlCertainties arisirlg from
the absellCe ofa significant operatirlg history. We may be unable to locate recoverable reserves or operate Oil a profitable basis. We are irl the development stage and potential
investors should be aware ofthe diffuultcs Honm lIy ellCotmtered by enterprises in the cxplomtbll stage. Ifour business plan is not successfhl and we arc not able to operate
profitabb', investors may lose some or all oftheir investn-ent in Ollr company.

OUR BUSINESS MAY BE AFFECTED BY FACTORS OUTSII>E OF OUR CONTROL

Our ability to increase sales, and to profitabb' distribute and sell our products and selli:es, is subject to a number ofrisks, inchiding changes in our busirJess relationships with our
pnhcipal distributors, competiin: risks such as t1Je entrrulCe ofadditbnal competitors into our nurkets, pri:ing and technologi:al competitbn, risks associated with tlJe deYelopllXlnt
and marketing ofnew products and servk:cs in order to relmin competiti,,~ and risks associated with changing eCOllOmK: conditions and govenun:mt reguhtion.

IFWEARE UNABLE TO RETAIN TilE SERVICES OF MR. KYRL\KIIlES OR IF WE ARE UNABLE TO SUCCESSFULLY RECRUIT QUALIFIED
PERSONNEL lL\VING EXPERIENCE IN THE OIL AND GAS INDUSTR Y, WE ""-lAY NOT BE ABLE TO CONTINUE OUR OPERATIONS.

Our'success depends to a signifkant extent upon the contirmed seni:es ofMr. Anastasbs Kyrnkkles, our Ch:icfExecutivc Ofli:cr. Loss ofthe senlces ofMr. Kyriakides could
have a nnterial adverse effect on our gro\\1h, rcvenues, and prospecti\'e bUSRJeSS. In order to sllccessfillly implement and Imllage our busincss plan, we will be dependcnt upon,
among other things, sllccessfhIly recmiting qualified persollnell1aving experience irl the oil and gas business. Competition for qualified irIdivnuals is intensc. 11lCre can be no
aSSllfaJlCC that we will be able to find, attract mid retain cxi5ting employees or that we will be able to find, attract mid retain qualified personnel on acceptable tenn,.

IF WE FAIL TO REMAIN CURRENT ON OUR UEPORTING REQUIREMENTS, WE COULD BE REMOVED I.ROM TIlE OTC BULLETIN BOARD
WHICH WOULD LIMIT lHE ABILITY OF BROKER-DEALERS TO SELL OUR SECURITIES AND TilE ABILITY OF STOCKHOLDERS TO SELL
THEIR SECURITIES IN THE SECONDARY MARKf:T,

Companies trading on the OTC Bullctirl Board, such as us, must be reporting issuers miller Section 12 oftlle Securities lixchange Act of 1934, as ammded, mId mllst be current in
tlJeir'reports tmder Sectbn 13, in order to nnirltain pri:c quotation pri\':iIeges on the OTC Bulletirl Board. Ifwe mil to rennirl current on our reportirlg requiren'Cllts, we could bc
rellDvcd from the OTC Bulletin Board. As a result, thc market liquidity for our securities could be severely ad\'crse~' affected by ID.niting the ability ofbroker~dcalers to selloUT
securiti:s mId the ability ofstockhoklers to sell their securities irl tlle secondary llnrket.
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OUR COl\1J\10N STOCK IS SUBJECr TO THE t1pENNYSTOCK" RULES OF THE SEC AND THE TRAiliNG MARKET IN OUR SECURITIES IS
UMITED, WHICH MAKES TRANSACTIONS IN OUR STOCK CUMBERSOME AND MAYREDUCE THE YALUE OF AN INVEST~lENT IN OUR
STOCK.

llle Securit)es and Exchange Commssion has adopted Rule 15g-9 whi:h establliihes tIle definition ofa "penny stock," fur the purposes relevant to us, as any equity security that has
a lUnket pri:e ofless than $5.00 per share or with an exercise prk:e ofJcss than $5.00 per share, subject to certainexceptKHls. For any transactbn im'OIvinga penny stock, unless
exempt, the mles require:

that a broker or dealer approve a person's account fur transactnns in penny stocks; and
the brokcr or dealer receive from the investor a written agrectn:nt to tile transaction, setting furth the identity and quantity ofthe pcnny stock to be purchased.

In order to approve a person's accountror tral1sactbns:in penny stocks, the broker or dealer must:

obtain financi'll infonmtion and investrrent experience objectives ofthe person; and
make a reasonable detemlinatbn that the transactnns in pClmy stocks are suitable for that person and tile pcrson has sufficient knowledge and e>.:pcr)ence in financill

mattcrs to be
capable ofevaluating the risks oftransactioll5 in pelUl)' stocks.

llle .broker or dealer mnst also dcliver, prior to any transactbn in a penny stock, a dis:closure schedule prescribed by tIle Commission relating to tile pelllY stock market, whi:h, in
highlight funn:

sets forth the bass on which the broker or dealer rrnde tile suitability dctcnnination; and
that the broker or dealer received a signed, writtcn agreement from the investor prior to the transactKHl.

Genemlly, brokers Tn'\)' be less willing to exccute transactions in securiti3s subject to the "penny stock" mles. This 1m)' make it loore diffX:lIlt for investors to dispose ofour COlllll'Xm

stock and cause a decline in the rrnrkct value ofotIf stock.

DiscloSlIfC also has to be nnde abollt the risks ofiln'esting in permy stocks in both public offerings and in sccondaT)' trading and about the cOllmlliskms payable to both the broker~

dealer and the registered representative, CtuTCllt quotations fur the securili3s and tIle rights and rell'Cdics a''llihble to an :investor ill cases offraud in penny stock trallsactions.
Finally, monthly statements Ila\'C to be scntdisclosing recent price i1lfonnatKJIl fur the pelUl)' stock held in tile accotmt lind illfOnmtion on tIle limited lrmket in pcnnystocks.

WE HAVE NOT PAID DIVlllENDS IN TIlE PAST ANI>))O NOT EXPECT TO PAYIJIVIDEi'\'DS IN TIlE FUfURE. ANYRETVlli'l" ON INVESThIENT
MAY BE LIMITED TO TIlE YALUE OF OUR COMMON STOCK.

We have never paid cash dividends on ourcollllllon stock and do 110t anticipate paying cash dividends in the fureseeable fbture. 'l1le payment ofdivilends on our conllmn stock
wiII depend on eanIings, financnl condition and other bllSiness and economic mctors affecting it at such time as the board ofdirectors Imy consider relevant.

EFFORTS TO COMPLYWITH RECENTLY ENACrED OJANGES IN SECURITJF.,S LA'''S AND REGULATIONS WILL INCREASE OUR COSTS AND
REQUIRE ADDITIONAL MANAGEMENT RESOURCES, AND WE STILL MAY FAIL TO COMPLY.

As directcd by Scction 404 aftlle Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002, the SEC adopted nlEs requiring public companies to inchKle a report oflllHlagemcnt on the company's i11temal
controls over mJancnl reporting ill their alUlUal reports on Fonn lO-K.. In additbn, the public accollntillg fll1n auditing the company's financi:ll statcn~nts IlRlSt attest to and report
on Imnagen~nt's assesstn:nt ofthe etrectiveness ofthe company's intemal controls over financial reporting are lUlable to conchlde that we llave effective intemal controls o\'Cr
IDlancial reporting or ifour independent auditors arc lUlablc to provne us with an tUlqualificd report as to tlle eflCctr.'Cness ofour intenlal controls O\'Cr financhl reporting as required
by Scctbn 404 oftile SarbaIles-Oxley Act of2002, iJl\'Cstors couId lose confidcnce in tile relhbility ofour financnl statenl;:nts, which could result ill a dccrease in tile value ofour
scelIfities.
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WE ISSUED A SERIES OF 12% SENIOR SECUUED CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES IN TilE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL Ai\IOUNT OF S4,200,OOO, ALL
OFWIIICH ARE CURRENTLYHELD nYVICIS CAPITAL MASTER FUND, AS FOLLOWS:

$1,000,000 is due on September 10,2010,
$ 500,000 is due 011 September 10,2010,
S 600,000 is due 011 January 30, 2011,
S 500,000 is due on January 30, 2011,
S 500,000 is due on July 20, 2011, and
$1,100,000 is due on Scptember 30,2011,

Pa)'mellt on all of OUl' secured debentures is secured by a lien in all of 0111' assets. Ifwc fail to l'epa)' thc secured debentures 011 their I'eSpeCtivc matUlily datcs 01' if
an event of default OCC1ll'S under the secured debenture for an)' other l'eaSOIl, it may l'eSUIt in a matetial ad\'el'se cffcct 011 our operating l'eSUItS and financial
condition as Vids Capital i\lastcr Fund ma)' foreclose 011 our assets in an effort to be repaid amounts due IInderthc secured dcbentures. Additionall)', if we seek to
prepay the secUl'ed debentlll'es, we must pay a pl'epa)'mellt penalty equal to 110% of the then outstanding plincipal, plus all other amounts due.

The followingewnts constitute e\'ellts ofdcmultmlder the secured debentures held by Vk:is Capital Master Fmld: (0 failure to pay any interest or principal pa)'lYCllt \vhen due; (iJ)
fuiture to observe any covenant cOlltailed in the secured debenture or the purchase agreerrcllt that we executed in cOImection with the ksuance ofthe secured debentufC; (iii) the
occlirrence ofan cvent ofdefuult by lIS under any other Imterill agreement or lease; (iv) enb)' ofajudgment against lIS in excess of$150,OOO; and (v) the appoinbnent ofa
recei....er, the fiJingofbankruptcy by us, or ifwc otherv.·ise become insolvent. Additionally, ifwe seek to prepay the secured debentures, we mISt pay a prepayment penalty equal to
110% oftlte tlten outstanding principa~ plus all other am:HUlts dllC, 'Ilte secured debcntures contain negative coyenants that prolnbit tIS from takilg certain corpomte actKJns
without tlte prior mitten cOllSent oft1te llOkier oftlte secured debentures, Vick Capital Master Fund, We Calmot take the fullowillgactK:l1ls without Vieis Capital Master F1Ulds'
consent while the secured debentufCs ren~in olltstanding: (0 in\:Uf allY additbnal indebtedness or allow any lien to be fred against our assets, except in certain limited instances; (it)
an'Cnd our articles ofincorpomtion or bylaws ina nnnner that adversely etrects the holder OfOUf secured debentures; (lit) repay, repurchase or othcn\'ise acquire more than a de
minimis number ofshares ofour C0l1111lJn stock or connmn stock equivalents from any security IlOlder, except in certainlinited instances; (iv) enter into any tmnsactons with our
executive ofOCers, directors or affilrates; (v) increase our executiye ofikers' salary or bollllSlmre than 15% from 'what 'was paid in the previollS year; or (vi) pay cash dividends or
distributions on any ofour equity security,
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Item 2. Propertics

DcsCliption of propertics

Our princq)alexeclltr.'e offices arc located at 1100 NW 163rd Drive, Miun~ Florida 33169. TIlis ofOCe COllS~ls ofapproxinnteb' 1,000 square reet, which we rellt ror $8,975 per
Ilk:mth. Future minimum paym:nts rorthe year ending September 30,2010 is $107,700. Our lease tenninates August 31, 2010. TIlis mcUny is suitable for our purposes and ~

e]l.~cted to accommodate our needs ror thc foreseeable filture.

IntercOimcction Leasing Agreements

TIle Company will be entering into lease arrangen-cllts to provide interconnection scrvx:cs in 1l1ultiple states. "Interconnection services" is defined in the Telecommunkatons Act of
1996 (tile "TcleconnnunicatiollS Act') as the linking oftwo telecommuni::ation systems so that users ofeither systenltmy ut~[ze tlle system components ofthe other. Pursuant to the
FCC niles implen~nting the TelcconulltUlications Act, we negothte interconnection agreen~nts with incmnbent local exchange carriers to obtain access to fucaitbs. Facilities leasing
occurs where OIle net'Nork scTVt:e providcr leases the fucilities ofanother network service provider to provide services to end users. We currently have executed two
interconnection leasing agreell~nts and are negotiating an intercOlUlection leasing agreerrcnt with olller nnjor hostingibandwthh conWanies. Our currenl intcrcOIUlectklllleasing
agre~mel1ts are with Quest Connmmkations and AT&T. Too agreerrcnts relate to mcilities located or to be located in the fullowing states:

Alabann Georgia Massachusetts New Mexico South Dakota
Arizona Idaho Minnesota New York Texas
Arkansas Illinois Montana North Carolina Utah
Califumia Indiana Nebmska North Dakota Vcnront
COlUlectkut Kansas Nevada Ohio Washington DC
Dcla"'llre Kentucky New Jersey Oregon Washington
Florida Mal)'land New York Pennsylvania Wisconsin

TIle agreen~ntswill grant us interconnection leasing rights in aU thirty five states in ",11ich we have obtained or are pursuing a CLEC lk:ellse. Ifwe enter lleW nurkets, we e),vecl to
establish interconnectbn agree\l'~nts with incumbent local exchange carriers on 8n individual state basis, as the Ileed arises.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From tin-c to tine, we nny becon-,;: involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings, ",11kh arise in the ordinal)' course ofbusiless. However, litigation is subject to inllerent
tmcertaillties, and an ad\'erse result in tllese or otller nntters nny ar~e from tin~ to time that 1my hann its busilless. We are current~' not av,rare ofany such legal proceedilgs or
clailns that tlley belie\'C will hm'e, i1tdividually or in tile aggregate, a Imterial adverse aflect on its bUSHleSS, financhl condition or operating rest~ts.

Item 4. Submission Of~lattel'S To a Vote ofSecmity Holdcl'S

Non'c,
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Item 5. :Mal'ket fol' registrant's common equity, rclated stockholder mattcl's and issucr purchases of equity

Our commm stock has been quotcd on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol "NTLK "since Scptember 15,2009. TIle fullowing table sets furth, for tile perklds indicated,
the l!ig!l and low bid prices orour conll.mn stock. These prices relIcct inter·dealer prkes, without retailtmrk·up, mark-do\\11 or cOIlYnission, and nnynot represcnt actual
transactions.

Fiscal Year 2008

First Quarter
Second Quarter
TIlird Quarter
Fourth Quarter (through Decembcr 14,2009)

Diyidends

High
NlA
NlA
$1.50
$1.20

Low
N/A
N/A

$0.70
$0.20

We have never pail cash dividends on our capital stock and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends with respect to those securities in the foreseeable firture. Our current
busilless plan is to retain firturo camings to finance the expansion and de\'elopn~nt ofOUT business. Any filture detennination to pay cash dividcnds will be at tile sole discretion of
thc Board ofDirectors and will bc dependent uJlon our finattc~1 condition, resulls ofopemtiotlS, capitalrcquirements and olltcr mctors, as our Board ofDircctors nn)' deem
relevant at that tum. Our Board ofDirectors has tile right to authorire the issuance ofprererred stock, witholrt fiu1her shareholder approYa~ the holdcrs ofVtilich nny ll<l\'e
prererences over the holders oftlle COITllmn stock as to the pa)11X':nt ofdivilends.

Holders

As ofSeptember 30, 2009, there were 56 registered hoklcrs or persons otherwke entitled to hold our COI1'DlK)n stock. TIle number ofrecord holders "''as detennilled from the
reco'rds ofour tratlStCr agcnt and does not include bcneficill OVt1ters ofCOIl1l.1'xm stock whose shares are IteJd UI tlte names of''arious security brokers, dcalers, and registered
clearing agcncies. 'Ilte transfer agent ofour conumn stock is FXielity Transrer.

Outstanding options, Wall1\nts and convcltible securitlcs

As ofSeptember 30, 2009, tbcre were 22,059,712 shares ofOUT common stock subject to outstanding Series A COl11l.IX}Il Stock Purchase Warrants, Series B ComnxlIl Stock
Purchase Warrants, Series C Connmn Stock Purchase Warrants and Series BD Connnon Stock Purchase Warrants.

As ofSeptember 30, 2009, there were 16,800,000 shares ofour COll'lfmn stock issuable upon conversion ofmit 12% Senklr Secured Convertible Debentures. TIte aggregate fuce
vahle annunt outstanding tmder Ollt 12% SenDr Secured Convertible Debentures is $4,200,000. TIle Debentmes cOIwert into shares ofour connnon stock at tlte oplbn ofthe
hold~r at $0.25 per share. Interest pa)'lllents are dlle quarterly. nte Debentures also contain filii rntcltet anti-dilution price protection.
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Secmities Authorized for Issuance Undel' Equity Compensation Plans

TIle tOlIowingtablc scts forth certail intOnmtion about the comn'Kln stock thatllny be kSllcd llpon tile exercise ofoptKlIls imder the cquity compensatbll plans as ofSeptetnber 30,
2009.

EQUITY CO~IPENSAnON PL\N INFOR~IAnON

Plan category

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

Total

Reeent Sales ofUnregistered Secmities

Nmnber ofsecuritks
to be issued upon

exerci5e of
outstanding optbns,
warrants and rights

(a)
-0-

-0-

-0-

Weighted avemge
exercise price of

outstandingoptbns,
warrants and rights

(b)
-0-

-0-

-0-

Nimmcr ofsecurit~s
rennining available tOr

future issuance under equity
compcnsatim plans
(exchtding securit~s

reflected in COllU11l1 (a)

(e)
-0-

-0-

-0-

Unless otherwise noted, tile issuances noted below arc all cOllsllered exempt fromregi<;tratbn by reason of Scctbn 4(2) oftile Securities Act ofl933, as anleltded.

Share-based payments employees and consultants:

On September 10, 2008, we issllcd 6,000,000 shares ofcommon stock to our Ilew nnnagen"Cnt team in cOlmection with the Interlink Asset Group acqnisition (see Note 4). lllCse
shares are compensatory in nature and are nI1~' vested. We have valued the shares at $0.25, consistent with mir vatue measurements used else\\1lCre in our aecotUlting.

Oillcer

Anastasios KyriakKles, CEO

Nicholas KyrnkKlcs

Ke'~teth Hosfeld, EVP
Leo Manzcwitsch, CTO

Guillem10 Rodriguez, CFO
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Shares

2,100,000

600,000

1,100,000

1,100,000

1,100,000

6,000,000



Share-based payment for goods and sct"ices to 1l00HllIplo)'ces:

During the year ended September 30, 2008, we issued 2,150,000 shares ofconnnoll stock to 1101~empJoyee5 for goods and seMcs.

COllStUtantIProvider

FAMALOM, LLC
Deccmbra Diamond
John Clarke
Deadalus Consulting, Inc.
RonRoule
Iseal Aponte

On July 9,2009, we issued 1,000,000 shares ofOlIf common stock to non-employees tor goods and services.

ConsultantIProvider

OmniRelimt

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

As a snnIler reporting company, \ve are not required to include disclosure pUrsualltto this Item

Item 7. ~[allagcment's Discussion and Anal)'sis of FilJallcial Condition and Results ofOpemtiolis

Shares

450,000
360,000
100,000
90,000

1,000,000
150,000

2,150,000

Shares

1,000,000

111is discussion and analysis ofour financial condition and results ofopemlions contains KlTward-looking statements that involve rEks and uncertainties. We have based these
furward-Iooking statements on our current eXlJecfations and projectims oftilture events. However, our actual results could dITfur nnterhlly from those di'icussed herein as a result
ofthe risks that we mce, including but not limited to those risks stated in 'Risk Factors," or mult)' assumptions on our part. In addition, the fullowing discussion should be read in
cOlliwlCtion with the audited financel statements and the rented notes thereto -RlCluded elsewhere in thE Annual Report.

Background

Prior to September 10, 2008, we were engaged in the development ofadvertising services and stratcgies. OJl Septembcr 10, 2008, our Illinagement and Board ofDirectors
committed to the discontinuancc and disposal ofOlrr advertising business. We disposed ofthis asset to bc able to concentrate our efIDrts exclusively on the deplo)1n.:mt oftlle
TK6000 Prodnct Offering. We concluded lint thc advertising business constituted a component ofour business and have presented the mm in the accompanying financial
staterr£nts on the basis that (a) the operations and cash flows ofthe componcnt have been eliminatcd from Olrr ongoing operations as a result ofthe disposal transaction and (b) we
have no signiOCant continuing involvenx:nt in the operations ofthe componcnt after the disposal transaction. On September 10,2008, wc sold the advertising business resultilg in a
gain on sale of$168,083.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Wc have prepmcd om financial statements as a going concern Howcver, v...e are engaged in dcveloping om network infrastmcture and ncw products and services. During the year
end@d September 30, 2009 and 2008, we generated net losses of$2,737,817 and $2,009,907, respectively. We used cash in our operations in the am:nmts of$1,715,260 during
year ended September 30, 2009 and $110,508 for the period ended September 30, 2008. Olrr Imnagemenf is currently addressing these conditions and trends, as mrr executive
nnnagement team has raised $3,100,000 and $1,100,000 dlrring fiseatyear September 30, 2009 and 2008, respect1\oely, in comoertiblc debcntures and warrants fitlallCing.

As ofSeptember 30, 2009, ·we had cash on hand of$ 1,007,366.
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Statement ofcash flow data:

Net cash provided (used) in operating activities
Net cash provkled (used).in investing activities
Net cash provklcd (used) in financmgactr.1ties
Net cash provided (used) discontinued operations

September 30,
2009

(1,715,260)
( 70,535)

2,453,700

September 30,
2008

(110,508)
534,112

(80,811)

Our largest operating e.\.penditures currently consist ofthe 1OUowing iten}): $14,500 per month on leasing our corporate office space and network opemtional centcr (NOC) and
includes our base rent and assochted utility e.\.])enses and $62,000 per m:mth on payroll We do not anticipate that our leasing costs WIll change during the ne.\.112 months.

OUrCtUTcnt long tenn business plan contemplates acquiring thc ongoing business ofrelated compancs, either through assct acquisitKlIls, consolkJatiolls or mergers.

We tllITently have the fullowing outstanding warrants:

• Series A Comrron Stock Purchase Warrants outstanding entitling the holders to purchase up to an aggregate of3,099,712 shares ofour conlloon stock at an exercise
pri.:e of$0.25 per share;

• Series B COlllloon Stock Purchase Warrants outstanding entitling the holders to purchase up to an aggregate of6,000,000 shares ofonr COlllnXlll stock at an exercise
pri.:e of$0.50 per share;

• Series C Comrron Stock Purchase Warrants entitling the holders to purchase up to an aggregate oflO,800,000 shares ofour connoon stock at an exercise pri.:e of
$0.50 per share;

• Serks BD Connoon Stock Purchase Warrants entitling the holders to purchase up to an aggregate of 1,080,000 shares ofour cOUllmn stock at an exercise prk:e of
$0.50 per share; and

• Serks BD Common Stock Purchase Warrants entitling the holders to purclk1sc up to an aggregate oft080,000 shares ofour COll1lmn stock at an excrcise prk:e of
SO.25 per share.

Ifthc holders ofour Series A, S, C and BD Connoon Stock Purchase Warrants exercise these warrants, we will receive aggregate proceeds of$12,574,036. However, we cannot
provide anyassllrance that the Seres A Comnxm Stock Purchase Warrants, the Sercs B COlllllDIl Stock Purchase Warrants, Series C COll1lmn Stock Purchase Warrants or
Serks BD Comnon Stock Purchase Warrants wIll be exercised.

BOlnm111g Arrangcments

12% Scnlor Sccured Con\'cl1lble Debentlll\'s

We issued a series ofl2% Senior Secured Convertible Debentures in the aggregate principal moountof$4,200,000, all of\vhk:hare currently held by Vi.:is Capital Master Flmd,
as 1Ollows:

0 $1,000,000 is due on September 10, 2010,

0 $ 500,000 is due on September 10,2010,

0 $ 600,000 is due on JannaI)' 30, 2011,

0 $ 500,000 is due on Jamuuy 30,2011,

0 S 500,000 is due on Ju~' 20, 2011,and

0 $1,100,000 i5 due 011 September 30, 201l.

Each debenture bears interest on the principal alOOtmt outstanding and tlllpaki from tilre to tin~ at a rate of12% per anlllun fromthc datc ofksuance tmtil pail. ill fiIlL 111e
debenhrres convert i11tO shares ofotff connnon stock at the option ofthe holder at $0.25 per share. TIle debentures are secured by a lien in allonr assets.

TIle following eOllStlute events ofdefauh under the secured debentures held by Vilis Capital Master Fund: (Q -fuihrre to pay any interest or principal payment\vhen due; (iI) failure to
observe any covenant contained in the secured debenture or the purchase agreement that we executed in connection with the issuance ofthc secured debennrre; (ill) tile occurrence
ofan event ofdefault by us WIDer anyolher nnterhlagreell'X:l1t or lease; (iv) entry ofajudgrrcnt agaillst us in excess of$150,000; and (v) tile appointJl'X:i1t ofa receiver, the filing of
bankmptcy by us, or ifwc othclwt>e beCOll'X: insolvent. Additionally, ifwc seek to prepay the secmed debentures, we must pay a prepa)ll'X:l1t penalty equal to 110% ofthe tlten
outstanding principal phIS all other amnmts dlte.
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TIte debentures contail filll catcltet anti-dilutbn prkc protectbn. TIte secured dcbcntures contain negative covenants that prohibit us from takingcertail corporate actbns without
thc prior writtcn consent ofthe holder oftlte secured debentures, Vi:is Capital Master Fmld. We cannot takc thc following actions without Vieis Capital Master Ftulds' consent
wllll9 tlte secured debentures rennin outstanding: (i) incur any additKlIlal illdebtedness or allow any lien to be fikd against our assets, except in ccrtailllimited instances; (D) anlelld
our arti:les ofincorporatbn or byla\\'S in a malUter that adverse~' effects the holder ofom secured debentures; (ill) repay, repurchase or otherwise acquire nme than a dc minimis
ntunber ofshares ofour common stock or common stock equivalents from any security holder, except in certaiulimited instanccs; (iv) enter into any transactions with our executr..e
officers, directors or a(fiJiltcs; (v) increase our executr..'e officers' salary or bonus Imre than 15% from what\vas paid il the previous year, or (vi) pay cash dr..<idcllds or
distributions on any ofour equity security. We are currently in complilnce with all restrictr..,c covenants.

Results ofOpcmtions

Compalisoll - fiscal years ended Septembcr30, 2009 and 2008

Re\:enues: Our operating income anXllll1ted to $115,571 fur the fiscal year cllded September 30, 2009 as compared to $0 fur comparable period 2008. TIte increase il.1rcvcnues
relates to establishing our operating architecture mld cOlnmencDlg rcvenue producing actr..1tbs.

Cost ofsalcs: Our cost ofsalcs mWlUlted to $118,563 fur the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 as compared to SO for compamble period 2008. TIle increase in cost of
sales relates to cstabli5hing our operating architectuml and commencing revelllie producing activikls.

A(l\'crtising: Our advertising e;-'1>enses ammnted to $444,249 fur fiscal year ellded September 30, 2009 as compared to $0 fur compamb~ perbd 2008. 11te breakdo\\110f
our advertising e;-'1JCllse is as fullo\'ls:

Septcmber 30,
2009 2008

InfulYCrdl1/productioll time
Medn and otllers
Total

$

$

350,000 $
94,249

444,249 ;;,$====

Compensation and Benefits: Our compensation and bellefits c;-'1Jense mmunted to $446,807 fur fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 as compared to $1,544,701fur tlte
period ended September 30, 2008. 11lis amolmt represents !lonna} salaries alld wages pan to l1nnagerrcnt members alld employees. During September 30,2008, we nnde
payments to officers in the anmmt ofSI,500,OOO reported as share-based compensatKlJI.

Professional Fees: Ourprofussional fees mmlll1ted to $294,425 fur tlte fucalyear ended September 30, 2009 as compared to S562,500 for tile period ellded September 30,
2008. 111is mmlmt inchldes nomnl payments and accmals fur legaL accOlmting and other proressionalservices.

Depreciation and Am0l1ization: Depreciltion mld mmrtization amOlUlted to S358,244 rortlte fiscal year ellded Septen'ber 30, 2009 as compared to $14,625 for tIle period
ended September 30, 2008. TIlCse anxnmts represent anmtizatkm ofour Iong-li\'ed tangible alld intangible assets Ilsing straight-line n~thods mld lives commensmate with tlte
assets' rennining utility. Our Iong-lin:d assets, both tangible and intangible, are subject to alUlIIal impairment rcvk::\\', or nure frequently ifcircmnstances so warrant During the fucal
ycar ended September 30 2009, wc did not calculate or record impairnx:nt charges. Howcyer, negative Irellds il our business alld our inability to rrcel our projected fltture results
could gr..'e rise to impairn~nt charges in fiIture peruds.
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Research and Development and Sofu"'lue Costs

We eX'}lense research and developn'K:llt ex'}lenses, as these costs are incurred. We accollnt rorour oflering-related software de\'e!opment costs as costs incurred intemal~' in
creating a computer software product and arc charged to ex-pense when inclUTed as research and deYelopment tmtil teclmobgical reasibility has been establilhed fur the product.
Technoklgeal reasibility i<; established upon completion ofa detail progmmdesign or, in its absence, completim ofa working tmdeL At this ture our main product TK6000 is:
being SOkIUl the market place. TItererore, research and de\'eklpment cost reported in our financill statCirents relates to pre - nnrketing cost and are expensed accordingly.

Components ofResearch and development
Product deveklpment and engineering
Payroll and beltefits
Total

September 30,2009
$ 201,436

212,998

$ 414,434

September 30,2008

$

$

General and Administrative Expenses. Geneml and administrative expenses amounted to $383,659 fur the fueal year ended September 30, 2009 as compared to S49,737fur
the perbd ended September 30, 2008 and consisted ofgeneral corporate expenses and certain other start up expenses. General corporate eX'})enses uteluded $165,716 in
occupancy costs fur the fiscatyear ended September 30, 2009 and $43,753 fur sarro the period ended September 30, 2008. We have expercnced a recent iterease Ul our
general and administrative costs primarily because ofproressional accowtting and. legal tees inctUTed in cOlUlection with the preparation and. fitingofour registration statenx:nton
Fonn S-I. We believe that t1tese increased costs are associlted with our effOrts to become a pubt~ company. However, our administrative and oyemll gelteral costs will continue
to remain high now that our registration statement Ins been declared etrectlre. Our costs associated with legal and accounting fees wtll rennin higher than Illitorical mmtmls
because, as a reporting company, v...e are required to comply with the reportulg rcquirements oftlle Securities and. Exchange Act of 1934. TIlis involves the preparation and filing of
tlte quarterly and annual reports required lUlder the E.xchange Act as \'...ell as the aliter fitilg requiren~nts fOlUId. Ul that Act.

We W:iII. also DtellT additkmalexllenses assocnted with the sef\i:es provided by our transfer agcnt. In additbn, to the work we are present~' doing, we will need to fucus om titre
and. Cltergy to complying with tlte Exchange Act. 11tis \\'lll detract from our ability and cfforts to deveklp and market OllT products and servi:es. We anticipate DlClUTilg these
additional expenses related to beulg a pubfu company without receiving a substantial DlCrease in revenues assocnted with this undertaking.

OIIT general and administrative expenses fur the fiscalycar elxled September 30, 2009 and 2008 are made up ofthe fulbwilg items:

Items September 30, 2009 SeptenIDer 30, 2008

Rent mxl occupallCy
Taxes and licenses
l"elecommmicatbn
Travel
Other

Total

$

s

165,716 $ 43,753
99,903
13,660
18,277
86,104 5,984

383,659 $ 49,737

Interest Expense: Interest e;\llellSe amounted to $533,171 fur the flScat year ended September 30,2009 as compared to $25,470 !Or the period ended September 30, 2008.
Such amount represented (i) stipulated Dtterest lUlder our aggregate $4,200,000 mce ,'Uhle convertible debenhlTes, (i1) the related amortization ofpremitulli and discounts (iii) the
amortization ofdetcrred finmtee costs. Aggregate premiums continue to be credited to interest expellSe over tJte tenn ofthe debentures mitg tIle enectin~ interest Il-cthod.
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DeJi\'ative Income: Derivative income anKllUlted to $128,646 for the fi'ical year ended September 30, 2009 as compared to $(7,800) for the period ended September 30,
2008. Such anmmt represents the change in fuir value offub~ity-classjfied ·warrants. Derr.'ative financial instnullents are carrkd as Ihbilit;es, at fair mhle, in our fmanehl statements
wnh changes reflected iiI income. In additim to the liability-classified warrants, wc also have certain compound derimti....e financial instnnDellts related to our $4,200,000 fuce vahle
convertible debcntures that had de minimus \'allies. Wc are required to adjust our warrant and compound deril'atives to fuir \'alile at each reporting period. TIle fuin'ahle ofOllf
warrant derr.'atj.,'e t5 largely based upon fluctuations in the Jhir \'altle OfOllf COllIDXlIl stock. TIle fuir valtle ofour compound dem'ativc t5 largely based lIpon estinntes ofcash flow
arising from tile derivative and credit~rkk adjusted interest mtes. Accordingly, the volat~ity in tllese lUlderlying valuation assumptions ,",til! have firture effects 011 our eamings.

Discontinued Operations: Income from discontinued operations anxllUlted to $186,128 fur tIle fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. Income fromdi-lcontinued opemtions
durilg 2008 is net of$168,083 rehted to tile gail on sale ofassets and $18,045 rehted to a gail on debt fbrgiveness ofan lUlfebted third-party. Prbr to its dkcontinuance, the
funner advertking busillesS was a nOI1-revenue producing de\'elopment stage enterprse. Dllfing these perkJds, tile discontinued bilSineSS incurred compensatbn and general
adn\inistratj.,oe costs. We have 110 continuillg invotverrcnt with that business.

Net Loss. l1le net loss amlllllted to $2,737,817 for the flscalyear ended September 30, 2009, as compared to a net loss of$2,009,907 fur tlle period ended September 30,
2008. The increase in net loss i'i prnmril)' due to start up e;\:penses assocntcd with IleW enterprise and compliance with regulatory requiren-cllts from the Security and Exchange
Conll11t<>sim.

Net Loss Per Common Share: Basic loss per connmn share represents Ollf net loss dj.,iied by ttle weighted average number ofconumn shares otrtstanding during tile perkld.
Diluted loss per common share gi\oes effect to all potentnlly diluti\'c securit;es. We compute the effects on diluted loss per COl11lmn sharc arisnlg from warrants and optkJns using the
treaslu)' stock method. Applying tllt5 method, 22,059,712 shares indexed to ....'arrants were excluded from Ollf computation becallSe tile eftect was anti-diluti...e. We computed ttle
effects on dihlted loss per cOlr.u:ron share arising from comoertw!e secllfities llSing tile if.comoerted Il-cthod. 'nle effects, ifanti-diluti\'e are exchKled. Applying this method,
16,8.00,000 shares indexed to our com'ertible debentures were e>..dKled fiomour computation because the eflCct was anti-dilutive.

Qllal1eriy results of operations

TIle fullowing table presents Ollf quarterly statement ofopemtions. We dcrived the infbnmtkJn from our llllaudited financcl statements which we bel~\oe have been prepared on
tile Satro basis as Ollf mKlited financial staterrents. 11ro operating results in any quarter are not Ilecessar~)' indkatil'e oftile results that nuy be e>..vected fur an)' filturc period.

Statement ofoperation data (unaudited): Dec. 31, 2008 March 31, 2009 JWle 30, 2009 Sept. 30, 2009
Operating revenues:

Product sales $ $ $ $ 115,571
Other

Ope'ratnlg e>..llenses:
Product cost ofsales 118,563
Genera~ adminstrati\-oe and other 358,185 293,552 423,698 908,139
Depreciation and mmrtization 66,724 66,835 134,264 90,421

Loss from operatkJns 424,909 360,387 557,962 1,001,551

Net loss $ 408,579 $ 371,666 $ 789,734 $ 1,167,838

Net loss per comm:m share:
Basic and dihrted $ 0.05 $ 0.04 $ 0.09 $ 0.13

Weighted - average C0l11lmn shares:
Basic and d~uted 8,749,800 8,749,800 8,749,800 9,015,553
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Contractual obligations

We lease our principal offi:::e space lUlder an operating lease agrcerrent. Rent and assoc~ted occl1pancye;\"}lenses fur the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 was 5165,716
and fur the period ended September 30,2008 "''as $43,753. MininltUllllOn- cancellable filture lease payn~nts as ofSeptember 30,2009, arc as fullows:

• Year ended September 30, 2010 $107,700

We have Vt'arrants outstanding to purchase 22,059,712 shares afoul' COillImn stock.

OIT~.nalance Sheet An'angements

None

Clitical Accounting Policies and estimates

Our accolUlting policies are di5cussed and SlUllimrized in Note 1 to our fnlancial staterrents. 11le fullowing describes our eritkal accOtUltillg polk:ies and cstinntes.

Critical Accounting Policies

TIlc'financial infumntion contained in our comparati\'e results ofoperations and Iquklitydr-ciosures has been derived from our mlallCial statell-cnts. 'Ole preparation ofthose
financial statem:nts in confonnity v'lith generally accepted accOlUlting principles requires management to Imke estinates and asswnptions tllat affect Ille anxllmts reported in the
financnl statcnxmts and notes. TIle fulk)\ving significant estimtes were rrade in tile preparatkm ofour financial stalen-cnts and should be considered wilen readilg our
Mallagcll"Cnt's Di5cussion and Analysis:

• Impairn-cnt ofLong-li\'ed Assets: Our teleconlilltllli:ations equipment, other property and intangible assets are nnterial to our mJancnl statements. Further, they are
subject to the potentnl negative effects arisilg from tcchnologkalobsolcscellCe. We e\'ahitlte our tangible and definite-Iircd iltangible assets fur impairment annMlIy or
nme frequently in the presence ofcirclUllitances or trends tllat nny be indkators ofimpamuent. Our evaluation is a two step process. 'lllC fust stcp is to compare our
lUldiscOlUlted cash flows, as projected over tile rennining useftl1lives oftlle assets, to their respective carrying \'alues. In the e\'ent tIlat tile carrying vanles are 1101

recovered by future IUldiscOlmted cash fhws, as a second step, we compare the carrying \'allleS to the related filir vahles and, iflower, record an impaim-cnt
adjustnx:nt. For plnposes offuir\'alue, we generally use replacement costs for tangible fu:ed assets and discounted cash flows, using risk-adjusted discOIUlt rates, fur
intangible assets. TIlese estilmtes are made by competent employees, using tile best a\'ailablc ilfunmtion, wxler the direct supervision ofour nnnagelY£nt.

• Intangible assets: Our illtangible assets require us to nuke subjective estinntes about our firture opcratiollS and cash flows so tllat we can e\'aluate the recoverability of
such assets. loose esnnnics consiler a\'<1i1able infonnatim mxl nnrket iIxlkators includillg our operatiomI history, our e;\vectcd contract perfunmnce, and c1lallges in
the industries that we serve.

• Share-based payl1-cnt arrangements: We currently intend to issue share-irxlexed payments ill filture perbds to employees and non-employees. TIlcre are nnny vahmtion
technques, such as Black~Scholcs-Merton yaluation Imdelthat\ve nnyuse to value share~indexed contracts, snch as "arrants and options, All such tecluIktlleS will
require certail asswl1ptions tlmt require us to develop ful'\mrd-looking infonnation as well as historkal trelxls. For purposes ofhistorical trends, \'ie Imy need to look to
peer groups ofcompanes mxl tile selection ofsuch groups ofcompanics is highb'sllbjccti\·c.

• Common stock valuation: Estimting the mir vallie ofour commm stock is necessmy in the preparation ofcomputations related to acquisition, share-based pa)1nent mxl
fimncing transactions. We believe Illat the most appropriate and relnble basis for common stock vahle is trading nnrket pri:es in an active mukel.

• Dcrivati\'(: Fimm:nl Instnnnents: We gellerally do not use deri\'alire finallCial iIlStnUl-cnts to hedge e:\vosures to cash·now, nlarket or foreign-currency risks. However,
we have entered into certain other financial instnllnmts and contracts, such as our secured convertible debenture and warrant fillancilg arrangements that are eitller (i)
not afforded equity elassificatbn, (iO embody r.isks not clearb' and closely related to host contracts, or (ill) nuy be net-cash settled by thc cOlmterparty. We are required
to earri:d as derivati\'C liabilities, at mir value, iIl our finallcialstatem::nts. The flit \'lilue ofsllare-indexed deri\'ati\'Cs will be signiocantly infhlenced by tile mil' value of
our common stock (see Comllxm Stock Valuation, above). Certain other elements offol'\\llrd-type deri\'atives are significantb' influenced by credit-adjusted interest
rates used iII cash-flow analysk Since ....'C are required to canyderr.'ati\'C financial inSlnurents at mil' vahle alxl nnke adjuslrrcnts through eaming5, our firture
profitability will reflect the infillellCeS arisilg from changes in our stock prke, changes :il interest mtes, and c1langes irl our credit standing.
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Rcvcnuc recognition

Operating revenue COIlSi'lt ofcustomer equipn~nt sales ofour Imin product TK6000, telecOIrnlxmkation servi:e revenues, shipping ano handling revenues.

Most all ofour opcrating revenues are generated from the sale ofcustomer equipll'Xlnt ofour nuill product the TK6000. We also derivc sCI"\ri:e reventlCS from per minute fees fur
intemational calls. Our operating revemlC i5 fiJlly recognized at the time ofour custon~r cqllipn~nt sale. TIle de,'£e provilcs for lift: time scrvk:e (oyer the life ofthe
devicc/eqtlipn~nt). Our equipnli.lnt k able to operatc within our networklplatfonnor over any other nctwork/platfonn TIIere is 110 nced fur nlCon'Xl allocatkm behveen our de,ri:e
and life tin~ senri:e proviled. TIro filii intrinsic valuc oftile sale is allocated to the device. TItercfore, we recognized 100% ofrcwllue at till~ ofcuston~r equiplr£nt sale and do
no allocate any incon~ 10 lire tin);: service provkled. Shipping and handling i5 also recognized at titre ofsale. Intemational calls are bil~d as camed from our
cust~Jrers. Illtemationalcalls are prepaid and customers account is debited as minutes are used and eanted.

InvenIOl)'

ItwelltOI)' COIlSi'itS oftlte cost ofcllston~r equipJrenl and i5 stated at tlte lower ofcost or nurket. At the present tin'C we do not provide fur inventory allowance ~ wc have not
e;.,:perknced any retums from custon~rs. As we contil1lte to sell our product we ",ill eVahl.1te tlte need for such an allo-wance.

I1l\'cntory

Producti\'e nllterial and suppl)es
Fnllihcd products
Total

$

$

September 30,
2009 2008

43,538 $
74,174

117,712

During the )"ear ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, in accordance with our lower ofcost or market analyses we dilnot recorded any lower ofcost or Imrket adjustments to
our fin~hed goods ul\'elltories.

Income taxes

We recognized deferred taxes for the expected tax consequcnces oftemporaly dilfcrences betwecn the tax bases ofassets and liabilili3s and tlteir reported mrowlts using tax mtes
in effi:ct fur the year sincc lite drrrerellCes are expectcd to reverse. We have recorded a '7lluatbn allowance on the assumption that we wm not havc anyfirture taxable incOire.

Net opemting loss cal1')'-fomards

As ofSeptember 30, 2009, we had net opemting loss cany-furwardS for US 1edeml and state tax purposes expiring at various times from years 2023 and 2024.
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Ueccnt accounting pronounccments

In JUlie 2009. TIle Financnl AccOlUlting Standard Board ("FASB") lisued AccOlUlting Standards Update No. 2009-01, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, whkh
establishes FASB Accounting Standards CodiOCatbn ("the CodiOCation'j as tile official single source ofauthoritative U. S, GAAP. All existing accOlUltillg standards are
superseded. Anotller accOlUlting guklance not included in tile Codifk:ation will be considered nOll- authoritatire. 11le CodiOCation also includes all relevant SEC guidance
organized using tile saJre topkal slmcture in separate scctbns v.rithin tile Codiocation.

Fol!?wing tile CodiOCation, tile FASI3 wm not lisue standards in tile funn ofStatements, FASI3 StaffPositiol1s or Emerging Issues Task Force Abstracts. In<;tead it will issue
Accollnting Standards Updates ("ASU") wloch will serve to update tile Codilkation, provide backgrOlUld infunmtim about tlle guilance and provile tile basis forconchLSiollS on
tlle changes to tile Codification.

The CodiOCation is not intended to change GAAP, but it will change the way GAAP is organized and presented. The Codificatbn is etrective for our fiscal year ended September
30,2009 financial staten~nts and tile principal:iJ.llpact on our financial statements is limited to disclosures, as all firture references to authoritative accOllllting literature will be
referenced in accordance with tile CodiOCatbn.

In December 2007, tile FASB revi<>ed the authoritaHre guidance fur business combinations. 'I1lli guidance establislles principles and requirements for how the acquirer in a bminess
combination recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the l.iabilit~s assumed and any non - controlling interest in the acquiree. 111ts
guidance changes tile aCCOllltting for business combinations in a nUlllberofarcas, including the treatll~ntofconlingent consileratK:m, pre- acquisition contingencies, transactbn costs
and restmcturing costs. In additbn, mmer tile new guidance, changes in tile acquired entity's deferred tax assets and uncertain tax positions after the measureJl~nt perbd "'111
inlpact income taxe;.,:pense. 'Illis guidance was effective fur fiscal year beginning on or afier December 15, 2008 and requires tlle il111~diate e;"'Pells:iJ.lg ofacquisitioll related costs
associated with acquisitbns completcd after December 31, 2008. AdoptiolloftIns guilance on October 1, 2009 had no impact on our resulls ofopemtions, and financtJI
positbll. However, we expect this guilance will affect acquisitions nnde thereafter, though the il1lpact will depcnd upon the size and nature ofthe acquisitbn.

In March 2008, tile FASB issued authoritative guidance on disclosures about derivati\'e instnllnents mm hedging activiti:s. 11tis guidance addresses enhanced di<>c1osure conceming
(a) the manner in whkh an entity lLSes deriY<ltives (aim the reaSOIlS is ILSes them), (b) tile nnl1ller in ",ilkh derivatives and related hedged item<; are accollllted fur and (c) the etrects
that derivatives and related hedged itenE have 011 an entity's financial positbn, financial perfunmnce, and cash flows. TI1is guidance was eJlcctive fur finallcnl staten~nts issued fur
fiscal years and interim periods beginllillgon or after November 15, 2008. Adoption ofthis guklallce dil. not have a nnterial impact 011 our financtJl positbn or results of
operations.

In June 2008, the FASB issued authoritative guidance on the treahl~nt ofparticipating securities in the calculation ofea01ing<; per shares ("EPS"). TItis gu(lance addresses whether
instmn~nts granted in share - based pa}'rr£nt transactions arc partk:ipating securities prior to vesting and, therefure, nced to be included in the eamings allocation il computing EPS
wtder the two - class n~thod. TIlt<; guidance was effective fur fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Adoptoll ofthis guidance did not have a nnterial unpact on
our results ofoperations and financial positbn, or on bask: or diluted ESP.

In April 2009, the FASB issued authoritative guidance on interim disclosures about mir value offinancial instnllnents. 111is guidance requires disclosures about fair vahle offinancnl
illslnunmts fur interin reporting periods as well as in annual financial statements tOr interim periods ermulg after .flUle 15, 2009. Adoption ofthis guklance had no eflect on our
results ofoperations offlnancial conditions.
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In May 2009, the FASB issucd authoritati\'e guklancc on subsequent events. 11115 guidance establishes general standards ofaccolmting fur and disclosure ofevents that occur after
the balance sheet date but befure financial statements are issued or are aWlil.1ble to be l5sllcd. 111is gllklance is cm:ctive fur interim or annual finanettl perklds ending after JlUle 15,
2009. Adoptbn Oftllis guidance did not have an B.llpaet on our results ofoperalbns or financni positbn.

In August 2009, lhe FASB updated its authoritati\'C guidance on mit value measurement and disclosures. 'Illls update provides amendments to reduce potentid ambiguity in financial
reporting when lreasuring tile mil' vahte ofliabilities. Among otlter provi5bns, this update provides clarifk:ation that in circumstances in \\11k:h a quoted prk:e in an active nnrket fur
tile klentk:alliability is not available, a reporting entity is required to Ireasure mir vahlc 1l'iing olle or more oftite vaRiation tec1mKtucs described in ASC Update 2009 - 05. ASC
Updatc 2009 - 05 \\111 become ellCcti\'C for our qllarter financial statements at December 31,2009. We have not yet detennilled the impact that flris llpdate 1m)' ha\'C on our
fillallcnl staten-.ents.

Item 7A. Quantitati't'C and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are a similer reporting company as defined by Rule 12b·2 ofthe Securities Exchange Act ofl934 and, as such, are not required to provite tile infOnmtbn willer this item

itemS. Financial Statement and Supplemental)' Data

TIle .financial statel'l"Cnts begin on Page F-l.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagrccments With Accountants On Accounting and F1nancial Disclosurc

None.

Item 9A(1). Conh'Ols and Pl'OcedUl\'s

Disclosurc contmls

We Jmintain "disclosure controls and procedures," as such tenn is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and I5d·15(e) miller the Securities Exchange Act of1934 (the "Exchange Acf), that
are designed to ensure that infunmtK:l11 required to be disclosed by liS ill reports tllat we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, swnnnrized, and reported
within the tm perhds specified in Securities and Exchange COmmisSkJll niles and fonns, and that such infomlatbn is accllllRllated and COllll.11lUlkated to our nnnageu-.ellt, including
ourChiefExecu!ive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls
and procedures, Imnagemelll recognized that disclosure controls and procedures, 110 Imtter hO\\' well conceivcd mill operated, can provile only reasonable, not absolute,
asslU'ance that tile objecti\'Cs oftlte disclosure controls mID procedures are 11-.e1. Additililally, in designing disclosure controls mID procedures, our ma1lagen-.ent necessarily was
required to apply itsjudgn-.ent in evaluating tIle cost-benefit reL1tK:lllship ofpossible disclosure controls and proccdures. 11le design ofanydisclosnre controls and procedures also is
based in part upon certain asslUllptions about tile likelihood offilture events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals wxler all
potential firture conditions.
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As ofScptcmbcr 30, 2009, wc carried out ancvuluatioll, wtder the supervision and with the partk:ipation ofour ChiefExecutive Offi::er and ChiefFinancnl Officer, oftlle
eficctiveness ofthe dcsign and operation ofour disclosurc controls mtd procedufCs. Based on this cvaluation, our ChiefExccutivc Ofikcr and ClilifFinancial O.lli:cr conchided that
our d~closure controls and procedures were not ellCcth'e in ensuring that inIDnmtion required to be disclosed by us in our period;; reports is recorded, processed, swrnmrized and
reported, v.ithill thc tine periJds specified fur each report mid that such infonmtion is acctmUihted mtd conllllUllk:ated to our nnnagcm:nt, including our principal executh-c and
principal financial officers, or persons pcrfonning similar fimctions, as appropriate to allow tin~ly decisbns regarding required discbsure.

In connectklll with the assessment described abo\-c, managelYCnt nentified thc fullowingcontrol defk:tences that represcnt nnterial weaknesses at Scptember 30, 2009:

• Due to thc Company's limited resources, the Company liaS insufli:ient pecsOlUlel resources mtd teclmical accow1ting and reporting expertise to proper~' address all of
thc accOlmtilg llnttcrs inherent in the Company's financial tmnsactbns. TIle Company docs not have a funmlaudit committce, and tIle Board does not ha.Ye a
financial e"..pert, thus the Company lacks the board oversight role within tile financial reporting process.

• The Company's small size and "one~pcrson" office prohlbits the segregation ofduties mid tile timely revbv ofaccounts payable, e"1Jense rcporting mtd i1\'cntory
managemznt and banking infonmtion.

Our ChicfExecutive Offi::er and ChiefFinancial Officer are in the process ofdetemtining how best to change our ClUTcnt systemand implement a nKlre effccth'C system to insure
that ilfonmtion required to be dficlosed in tIm mmnal report on Fonn lO-K has becn recorded, processed, sW11llnrized and reported accuratcly. Our management acknowledges
thc existence ofthis problcm, mtd intends to de,-cloped procedures to address thcm to the extent possible gr.'Cnlimitations in financial and manpower resources. While
management is working on a plan, no assurance can be ffilde at ths point that the iml'1euXlntation ofsuch controls and procedures will be completed ina tI1Xl~' Imllner or that they
will be adequate once implemented. Failure to develop adequate intemal control mtd hiring ofqualified accounting personnel ffilyresult in a ''rratcrhl weakness" in the Company's
intemal control renting to the above activit~s.

Managcmcnt rep0I1 011 intcl1JaI control ovcr financial repOIiillg

Our·nnnagement is responsible fur establishing and nnintainil.1g adequate intemal control over financing reporting fur our company. Intcmal control on:r financial reporting is
defined in Rule 13a -15(f)llnd 15d - 15(1) oftlle Secur~~s and E.xchange Act ofl934 as a proccss designed by or lOwer the supervision ofour principal executivc and principal
financial officer and cffi:cted by board ofdirectors, nnnagcn~ntmtd other pcrsOlUlel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability offinancial reportingmtd the
preparatbn offinancnl statements for external purposes in accordance with generally acccpted accolUlling principles and includes those polices and proccdures that:

• PertaIl to the Imintenance ofrecords that i1 reasonable detail accurate~' and fuirO' reflect tile transactions mtd disposition ofasscts ofthe company;
• Pro"ne reasOlk1ble assurance that transactions are recorded as nccessary to penni! preparation of financial statenXlnts in accordance with gcnemlly

accepted accOlUltI1g prilCiples, mid that receipts mid e,,;penditures are being nnde only in accordance with authorizations ofour nnnagen'£llt and directors;
and

• Pravne reasonable assurmlCe regardIlg prevention or ti1Xlly detection ofunauthorized acquisitbn, use or disposition ofcompany's assets that coukl havc a
Imterral effi:ct Oil the financial statements.
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Because ofthe inherent lintitations, inteml! control over financnl reporting nny not detect or prevent misstaterrents. Projections ofany evahlation ofeffectiveness to firture pcrbds
are subject to the risk that controls nny become inadequate because ofchanges in conditions, or tlmt the degree ofcompfunce with the polick:s or procedurcs nnydcterhmte.

Our rmnagerrent assessed the efrectivcncss ofour intcnml control over financial reporting as ofSeptember 30, 2009. In making this assessn'Cllt, our managcmellt used the critern
set furth by the Committee ofSponsoring Organinltions ofthe Tread\'o1lY Commission (COSO) in intenlal control- integratcd frall~work. Bascd 011 our assessn~nt, nnnagelYCnt
conchlded that as ofSeptember 30,2009, our intemal control over financial reporting is not efrective based on those critern.

In eonnectKm with the assesstrent described above, management kfentified the fOllowing control defi:::icnck:s tlmt represent nnterial weakncsses at September 30, 2009;

• Due to the Company's limited rcsources, the Company has insufflCk:nt persOlmel resources and technicalaccOlIDting and reporting e~:pertise to properly addrcss all ofthe
accolUltingnntters inherent il the Company's financial transactions. TIte Company does notllavc a funrol audit committee, and tlte Board does not Inve a firmncid
e),:pert, thus the Company lacks tlte board oversight role within tlte firmncnl reporting process.

• 11te Company's snnil size and "one~person" ofike prohibits tlte segregation ofdlrt~s and tlte tirely re\'~w ofaccolUlts payable, expense reporting and inventory
managen~nt and banking inronmtion.

Our ChiefExeclrtive OfOCer and ChiefFinancnl Officer are in tlte process ofdetennining how best to change our current s)'stemand inplctrent a more eJfective system to insure
that infunmtk)tl rcquired to be disclosed in tltis allnml report on Fonn lO-K has been recorded, processed, summarized and reported accurately. Our nlInagement acknowledgcs
the existence ofthis problem, and intends to developed procedures to address tltem to tlte e:-..ient possible givenlitnitations il finallcnl and nunpower resources. While
matmgemcnt is .....urking 011 a plan, no assurance can be made atthi; point that tlte implenlentation ofsllch controls and procedures will bccompleted ina tin);.':lynnlUlCr or tllat tlte)'
will be adequate once implemented. Failure to develop adequate intemal control and hiring ofqmlified aCCOltllting persolUteIlrrlY result in a "nnternl weakllCss" in the COlllpany's
intenlal control relating to tIte above activitk:s.

TItis annual report does not inchlde an attestation report oftlle company's registered pl1blk: accounting finn regardil1g intemal control over financial reportilg. Matmgement's report
was,not subject to attestation by tlte company's regktered publi:: accO\Ultilg finn pursuant to temporal)' mles oftIte Securities and Exchange Commisshn

Changes in Intcl1lal Contl'Ols.

During the three tmnths ended September 30,2009, I1tere were no changes il our intenlal controlovcr fUlancol reporting identffied in conncctbn with tIte cvaluathn required by
paragraph (t) ofRule 13a~ 15 or Rule 15d~ 15 that has nnter.ially affi:cted, or is reasonably likely to materially a:aect, our internal control over financ.ial reporting.

Item 9 B. Other Information

None.

PaltIII

Item 10. Directors, executive officers and corporate gOYCl1lancc

TIte fullowing table sets furth certain infunmtion with respect to each ofour directors, exectrtive officers and key employees as ofScplcmber 30,2009. 11Jeil' ages, positions, dates
ofinanl election or appointrrent, and the e:-"lJiration ofthcir tcnns are as fullO\vs:

Name Age Position Perbd served

Anastasios Kyriakkfes 61 Director, ChiefExectrtive OfOCcr, Secretal)' Sept. 2008 to present

KelUtethA. Hosfeld 58 Director, Exccutr.'e Vi::e President Sept. 2008 to present

Gumenm Rodriguez 61 Director, ChiefFinancial Omcer Sept. 2008 to present

Leo Manzcwitsch 46 Director, CloofTechnical Officer Sept. 2008 to present

Unless expressly indi::ated in tlte above table, each director and officer \Vm serve in these capacit~s until their successors are duly elected, qllalified and seated in accordance with
the Company's Artk:les ofIncorporation and Bylaws.

28



BackgroulldofExecuth'e Officers and Directors

Anastasios KYI;akides,llirectOl~ ChiefExecuth'e Officer, Secretary. Mr. Kyrnkiies has served as a n~mberoftlle Company's board ofdirectors and as the Company's
ChicfExccuti\'e O:ffi::er and Secretary silCe September 2008. Mr. Kyrnkides received a Bachelor ofSckllCC in business from Florida Intematkma1 Uni\'ersit}' in 1975. In 1977,
he received a degree in investnllnt banking from the .Arrcrican Institute ofBanking. From 1979 until prescnt, Mr. KyriakkIes has consulted fur lIumerous companies in the areas
ofshipping, travel, banking and electronks. Mr. Kyriakiles beganilli career in the electronics de,'elopn-.;:nt fuId when, in 1979, he founded and served as Chainmn ofLexicon
Corporation, producer oftlle LK300, the fIrSt hand held electronic language translator whkh translated words and phrases into 12 ditrerent languages. Lexi:on was publkl)' tmded
on the NASDAQ, mIder thc s)1llbol LEAi, until it was ultinatelyacquired by NixdorfComputers of Genmny. Mr. Kyriakides v,.as also thc founder ofDelcoI' Industries,
established in 1980 in Hollywood, FlorKla.

DelcoI' was an electronics Imnumcturing fucility empbying over 150 employees to assenlble OEM products fur various electronics companies inchlding IBM uuinfrarre mId Gable
DivEion. In 1983, Mr. Kyriakides fomIded the Mylex Corporatkm to develop and produce the world's first haJId~hekl opti;;al scmmer and VGA card fur personal computers. As
thc President and Chairman, Mr. Kyrhkides gukled Mylcx from its beginning as a private company to its becomilg a pubic company traded on the NASDAQ mIder the stock
symbol MYLX ltnt~ it was acquired as a wholly ov.ned subsi:liary ofIBM (NYSE: IBM). In 1983, Mr. Kyrilkiles was tile KHUlder mId Chainn.111 ofTower Bank NA, a filII
seni:c cOllllrercill bank, with three ofOCes, headquartered in Dade CotUIt)', Florida. Me Kyriakides also has e:\icnsire e:\J}Crkncc in the cmise line mId travel llIdtlstr~s. Hi<; cmise
ship career started with Carnival Cnli<;c line out ofthe Port ofMiami, mId continued to a sllccessfiil start up with Tropi:ana Cruises; onc ofthe first gaming ships out ofthe Port of
Miauri. Mr. Kyriakides :IOtmded Regency Cmise Line ll11984, as the world's first publicly traded company in passenger shipping, and served as its Chainmn mId Secretary tUltil
1987. Mr. KyriakkIes also organized the successfitl start-up ofSea",itd. Cruise Line. In hi<; three years with Seawind Cruise Line, Mr. Kyriakides served as its fOunder, chairman,
chHexecuti\'e ofii:er mId secretary.

From 1994 to 1996, Mr. KyrnkKles sented as the Chairman ofMolltgoll~ry Ward Tra''el, a company created to provite filll trawl servkes to eight llullion Montgomery Ward
CustOIl-';:rs mId credit card holders. Immediately prbr to joining the Company, Mr. Kyriakides selTcd as ChiefExecutive Officer ofInterlillk Global Corporation from 19941Ultil
Septenlber, 2008. Interlink Global Corporatbll provided teleeommlUlications appli::ations utilizing hard",,,ue mId solhvare that enables its domestic mId worklwklc users to access
thc internet as a transmissim n~diwn fur plaCilg telephone calls.

Kenneth Hosfcld, Directol', Executivc Vicc President. Mr. Hosreld ,,,as appointcd to serve on the Company's board ofdircctors in September 2008. Mr. Hosfuld has oyer
twenty~two years ofinfemationalsalcs, marketing, and business mUlagcllllllt e"'lJerknce in the telccoullmmkatbns indust!)'. Most reccntb', Mr. Hosfuld served as a I'rembcr ofthe
board ofdirectors and the exccuti\'c vi:e president:lOr Interlink Global Corporation (OTC: ILKG), a provilerofpri\'llte mId pubIC telcCOllll111mkatKm network and ilfemet
seni::es. Pebr to jOililg Interlink, Mr. Hosreld COMfOluIded NetExpress. He has also served as the Regional Director ofBrazil, the Andinos, and tile Caribbean for Tellabs, Inc., a
global suppoor to the dynamic telecoll1lmmicatbns industry that designs, Immfu1Chlres, nurkets alId servi:es vok:c, data a yneo transportatbn tools and networks. While with
Tellabs, Mr. Hosfeld secured that company's first "turn-kc)?' contract Vtilich involved a complete, fitlly managed network deploYJl\:nt including all products and seni::es and projcct
financing. He also opcned Telhbs' offi:::es in Brazil and rcgukuly exceeded revenue targets, Priorto that, Kenneth "'l1S Vk:e President ofNera Latin Ameri::a, a subsidiary ofNcra
Telccommmocations (funnerly ABB), a telccolllmunK:ations alId IT solutbns provider fur Im::ro",'u"e, sateJlite, wireless broadband access, networking alId broadcasting.
Mr. Hosfcld had fidl production and logi'itic responsibility fur the Latil Amcei::an region, inchiding responsibilities fur opening offices throughout Latin Arrcrka incilIding such
cOlmtries as Bmzil, Colombia, Mexk:o, and Venezuela, While with thc company, Mr. Hosfcld was also able to penetrate the Mexi:an and ChJ1ean Imrkets. Prior to hi> work with
Ncm Latin America, Mr. Hosfuld was responsible fur similar product sales in Afrk:a and :i1 China. Mr. Hosfeld speaks over six.lallguages itchi<ling fluent Spanish and Porhlguese.
11l1ll~dntely prior to jo:ililg the Company, Mr. Hosfuld served as Executive Vice President oflnterlink Global Corporation from 1994 mltil September, 2008. Interlink Global
Corporatkm proviled telecomnuUlications applicatbns utilFzing hardware mId sofl"'l1re that enables its don~stic and worldwne users to access the intemet as a tmnslllt;sbn
nx:ditlll1 for placing telephone calls.
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Guillermo Rodriguez, DirectOl; Chief Financial Office I'. Mr. Rodriguez \\11.S appointed to the Company's board ofdircctors in September 2008. Mr. Rodriguez is: a certifi:d
public accOlmtant. He eanted his Bachelor's Degree with a nnjor in accOtmting and business adnililistration from the UniversityofMnmi in Coml Gables, Plorila. Mr. Rodriguez
earned hi; Masters ofBusiness Adrninistration from No\'n Sotrtheastem University in Dav~, Florila. He has eXiensive accmmting and nnanchlreporting exper~nce in banking, real
cstate brokering, property nnnagenXlnt and the te1ccommtUlications industry. Prior to joining the Company in September 2008, Mr. Rodriguez worked fur Interlink Global
Corporation from 2005 lmtil Septcmber 2008 and as controller and financnl o-flker for l.and Cellular Corpomtbn from 2003 tutti 2005. Prbr to that, Mr. Rodriguez served as
controller and filancnl offICer ror Brerrcr Real Estate, CSW Associates and Consolilated Bank, N.A. !vir. RodrlStICZ also "urked as an auditor and investigator fur the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Mr. RodrigtlCz is fluent in Spani-lh.

Leo Manze"itseh, Director, ChiefTechnology Offiee):.Mr. Mml7.ewitsch' has over eighteen years ofexpcrience in the teleconIDlluocations industry. He recev,'cd his Masters
in Electronics Engineering from the University ofBuenos Aires, Argentina in 1991 and a degree in mechan~s from the Argentinean Natklnal School ofTec1mcaI Educatbn, Buenos
Aires in 1981. Befure joining the Company as a director and the Ch£fTechnology OffICer in September 2008, Mr. Manzewnsch' held posiliollS in sales support nnnagen~ntwil:h
UT Starcom, a global leader in intemct protocol television, IP'rV solutiollS, IPTV products, VoIP, mobile intenlet and intenlette1c\>kion. Mr. Hosteld has also worked as tile
Business Devclopn~nt Manager for STRATEKGY Telecom Sohrtbns. Mr. Manzewnsch' has also lleld various positions atNEC Corpomtbn, whk:h proviles IT IleP.vork
integrated solutions and semk:ondllctor sohrtions, including IleW product engilleer and Ilnnager ofllew product nnrkeling. From 2000 unt~ 2006, Mr. Manzewitsch' senoed as the
Marketing Manager fur Telhbs Intemational in their South A1rerbn nnrket. In 2006, Mr. Manzewitsch' jOtrled Interlink Global Corporation, where lle senoed as tlle Chief
T'cchnobgyOfiker tmtil he jODled the Company in Septembcr, 2008. Mr. ManzcwItsch' is fluent in Spanish.

Significant employees

Oiller thallthc executive ofOCers nan'X:d abo\oe, the Company does not Illwe any "significant eUlpJo)oees."

Family relationship

None.

hlYol\'ement in legal proceedings

No ofii::er, director, promoter or siglliocant employce has been involvcd in the last five ycars in anyofthc tollo"mg:

•
•
•
•

Committees

Any banknlptcy petilbn filed by or against any busincss ofwhich such person was a gcneral partner or execlrtire ofOCer either at the tine ofthe bankmptcy
or within w,oo ycars prior to that titre;
Any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending critlili181 proceeding (excluding traffi:: violatbns and other minor offenses);
Bcing subject to any order, judgment, or dccree, not subscquently re\oerscd, suspended or vacated, ofany court ofcompetentjurisdk:tion, penmlleutly or
tcmporarily enjoying, barring, suspending or otherwise liniting his involvenXlnt in any type ofbusiness, securitk:s or banking activities; and
Being tOwld by a court ofcompetcntjurisdiction (in a civil action), the Commission or the Commodity Futures Trading ConIDllision to have violated or slate
securit~s or connnoditics law, and the judgJlXlnt has not been revcrsed, suspelldcd or \~cated.

Our busirless, property Rlld affuirs are nnnaged by or under the direction oftlte board ofdirectors. Members ofllte board are kept infunncd ofOUT busittess through dseusshn with
the chiefexecutive and financial offi::ers and otller officers, by rcviewing nnterials proviled to thcm and by participating at n'X:ctings ofthe board and its cOlllmittees. We presently
do not have any C01Ul.l1iltces ofollr board ofdirectors, howcvcr, our board ofdircetors intends to establish varklns COnll.llittecs at some point in the near ftlture.
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Employment Agl'(~ements

On May 6, 2009, the Company entered into an Employn-ent Agreem:mt with Anastasios N. Kyrfaki:les (the "Kyriakides Employl'oent Agreel'rcnt") pursuant to ....ili:h Mr.
Kyrhkidcs agrced to cOlltinue Illi servh as President and ChiefExecutive OfOCer ofthe Company through May 5, 2012.

Underthe KyrhkXles Emplo:;o1llent Agreerr£nt, Mr. Kyriaki:les' base salary is $150,000 per allmm), subject to annual increases attlte discretionofthe Board ofDirectors. In
addition, wIder the Kyriakiles Employment Agreement, Mr. Kyriakides is (a) eligible fur an alUmal perfonnance based cash bonus up to a nnximurnanllual award of$112,500 to
be detcnnined based upon profitabilityoftlte Company, (b) eligble to receive a Oltetime award on May 5,2012 ofshares ofconumn stock having a InL,imum vahle ofup to
$168,750 to be detennined based upon profitability oftlle Company during the 3 year period ending on May 5,2012, (c) entJ\led to receire heahh benefits 31Id life ill<;urallce
covemge, (d) entitled to receive a m::lIlthly car allowance not to exceed $500 a month, (e) eligible to receive oHler stock grants 31Id/oroptions to purchase shares oftlte Company's
COIlllIl)n slack in amounts and upon tenns as detemrined by the Company's Board ofDirectors fromtinle to tirlle TIte KyrnkKies Emplo)1'llent Agreetrellt nny be tenninated by
the Board ofDirectors at any tin~ for cause, provided that Mr. Kyriakides receives notice OfSllCh tennination and tails to cure the alleged bread!. Upon temunatioll by tile
COlupany without cause or resignalbn by Mr. KyriakXles fur good reason, Mr. Kyriaknes is entitled to recei-;e his base salaI)', as sevcrance, fur a 12 Imnth period.

Cmrcntly, with the exception ofMr. KyriakXles Employn~nt Agreement, all other employment with tile Company is at .....111 and Ilny be temlinatcd by either tlte employee or the
Company at anytirne. We rcquire each ofour executive o:fJk:ers to execute a Confrlentia1ily and Non-Competitklll Agreell-ent.

Compliance ,lith Section 16(a) of tile Exchange Act

Section 16(a) oftlte Sccurities Exchange Act of1934 requires our directors and executive officers mId persons who benelkilily ovm l1X1rc than ten percent ofa registered class of
our equity securities to file with the SEC initial reports ofoWltership mId reports ofchange ill oWltership ofconUllOllstock and ollter equity securities OrOUT c0lT4'any. Officers,
directors mId greater than ten percent stockholders are required by SEC rcgulations to fimlish us with copies ofall Section 16(a) fOnui tltey file. Based solely upon a review of
FOI1f6 3 and 4 and amendments tltereto fimlished to us wtder Rule 16a-3(e) durirlg the fIScal year ended September 30,2009, mId Fanus 5 and amendrrcnts tltereto firrrrnhed to
us with respect to tlte fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, "...e believe that dllfirlg the year ended September 30, 2009, our executive ofJk:ers, dircctors mId all persons 'who o....n
nl)TC than ten percent ofa reg~teredclass ofotrr cquitysecmities have complied with an Seclbn 16(a) filirlg requirements, except for tlte changes on holding; ofbcnefK:ial o....ners,
as set furth below: Anastasbs Kyriakides, Guillenm Rodriguez, Kenneth Hosreld mId Leo Manzewitsch each filed t1teir Fonn 34 days late. Ronald J. Rule, Jr. filed his Fonn 3 11
days late.

Codc ofEthies

We have adoptcd a Code ofEthics for our ofOCers, directors and employees. A copy ofthe Code ofEthics E. attached hereto as Exhibit 14.1 to this Annual Report on Fonn IO-K.

HCTl,lll. Executive compensation

Compensation of our executivc officel's

TIte following table contains compensatbn infunmtion fur our executive officers fur the fiscal years endcd September 30, 2009 alId September 30, 2008. No other ofiicer receired
compcl'lSation greater than $100,000 fur eitlter fiscal ycar. All oftlte infurrmtbn inchKfed in I1lli table reflects compensation eamed by tlte iIdividuals fur services rendered to our
Company mId all refercnces il tlte fullowing tables to stock awards relate to awards ofcommon stock grantcd by us.
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Common NOli-equity Nonqualified
Stock Option incentive plan Deterred

Nan~ and position Year Salary BOIlus awards awards corr.pcmation compensation Other Total

Robert Blank (I) 2008 $ $
Fom~r C.E.a.

RobinC. Hoover(2) 2008 $ $
Fonner C.E.D.

Anastasios Kyrnknes, 2009 $ 153,208 $ 153,208
Director, ChHExecutive OfOCer
(3) 2008 $ 8,000(4) $ 525,000(5) $ 533,000

Kenneth Hosreld, 2009 $ 96,000 $ 96,000
Director, Executi\'e Vice
President (9) 2008 $ 5,333(10) $ 275,000(11) $ 280,333

GuiUenno Rodriguez, 2009 $ 77,000 $ 77,000
Director, CloofF.inancnIOffk:er
(6) 2008 $ 4,000(7) $ 275,000(8) $ 279,000

Leo Manzev.:itsch, Fonner
C.E.O. 2009 $ 96,000 $ 96,000
Director, ChHTechnical Officer
(12) 2008 $ 5,333(13) $ 275,000(14) $ 280,333

Nicholas KyrnkKles, 2009 $ 48,452 $ 48,452
Marketing Director(I5) 2008 $ 2,222(16) $ 150,000(17) $ 152,222

(I) Mr. Robert Blank resigned as officer and member ofthe Board ofDiectors all Febmmy 19, 2008.

(2) Mr. Robin C. Hoover resigned as ofOCer and lrember ofthe Board ofDirectoTS on September 9, 2008.

(3) Mr. Kyriakides was appointed to serve as our ChicfExecutn.'e Officer 011 September to, 2008. All atnnmts reflected in this table are frolllthe date ofMr.
Kyriakides appointment 10 the end offiscal years.

(4) Mr. Kyrnkides annual salary is $175,000.00.

(5) 'Ille Board ofDireclors granted Mr. Kyriakiles a stock grallt of2,100,000 shares on September 30, 2008. TIlC stock has been valued at $0.25 per share.

•(6) Mr. Rodriguez was appointed to serve as ChicfFmncnl Officer on September 30,2008. An an))unts reflected in tht:; table are fiumthe dale ofMr. Rodriguez
appointment to tile end offiscalyears.

(7) Mr. Rodriguez annual salary t:; $80,000.00.

(8) TIle Board ofDircctors granted Mr. Rodriguez a stock grant of I, 100,000 shares on September 30, 2008. 'Ute stock has bcen valued at $0.25 per share.

(9) Mr. Hosfuld was appointed to sen'e as our Executive Vice President on September 30, 2008. An anXHUlts reflected in tltis table are from the date ofMr. Hosfeld
appointment to tile end offiscalyears.

•(10) Mr. Hosfukl annual sal<u)' is $96,000.00.

(II) l1le Board ofDircctors granted Mr. Hosteld a stock grant ofl ,100,000 shares on September 30, 2008. TIle stock has been vahlCd at $0.25 per share.

(12) Mr. Manzcwitsch was appointed to sen'C as our ChicfTechnology OJOCer on Septcmber 30, 2008. All mmlUlts reflected in thii table are from tllC date ofMr.
Mal1zcw~sch appointment to tile end offlScal years.

(13) Mr. Manzewltsch almual salary t:; $96,000.00.

(14) Tile Board ofDircctors granted Mr. Manzewitsch a stock grant oft,IOO,OOO shares on September 30, 2008. TIre stock has been valtlCd at $0.25 per share.

•(15) Mr. Kyriakides 'was appointed to serve as Marketing Director on September 30, 2008.

(16) Mr. Kyriaki:les annual salary is $61,000.00.

(17) 'I1re Board ofDirectOTS granted Mr. Kyriaki:les a stock grant of600,000 shares on September 30, 2008. TIle slock has been valued at $0.25 per share.
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Overview

TIle rollowing is a d-iscussbn ofour program fur compensating ollr nan'k'=d executive oflk:ers and directors. CUITCntly, we do not Im'e a compensation committee, and as such, our
board ofdirectors is responsible ror detennining the compensatbn ofour nan-x:d executire officers. 11le primary goal ofour cxecutr.'e compensation policy is to attract and retain
the nust talented and loyal executr.'es possible. Our intent -is to ensure that ollr cxecutr..'es arc compensated effcctively in a ml.llner consistent with our strategy and competitr.'e
practice and to align executr..·e compensatKm with the achie\'ell1ent ofour short and long tenn business objectives.

Our board ofdirectors considers a \'arkty offuctors in determining compensation ofexccutr..'es including the executive's backgrmmd, training and prbrwork experknce.

Elements ofexecutin compensation

Our compensation program fur the narred excclltr..'e ofli:ers consists pritmrily ofbase salmy. TIlere is no bonus plan, retiren'k'=nt plan, long-ternl incenm'e plan or other such plans.
'nte base salm)' we provile is intended to equitably compcllSate tile named exccutr..'e ofli:ers based upon their Ie\'ei ofresponsibility, complexity and implcll'elltatkm ofour busutess
plan.

Stock grant

To Imtivate key employees oftlle Company by providing tllel11 with an o\\1lership interest in tlle Company, 011 September 10, 2008, the Board ofDirectors approved and
authorized the -issuance ofsixntillion shares oftlte Company's restrk:led stock to certain key ell1pIo)'ees. 11tH stock grant was conditbned upon tlte execlltbn and delivery by each
employee ofa Confk!entillity and Non-Competition Agreement and was made UI relilnce upon tlte exemptbn fromregt;tmtbn provided by Section 4(2) ofthe Securities Act of
1932, as amended and/or Reguhtion 0 promulgatcd tmder tlte Securiti3s Act of1933.

2010 Stock Option Plan

On November 15, 2009, Net Talk.com, Inc. (tlte "Con1pan)~') adopted tile 2010 Stock Option Plan (the ''Plan'') wh~h 15 intended to is to advance the interests oftlte COIl1pany's
shareholders by cnhancing tlte COl11pany's ability to attract, retain and motivate persons who make (or arc expected to nuke) inporlant cOlltributions to the Company by provXling
Stich persons with equity ovmership opportunities and perfumnnce-based ulCentr.'es and thereby better aligning tlte interests ofsuch persons with those oftlle Company's
shareholders. AU ofthe Company's en1ployees, offi:ers, and directors, and those Company's consultants and advimrs (i) tllatare nahrral persons and (ii) who provides bona fide
services to tlle Con1pany 110t cOllllected to a capital raising transaction or the pronXltbll or creation ofa nnrket fur the company's securities, are eligible to be granted optkms or
restrkted stock av.llrds willer the P~U1. 'I1te nnxirnwll aggregate number ofshares oftlte Company's COll1lmll stock that nny be issued tmder the Plan i5 10,000,000 shares oftlte
COIll:pany's commn stock. As oftlte dale ofthis Current Report on Fonn 8-K, tllere were no stock oplbns outstandilg under tlte Plan and IlO restricted stock aWRrds issued and
outstanding, leaving 10,000,000 shares available fur firture issuances.

33



Compensation ofDirectors

None ofthe Company's directors h<n'e received any cash or equity remunemtion since inception.

Item 12. Secmit)' O"nel'Ship ofCet1ain Beneficial O"nel'S and Management and Related Stockholdel·.1Haltcl'S

TIle following tabk: sets forth certain infunmtbn, as ofSeptembcr 30, 2009 with respect to tile beneficil! o"nership oftIle outstanding cOlllmon stock by (i) any holder ofn'Klre
than five (5%) percent; (iJ.) cach ofour executive officers and directors; and (ill) our directors and executive oiliccrs as a group. Except as otherwise indicated, each oflhe
stoc~ho1ders listed below has sole voting and investment power over the shares benefuillly owned.

Tile

Comnun stock
Comm:m stock
Comlll:m stock
COlrunon stock

Comnun stock

Executive oflkers and directors, as a group (5
persons)
Comm:m stock
COlTUmn stock
COllllnon stock

Total COlTUllOn stock relatcd
parties

Narre ofbcnefk:ilry

Anastasios Kyriakides
Kelmeth A. Hosreld
Guillcnm Rodrigtlez
Leo Manzewitsch'

Nk:holas Kyrnkides

Vk:is Capital Master Fund
Ron J. Rule, Jr.
Olmi Reliant

AnlOlUlt and nature of
owncr(2)

2,164,400(3)
1,100,000
1,100,000
1,100,000

600,000

6,064,400
33,600,000(4)

1,032,200(5)
1,000,000(6)

41,696,600

Percent

4.46%
2.26%
2.26%
2.26%

1.24%

12.48%
69.16%
2.13%
2.06%

85.83%

(1) Unless otherwise indicated, the address ofeach shareholder is 1100 NW 163rd Drj.,'e, Miami, Florida 33169.

(2) Beneficnl o\\'l1Orshp ofsharcs is dctennined wIder Rule )3d~3{dXl) Oftl1O b\:challge Act and generally includes any shares over which a person e.xercises sale or shared
voting or illvesbrent pO\\"er and the Humber ofshares that can be acquired within sixty (60) days upon exerc~e ofan oplbn or cOll\'ersion of-warrants and debentures.
Conunon stock subject to these cOll\'ertible securit£s arc deemed to be outstanding ror tile purpose ofcomputing tl10 0\\1lership pcrcentage oflhe person holding such
cOll\'ertible security, but arc not deemed to be outstanding ror the purpose ofcomputing the O"11Orship percentage ofany otller person. Applk:able perccntage ofo\\11ership
is based 011 45,479,800 offhIly diluted shares ofNet Talk.com, Inc. COl1U1lOl1 stock being Esued and outstanding as ofSeptember 30,2009.

(3) Includes: (a) 2,110,000 shares ofconumn stock o\\11cdjointly by Mr. Kyrhki:les and lill wire, Marn Kyrhkides; and (b) 54,400 shares ofconllnon stock issuable upon
• exercise ofa Series A COl1ll.mn Stock Purchase Warrant, \\1lich lmy be exercised, at the optbn oftile holder, at an exercise prk:e ofSO.25 per share

(4) Includes: (a) 6,000,000 shares ofcolBrmn stock issuable upon cOiwersion ofl2% Senior Secured Con\'Crtible Debcntures held by Vi.:is Capital Master Fwld in the
aggregate principal mmunt ofSl ,500,000; (b) 4,400,000 shares ofconumn stock issuable upon conversion ofl2% Senilr Secured COll\"ertible Debentures held by Vbis
Capital Master FlUId inllle aggregate principal anuuntof$l,lOO,OOO; (c) 2,000,000 shares ofcomnxlil stock ~suable upon conversbn ofl2% Senbr Secured Convertible
Debentures held by Vicis CapitatMaster Fmrd in the aggregate principal allxHlllt ofS500,000; and (d) 4,400,000 shares ofconlimn stock issuable lIpon convcrsion of12%
Senior Secured COIl\'ertible Debentures held by Vk:is Capital Mastcr FtUld in the aggregate principal anxmlltof$l,lOO,OOO. TI10 12% Senior Secured Convertible
Debcntures nn)' be convcrtcd at tlle oplkmoflhe holder at $0.25 per share. It also inchmes (e) 6,000,000 shares ofcomnun stock issuable upon exerci>e ofa Series B
Conlllull Stock Purchase Warrant, whkh In..'l)' be exerci>ed, at the option ofllle holder, at an exercise price ofSO.50 per share; (1) 4,400,000 shares ofcomnun stock
issuable upon exercise ofa Scries C COllllnon Stock Purchase Warrant, which Imy be exercised, at tllO option oflIle holder, at an exercise price of$0.50 per share;
(g) 2,000,000 shares ofcoll1lmn stock issuable upon exerci<ie ofa Serils C Comm:m Stock Purchase Warrant, whi:h IlRy be exercised, at 1110 optbll ofthe holder, at an

• c:\.'erciie price of$0.50 per share; (h) 4,400,000 shares ofcommn stock issuable upon exercise ofa Ser~sC Comllun Stock Purchase Warrant, \\hich uny be exerci>ed,
at the option Oftl1O holder, at an exercise price ofSO.50 pcr share TIle 12% Senior Secured Convertible Debentures impose a contractual Jimitation all the holder's ab~ity to
convert stich debcnture into comllUn stock. 'Olis limitation prevents such holder from benefK:iatly owning lmre than 4.99% ofNet Talk.com, Inc.'s comllUIl stock.

(5) Romld J. Rule, Jr., 20711 Sterlington Drj.,'e, Lmld 0 lakes, F134638

(6) Omni Reliant Holdings, Inc., 14375 Myerlake Circle, Cleanvatcr, Florida 33760,
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Hem 13. Cel1ain 1'Clationships and 1'Clated transactions, and director inde~ndence

Except as set furth below, there were no transactions since the beginning ofour last fucal year, and there are no proposed transactKllls, that involve am::nmts in excess of$120,000
to \\11i::h we were or arc to become a party in \\11ich any director, executive officer, bcnefk:il1 ovmer oflIme than five (5%) percent ofour connnon stock, or members oftheir
il11n~dnte fnnilies had, or k to have, a direct or indrect nnteml interest.

Eficctive December 30, 2007, we sold all ofthe assets assocnted with our advertiling business as a goingconccm to Robert H. Blank, who v.'Us then our Presnellt and Ch~f

Opelating Officer. 1bc purchase prke fur the assets 'wus $185,000. Mr. Blank paid the purchase prk:e by assuming a convertible debenture issued by us to Mr. Robin C. Hoover
in the mrolmt of$185,000. TIle convertible debentnre constituted sllbstantnlly all ofour l~bihHes at the tin-.e ofthe acquilitKII1. In additkln, Mr. Hoover and Mr. Blank tendered
208 and 200 shares ofconlmJn stock, respectively, to the Company. 1bcse shares had been issued to Me Blank and Mr, Hoover as "ftHUlders" shares.

On September 10,2008, we acquired certain tangible and intangible assets, ii:mrcr.ly 0\\11ed by Interlink Global Corporation (''1lllerlink''), (the ''Interlink Asset Group") directly
from Interlink's creditor who had seized the assets pursuant to a Security and Collateral Agreement. Our purpose in acquiring these assets, which included elllployll'ellt rights to the
executi.,.e nnnagell'Klnt team ofInterlink, who now currently serve as our officers, was to advance the 1K 6000 VoIP Technology Program, \\1Iich Interlink JatUlched in July 2008.
Accordingly, these assets substantially comprise our currcnt business assets and the infrastnlcture fur our firture operations. Contenlpomneously with thE purchase, we executed an
assigllll'ent and intellectual property agreen-.ent with Interlink that served to perrect our o"mership rights to the assets.

COI\Sidemtion for the acquisition consisted ofa fuee value $1,000,000 eOlwertib1e debenture, plus warrants to purchase 4,000,000 shares ofour COl1lm)ll stock. On the date oftilC
Interlink Asset Group acquilitbn, we also entered into a financing agreement with tllC DOF th,'lt provkled fortllC issuance ofa fuee value $500,000 COlweI1ible debenture, plus
·warrants to purchase 2,000,000 sllares ofour common stock for llCt cash consideration ofS448,300.1n connection with thil acquisition, we issued 6,000,000 shares ofconnnon
stock to our IlCW nnnagement team in connection ",,-ith the Interlink Asset Group acquisition.

Effective September 10, 2008, we isslled 1,000,000 shares to Apogee Financill Itwestn'Cnts, Inc. in cOlmection with ceI1am consulting servi:es rendered to us. Mr. Richard
Diam:md is president ofApogee Financnllnyestments, Inc. and served as a n-.embcr ofam board ofdirectors untililli rcsignatbn on Noyember 23,2009. On the date oftllC
issuance, Mr. Diamond was not a ll'enmer ofour board ofdirectors.

On Janumy 30,2009, MtitO\\ll PamlCfS & Co., LLC (''Mi:ltO\\l1 PartllCrs''), an FJNRA registered broker dealer, acted as the placen~ntagent for tllC COIrpany in connection
with tllC 2009 Convertible Debt Ofiering. In COllllCction \'lith the 2009 COIwertible Debt Ofrering, we paid Midtolm Partners a cash COllll.l1issbn equal to $88,000 and 6S11Cd a
Se&s BD Common Stock Purchase Warrant to Midto\'.'ll PamlCrs entitling Midto\\11 PartIlCrs to purcllase 880,000 shares ofthe Company's COll1lmn stock at an initial exercise
prke ofS.50 pcr share. MntO\\11 Pat1tlCrs k a whol~'~o\\1led subsklial)' ofApogee Financial Ill\'estn-.ents, Inc. Mr. Rk:lmd DUlmnd is president ofApogee Financnl Inveshn:nts,
Inc, and served as a n~mber ofour board ofdirectors lUltil his resignation on November 23,2009.

Omni Reliant

A company O\\llCd or controlled by a nnjor shareholder ofNetTalk.com, Inc., provned services to lIS, as 1Ollows:

In JllllC 2009, we inclllTed adveI1ising e"..pense fur the crcatbn ofall infunXlrcial to be aired during the deployroont and IalUlChingofour TK6000. TIle deplo)11~nt and IallllChing oj
OUf ;'K6000 has a been a success and the info~rcial is presently nmning wcek~' on 1110st US nmkets. lllC advcI1ising e:qxmse incurred, was as fOllows:

HenE

Cash pa)lront
Share~based payn-.ent (1,000,000 connron shares)
Total
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In conncctbn with the infun~rciJ.1 we i<>sued 1,000,000 shares ofour common stock to non-employees lor goods and serviccs.

Item 14. Plincipal Accountant Fecs and Sen'ices

The Compan}~s board ofdirectors re\i:ws and approves audit and pennissible non-audit services perfOnned by its indepcndcnt accountants, as well as the fees charged fur such
services. In its rc"iew ofnon-audit seni::e fees and its appointment ofKLB LLP. as the Conlpan}~s independent accotmtants, the board ofdirectors considered whether the
prov:isbn OfSllCh servi:es is compatible ",ith Ilnintailling independence. AUofthc services provided and ICes charged by KLB LLP were appro\'ed by the board ofdirectors.

Audit Fees

Thc aggregate rees billed fur profussbnal ser"kes fur the audit ofthe allnual -financill statell~nts ofthe Company and the reviews oftile financial statements inchtded in the
Compall}~s quarter~' reports on Fornl1 O-Q fur 2009 and 2008 \vere $77,701 and $0.0 respective~', net ofe~..penscs.

Attdit-Related Fees

'Olere were no olller fees billed by durilg the last two fiscal years fur assurance and related servkes that \....ere reasonably related to the perfunn:mce ofthe audit or review ofthe
Compan}/s financial statell'ents and not reported under "Attdit Fees" above.

'nlere were $-0- per year spent on tax filings.

All Other Fees

TIlere were no otller tees billed during the last 1'.',0 fiscal }'Cars for products and services provided.
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Item 15. Exhibits, financial statement schedules

Exhibit No.

3.01(1)

3.02(1 )

3.03(1 )

3.04(1)

3.05(1)

4.01(1)

4.02(1)

4.03(1)

4.04(1)

4.05(1)

4.06(3)

4.07(3)

4.08(3)

4.09(3)

10.01(1)

1O.Q2(1)

10.03(1)

10.04(1)

10.05(1)

10.66 (I)

10.07 (1)

l>escIiption

Arti:lcs oflncorporalbn ofNet Talk.com, Inc.

Arli:les ofA1n::l1dll~ntto the Artk:lcs oflncorpomtbn ofNct Talk.com, Inc.

Articles ofAmendn~nlto the Artk:les OfIllcorporatbn ofNet Talk.com, Inc.

Articles ofAn~ndmentto thc Articles ofIncorpomtbn ofNet Talkcom, Inc.

Byknvs ofNet Talk.com.

FonnofSeres A CommOll Stock Purchase Warrant.

Fonn ofSer~s B Comm:m Stock Purchase Warrant.

FonnofSerks C COIrumn Stock Purchase Warrant.

FonnofSeres BD Common Stock Purchase Warrant.

Fonnofl2% Sennr Secured Conyerhble Debenture due January 30, 2011.

12% Senior Secured Convertible Debenture dated September 25, 2011.

Ser~s C COilllmn Stock Purchase Warrant No. C-6

Serk:s BD Common Stock Purcllt.'lse Warrant No. BD-IO

Serks BD Common Stock Purchase Warrant No. DD-II

FonnofSlock Grant Agreement dated as ofSeptember 10, 2008.

Fonn ofSubscription DoClUllCIlt from the subscriber to the Company lOr certain purchases oflhe Company's COInmon Stock, and Ser~s A ConllOOIl Stock
Purchase Warrants.

FonnofRegistratklll Rights AgreenlCllt, by and among the Company, each oftlle purchasers ofthe Company's Comm:m Stock, and certain other persons a
party thereto.

FonnofRegistration Rights AgreelllCnt entered into as ofSeptcmber 10, 2008 by and behyeen the Company and each security hoUer identified on the signature
page thereto.

Securities Purchase Agreemelltdated as ofSeptelllber 10, 2008 among the Company and Debt Opportmlity Fund, LLLP.

ContributnnAgreement dated as ofSeptember 10,2008 among the Company and Vici<> Capital Master Fund.

FonnofSecurity Agreencnt dated as ofSeptember 10, 2008 among the Company and certain Secured Parties.
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10.08 (1) Securities Purchase Agrccn-ent dated as ofJauuaty 30,2009 among the Company and Debt Opporttmity Fund, LLLP.

1O.q,9 (1) Fonn ofSecurity Agreeu'Cnt datcd as ofJanuary 30, 2009 am:mg the Company and certain Secured Parties.

10.10 (1) Fonn ofRegistration Rights Agreement entered into as ofJanuary 30,2009 by and beMecll the Company and each security holder ilentifud 011 the signature
page thereto.

10.11 (1) Securities Purchase Agrecnl:llt dated as ofFebmuy 6,2009 a!U)llg thc Company and Debt 0pPorhUlity FlUId, LLLP.

10.12 (1) Foml0fFirst AUl:ndlrent to the Security Agrecmellt made and entered into as ofFebruary 6, 2009 by and between the Company and Debt Opportunity Fund,
LLP

10.13 (I) Fonn ofReg~trationR~hts Agreemellt cntcred into as ofFebmu)' 6, 2009 by and bctv.'Cen the Company and each sccnrity holder ilentifud on the signature
page thereto.

10.14 (1) Fonn ofConfidentiality and Non-Competitbn Agreement.

10.15 (1) Lease Agreement entcred into August 29,2008, by and behveen Carrcrhouse Corp. and the Company.

10.16 (2) EmpJoynXlnt Agreerrcnt by and beMeen thc Company and Anastasios Kyrekiles dated efrective May 6, 2009.

10.17(3) Seeurit~s Purchase Agreen-ent dated September 25,2009.

10.18(3) Third Al'rendn-ellt to Security Agreen-ent dated September 25, 2009

10.19(3) Registration Rights Agreement dated September 25, 2009

10.20 (4) 2010 Stock Optklll Plan

14.1 Code ofEthk:s

31.1 Certification ofPrincipal Exccuti\'e OfOCer pursuant to 13a-14(a) lUlder the Securities Exchange Act ofI934-, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 ofthe
Sarbanes~Ox1eyAct of2002.

31.2 Certiocation ofPr.incipal Financel Oftk:er pursuantto 13a-14(a) underthe Securities Exchange Act ofl934, as adopted plrrsuant to Seeton 302 oftllC
Sarbanes~Oxlcy Act of2002.

32.1 Certification ofthe PrillcipalExccuti\'c Officer pursuant to U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted plrrsuant to Section 906 oftllC Sarbanes-Ox1ey Act of2002

32.2 Ccrtrncation ofthe Principal Financnl Officer plrrsuant to U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted ptrrsuant to Sectim 906 oftllC SarballCs·Oxley Act of2002

(1) Filed as an exhibit to tile Company's Fonn S·I \\11kh \\1\S filed with the Comnllision 011 Febn~ry 2, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference.
(2) Filed as an exhibit to tile Company's Fonn S~1/A which was filed with tile Commissbn on May 8, 2009, and incorporated herein by rcrerence.
(3) Filed as an exhibit to the Company's Fonn 8~K which '\\1\S filed with tlle Commission on October 1, 2009, and incorporated 1ICrcin by rererencc,
(4) Filed as an exhibit to tile Company's Fonn 8·K which was filed with the COlllm5sim on December 1, 2009, and incorporated herein by rcference.

• (5) Filed as an exhibit to tlle Company's Fon118·K \\11ich was filed with the COlllnUssKm on December 1, 2009, and incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

In a~cordance with the requiren~nts ofthe Exchange Act, the rcgistrant caused this report to be signed on its behalfby the lUmersigncd, thereunto dut, authorized.

NET TALI<:.COM, INC.

Date: December 14,2009

Date: Decembcr 14, 2009

By lsI Anastasios K)Tiakifes
Anastasios KyriakKles
ChiefExccuti\"e Oftk:er (Principal Executive Officer)

By: lsi Guillcnm Rodriguez
GuillenllO Rodriguez
ChiefFmallcitl O:ffker (principal Financill OfOCer and Principal AccOlmtilg Officer)

POWER OF ATroRNEY

Pursuant to the requiren~nts ofthe Securities Exchange Act ofl934, this rcport has been signcd below by the fullowing persons all behalfoflhe registrant and in the capacities and
on the dates indkated. l:"ach person whose signature appears below herebyauthorizcs Anastasios Kyritkiles or either ofthem acting in the absence ofthe other as hi-> or her tme
and h\\1ill attomey-in-fact and agent, with filii power ofsubstitution mm re-substitution fur him or her and in his or her name, place mm stead, in any and all capacities to sign any
and all amelmments to this report, mm to:filc the same, with all exhibits thereto 81m other documents in conncctbn therewith, with the Securities aim Exchange Connnissbn.

lsi Anastasios KyriakXles
At'k1stasios K)TilkXles

lsi GuilJenm Rodriguez
Guillenno Rodriguez

lsi Kellneth Hosfuld
Kenneth Hosreld

lsi Leo Manzewitsch
Leo Manzewitsch

ChiefExecutive Off-.;er (Principal Executive Officer) and Director

ChiefFmancial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccOlUlting Ofiker)
and Director

Director

Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board ofDirectors and Stockholders of

NetTaIk.com, Inc,
Miami, Florida

We have audied the accompanying balance sheets ofNetTalk,com, Inc" as ofSeptember 30,2009 and 2008 and the related statcll'eJlts ofoperations, stockholders' deflCit, and
cash flows for the years then ended. 'Illese financial statements are the responsibility ofthe Company's nunagen'ent. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on tllese fUJallcial
slaten'Cnts based Oil our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with tile standards ofthe Publk: Company AccOtmting Ovcrsight Board (United States). 'lllOse standards require tlmtwe plan and perfunn
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financnl statements are free ofnnterial misstaten'ent. TIle Company is not required to have, nor ",,'cre we engaged to
perfonn an audit ofits intenlal control over financial reporting. Our audits inchided consideration ofintemal control ovcr financnl reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are approprnte in the circmmlances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinbn on tile eflCcti\'ClleSS of the Company's intenlai control O\er financial reporting.
Accordingly, we ex'Press no such opinion. An midit also includes exnmining, on a test basis, e,1dence supporting the anX'lUllts and discloslrres in tlle financial statements, nssessilg
the nccOlmting princliJles used and signifbmt estinntes nnde by Jnmagement, as \\'CII as evaluating the O\emll financial statenlent prcsentation. We beleye that our audits provide a
rensonable basis for our opinion.

In otlr opinion, tlle financnl statements referred to nboye present ''luly, in all nnterial rcspects, tlle filJallCial positkm ofNetTa1k.com, Inc. as ofSeptember 30, 2009 and 2008, and
thc results oftlleir opemtions, changes in their stockholders' deficit nnd their cash flows fur tlle years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, in confunllitywith accowlting prulCipies
gelleral~' accepted in tile United States ofAmerk:a.

TIle accompanying financialstaten'Cnts have been prepnred assmning that the COlllpany\\ill continue as a going cOlleem. As SI1O\\11 Ul the financel statements and discussed in Note
3 oftile nccompanying flnancnl statements, the Company has incurred significant recurrulg losses from operations since ulception and is dependent on outskle sources of fiJ.mllCing
fur continnation ofis operatillls. l1lCse mctors raise substantial doubt about the Compan)/s ability to conluulC as a going COllcem.

/sIKBL, LLP

Tampa, FlorKIa
December 3, 2009
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Part II

Item 8. Financial statements

Net Talk,com, Inc.
Balance Sheets

Assets
Cmwnt assets:

Cash and cash equh'alents
Reshicted cash
Accounts fceeh'ables, net of allowance bad debts SI,042
InYentOl)'
Prepaid advertising

Total eUITcnt assets

Telecommunication equipment and other pl'Operty, net
Intangible assets, net
Defel'rcd financing costs and other assets

Total assets

s

s

September30,
2009

1,007,366 S
3,332 S

37,315 S
117,712

5,008

1,170,733

665,315
604,987
298,266

2,739,301 S

September30,
2008

342,793

342,793

749,767
832,743
23,730

1,949,033

Liabilities and Stockholdel'S' Deficit:
A~counts payable
Due to officcl'
Acclued interest
Accrued expenses

Seniol' securcd com'c11ible debentures (SI,500,OOO facc "alue) - CIIITCnt
Delivative liabilities - Cum~nt

Total CIIITCnt Iiabilitics

Seniol' secured cOIn'el1ible dehcntures (52700,000 face yalue)
Deri\'ative Iiabilitics

Total liabilities

S 264,912 S
56,300

168,774
49,320

1,509,880
382,200

2,431,386

1,136,875
945,072

4,513,333

13,753

10,000

23,753

1,520,415
563,400

2,107,568

Stockholders' Deficit:
Prefclwd stock S.OOI pal'"alue, 10,000,000 shares

allthOlized, lIone designatcd 01' issucd
Common stock, S.OOI pal'\'alue,300,OOO,OOO shares

autholized, 9,719,800 and 8,749,800 issued and outstanding,
as ofSeptembel' 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Additional paid in surplus
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholdel'S' deficit

Totalliabilitics and stockholdel'S' deficit

9,720 8,750

3,458,825 2,337,475
(5,242,577) (2,504,760)

(1,774,032) (158,535)

S 2,739,301 S 1,949,033

The accompanying notes are an integl'lll palt of tile financial statements
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Net Talk.com, Inc.
Statements of Operations

Revenues
Costofsalcs

Gross margin

Year Ended September 30,
2009 2008

ll5,S71
ll8,563

(2,992)

Ad\'eI1ising
Compensation and benefits
Professional fees
Depreciation and amo11ization
Research and development
General and administrath'e expenses

Total operating expenses

Loss from continuing operations

Other income (expenses):
Interest expense
DeJivative income
Interest income

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes

Henefit for Income taxes

Loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations (Note II)
Income (loss) from discontinued opemtions
(including gain on disposal ofequipment of
S168,083 in 2008)

Net loss

Net loss per shares:

Continuing operations:

s

444,249
446.807
294,425
358,244
414A34
383,659

(2,344,810)

(533,171)
128,646

11,518

(393,007)

(2,737,817)

(2,737,817)

(2,737,817) S

1,544,701
562,500

14,625

49,737

(2,171,563)

(25,470)
(7,800)

765

(32,505)

(2,204,068)

8,033

(2,196,035)

186,128

(2,009,907)

Basic and diluted

Weighted average shares, basic and diluted

Discontinued operations:
Basic

Diluted

'''cighted avelYlge shares, basic and diluted

The accompanying notes are an integlYll pal1 of the financialstatements
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S (0.30) S (2.10)

9,015,553 1,046,375

S S 0.18

S S 0.04

9,015,553 1,046,375



Net Talk.com, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended Seplember 30,
2009 2008

Cash flow from operating aClh'ities:

Net income (loss) S (2,737,817) S (2,009,907)
Adjustmenls to reconcile net loss to cash used in operations:
D~pl'cciation 119,463 6,404
Amol1imtion 238,780 8,221
Amortization finance costs 72,802 668
Amoltimtion prcmium on debentures 170,941 (588)
:Fail'yalue of dCI;va(i\'es (128,646) 7,800
Issuance of common stock to omcen; as compensation 1,500,000
Issuance ofcommon stock fOl' consulting fees 250,000 537,500
Gain onsale of assets (168,083)
Discontinued opcrations, net (23,045)
I.'xpenses financed costs 14,802
Deferrcd income taxes (8,033)
Discontinued operations, net

Changes In assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivables (37,315)
Prepaid expenses and othcl' assels (5,007)
InvenlOlies (117,712)
Accounts pa)'ables 251,157
Accl11ed expenses 208,094 23,753

Net cash used in opemtillg acm'ilies (1,715,260) (110,508)

Cash flow used in im'est1ng activities:
Acquisilion of fixed assets (35,011) 448,300
Proceeds from salc ofassets 85,812
Patent costs (11,024)
(Increase) in deposits (24,500)

Net cash used in im'esting activilies (70,535) 534,112

Cash flow used in financing acti.vities:
Issuance ofSeniorSeeul'cd Debentures 2,397,400
Loans from officers 56,300

Net cash used in im'esting acth'ities 2,453,700

Changes iunet assels - discontinued operations:
Operating activities (80,811)
InVesting acth'ities
Financing acti\'ities

Net cash provided by discontinued operations (80,811)

Net increase in cash 667,905 342,793
Cash and equivalents, beginning 342,793

Cash and equivalents, ending S 1,010,698 S 342,793

The accompau)'ing notes are an integml 1"xu1 of the financial statements
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Net Talk.com, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flo"s

Year Ended September 30,
2009 2008

Supplemental disclosures:

Cash paid for intel'Cst S 121,000 S

Cash paid fOI" income taxes S S

Supplemental disc1osUl'Cs fol' non-cash items:

Propel1)' amI equipment - addtion S S 756,171

Intangible assets - addition S S 840,964

Issuance ofdebentures S 982,656 S 1,020,414

Issuance ofwam\llts S 872,320 S 563,400

The accompan)'ing notes al'C an integral pal1 of the financial statements
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Net Talk.com, Inc.
Statement ofStockhoidei'S' Deficit

Additonal
Prefel1"ed Stock Common Stock paid Accumulated Total

Shal"es Amount Shal"es Amount in sllrplus Deficit Equity

Balance at September 30,2007 600,208 600 308,125 (494,853) (186,128)

Cancellation of founders shal"es (408)

Issuance of common shares:
Officel'S 6,000,000 6,000 1,494,000 1,500,000
Consulting fees 2,150,000 2,150 535,350 537,500

Net loss - September 30,2008 (2,009,907) (2,009,907)

Balance at Septembel' 30, 2008 8,749,800 8,750 2,337,475 (2,504,760) (158,535)

Issuance of commons shares:
Consulting fees 1,000,000 1,000 249,000 250,000
C~Hl\'el1ible debentures 872,320 872,320

beneficial cOllvel'Sioll
Cancellation offoundel'S shares (30,000) (30) 30

Net loss ~ September 30,2009 (2,737,817) (2,737,817)

Balance at September 30,2009 9,719,800 9,720 3,458,825 (5,242,577) (1,774,032)

The accompanying notes arc all integral palt of tile financial statements
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NETTALK.COM, INC.
Notes to Financial Statements

YeaI' ended September 30,2009 and 2008

Note 1 - Nature ofopemtiolls and basis of presentation

Net Talk.com, Inc. (''Nettalk'' or the "Company") was incorporated on May 1, 2006 lmder the laws ofthe State ofFlorida. We are a telephone company, ",110 proviles, seIls and
supplies conlll~rcill and resklentill telecOIlYlllmication serviccs, inchKling services utilEling voice oyer intemet protocol ("VolP") teclmobgy, session initiltion protocol (''SIP'')
teclmology, wireless fidelity teclmology, wireless nnximum teclmology, marine satellite servi:es technology and other similar type technologies. Our nnill product Bthe TK 6000, an
anabg telephone adapter that provides cOlmecti\'lt)' fur analog telephones and fuxes to hom~, hon~ offk:e or corporate local area networks (''LAN''). Our TK 6000 and its related
services k a cost eflecti\'e soMion for individuals, snnll businesses and telecommuters connecting to any analog telephone, fux or pri\~te branch exchange ("PBX''). 111e TK 6000
provides one USB port, one Ethemct port and one analog telephone port. A full suite ofintcmet protocol features Bavailable to maximil.e wliversal connecti\1ty. In addition, analog
telcI1honcs attached to the 1K 6000 are able to use advanced calling features such as caD funvarding, caller ID, 3~way calling, call holding, call retrieval and calltransrer.

Prior to our fucal year ended Scptember 30, 2009, we were in our de\elopment stagc. Conm1encing with thc Klluth quartcr ofour year cnded September 30,2009, we cOllchKled
that we lla\'e substantially cstabli5hed our operating architecture and lla\-c commenced re\enue producing activit~s sufik:ient to e~rgc from the de\'Clopn'l:nt stage ofoperatbns.

Subsequent e\'ents

We have evaluated subsequent c\'Cnls that occurred after our fl'ical year ended Scptember 30,2009 through the date that our financill statcll'l:nts are i)sued or December 14,
2009.

Note 2 M Summal)' ofSignificant Accounting Policies:

Use of Estimates

11te preparation offinancial statcn'l:nts in cOllfumlity with accounting principles generally accepted in thc United States ofAn~rica requires our manageu1ent to Imke estitmtes and
assumptions that alfect the am:nmls reportcd in tlte fmancill staten1ents and footnotes. Signifi:ant cstlnntes inherent in the preparatbn ofour financial statcll'l:nts include dcvcloping
Jair valuc n~asurcrnents upon which to base our accounting fur acqllkitions of illtangible asscts and issuances offinancial instnnrents, inchKlingour COllllmn stock. Our estinntes
also includc de\'eloping usefil1livcs for our tangible and intangible assets and cash flow projectbns upon which we detennine the cxistence o~ or the measurements fOr, impainrents.
In all instances, estimates are nnde by competent employees under the supervilion ofnnnagem:nt, based UJXln the current circmllstances and the best ilfonmtbll available.
Howe\-cr, actual results could dillCr from those estitmtes.

Uisk and Uncel1ainties

Our llilurc results ofopemtions and fillancill condition will be impucted by the fOllowing metors, atmngothers: dependence on the worldwide telecolllllll.mication nnrkets
characterized by intense competition and rapidly changing technology, 011 thirdMparty nnnufucturers and subcontractors, on third~party dktributors in ccrtain nnrkets, on the
successfil1 de\'clopIICnt and nnrketing ofnew products in new and existing nnrkets. Generally, we are lmable to pred);::t the firturc status ofthese areas ofrisk and uncertainly.
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Revenue recognition

Opemting revenue consist ofcustomer equipment sales ofour Imin product 1K6000, teleconnnunkation sef\'ke revennes, shipping and handling revenues.

Most all ofouropcmtillg revenues are gcncmted from the sale ofclIslorrerequipmcnt ofour Imin product the TK6000. \Ve also dcrire servi:e revenucs from per minutc fees fur
intemalbnal calls. Our opemting revcnuc is fi"ly recognized at thc tilm ofour customer Cqllipll~l1t sale. TIle dcvk:e provXles for lifc time sef\ice (oyer the lire aftlle
de\ice/equipnllnt). Our equipnX:llt is able to opemte within our nelworklplatfunnor over any other Iletworklplatfonn lltere is 110 need fur incol1~ alloeatbn bem.'Cen our de\ice
and lite titm scrvk:e provXled. TIle fiill intrinsk: vahle ofthe sale is allocated to tlte de\ice. TIlerefore, we recognIzed 100% ofrc\'C1ll1e at titne OfCll'itomer equipn'Cnt sale and do no
allocate allY incon~ to lire time ser\icc provided. Shipping and handling is also recognized at tin~ ofsale. Intematbnal calls arc billed as eanted from our CltstOl1llrs. Illtemational
calls are prepakf and customers accOlUlt is debited as minutes arc IlSed and canted.

Cash and Cash Equh'alents

We comider all highly liquid cash balances and debt inslnmllnts with an original nnturit)' ofthree m:mths or less to be cashequivalcnts. We lmintain cash balances only in dOIlx:stic
bank aCCotUlts, which at tines, nn)' exceed fcdemlly insured limits.

hlYcntory

Productive Ilnterh~ work in process and supplies
Fitllihed products
Total

$

$

September 30,
2009 2008

43,538 $
74,174

117,712 ;:;,$====

During the year ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, itl accordance with our lower ofcost or market analyses we dkl not record lower ofcost or market adjtlStnllnts to our
finilhed goods im·'Clltodes.

Telecommunications Equipment and Other PmpeI1)'

Property, equipment and te!ecomlYtllocation equipment includes acquired assets whi;h consist ofnctwork equipment, computer hardware, furniture and softwarc. All ofour
equipll1ents are stated at cost with deprecntion calculated ming the straight line method over tile estinnted tlSefhllives ofrelated assets, which ranges from three to fu'e )'Cars. TIle
cost assocnted with major improYen~lIts arc capitali7..ed while the cost ofmaintenance and repairs is charged to operating e;\llenses.

Inta'ngible Assets

aUf intangille assets were acquired ill connectbn with the asset acquisition, more fil1~' descnbed itl Note 4. 'Ille intallgillc assets were recorded at our acquisition cost, whkh
encompassed estinntes oftheirrespecti\'e and t1leir relati\'e mir values, as well as estirmtes oftile mirvalue ofcOIl'ikferatbn that we issued. We anxH1ile our itltangible assets mitlg
the stmight-lil1C method oYcr Ii\'cs that are predicated on contractual tenns or over periods we believe the assets will ha\'e utility.
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ImPJlil'ments and Disposals

Wc evaluate our tangible and definite-lired intangible assets fur impairn~ntannually or Imre frequenlt' in the presence ofcircumstances or trends that nny be indicators of
impairment. Our evaluatbn is a N'O stcp process. TIle first stcp is to compare our undticounted cash flows, as projected over tile rcnnining mefid Ir.es oftlle assets, to their
respective carrying ''alues. Tllthc evcnt that tlle carrying values are not recovcred by nlture tmdkcOlUlled cash flows, as a second stcp, we compare the carrying \'alues to the rcL1ted
fuir valucs and, iflowcr, record an impairment adjustn~nl. For purposes ofJair value, we gencral~' use replacen~nt costs fur tangible fued assets and discounted cash f1O\vs, using
risk-adjusted discount ratcs fOr intangible assets.

During December 2007, our tmnagen-.ent and board ofdirectors approved the discontinuance and sale ofam adYertising business in order to dcyote all resources to tIle
de\-clopnx:nt ofour VoIP ofierings. We concluded that the advertising business constituted a component ofour business and have presented the \Ulit ill the accompanying financnl
state"ments on the basis that (a) the operations and cash JIows ofthe component have been eliminated from our ongoing operations as a result ofthe disposal transaction and (b) we
Ik't\-C 110 signiOCallt continuing il\'olvcment in the operations ofthe component after the disposal transaction. Rerer to Note 11 for additional infonmtion about tIle disposal

Reseal'Ch and Development and Software Costs

We exvense research and developll~ntcosts, as thcse costs are incurred. We account fur our olTering-related software developmcnt costs as costs incurred internally in creating a
computer so:lhvare product and are charged to expense \\itell incurred as research and den~lopllx:nt until teclmologi:al reasibility has been established :lOr the product.
Technologi:al -feasibility is established upon completion ofa detail program design or, in its absence, completim ofa working Imdel lllereafier, all soft",,,ue production costs sinH
be capitalized and subscqnently reported at the lower ofw1311lortized cost or net realizable \'altle. Capitalilcd costs are amortized based on ClUTent and firture revenue fur each
product with an annual mininll.ml eqll3l to the straight-line anx)l1izatKlIl over the remailing estinllted economic lire ofthe product. At tlili. tinx: our nnil product 1K6000 is beilg
sold in the market place. TItercfore, research and developlIl:nt cost reported in our financel slaten-.ents relates to pre - marketilg costs and are expensed accordilgly.

• September 30.
Components ofResearch and de\'Clopn-.ent: 2009 2008
Product development and engineering $ 201,436 S
Payroll and benefits 212,998

Total $ 414,434 ;;,$===..,,;

Reclassifications

Certain reelassificatbns ha\'C been n\.1de to prior ycars finanenl statements in order to confunn to the ClUTent year's presentation. TIle reclassification had no impact on ltet eamings
previously reported.

Share-Based Payment All"llllgemcnts

JnJune 2008, the FASB issued authoritative guidance on tlte trealIIl:nt ofparticipating securities in tlte ca1culalionofeaming; per shares (''EPS''). TIlis guklance addresses whether
instnnrents granted in share - based paynx:nt transactions are participating securities prior to vesting and, therefure, need to be included in thc eamillgs allocation in computing EPS
tmder the two - class method. This guklance was efrective for fiscal years begilUung on or after December 15,2008. Adoptnn ofthi; guidance did not have a nnterial inpltct on
our results ofoperations and financial positbn, or on basi: or diluted EPS.

We appt' tile grant date mir vahle n'Klthod to our share - based payn-.ent arrangen'Klnts with employees and consultants. SI13re - based compensatnn cost to employees is
measured at the grant date filir \'aJuc based on tIle vahle ofthc a\\'ard and is recognized over tIle SCIVi:C period. Share - based payments to non - employees are recorded at Jair
value on thc measurement date and reflected in e"l)CllSe over the sel"\l£e period.
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Financial Instl1lments

Fimmcill instnm~nts, as defined in the AccOlmting Standards Codification ("ASC") 825, Financ"1 Jnstnnrents, constit ofcash, evidence ofo\'.nership in an entity, and contracts
that both (i) impose on one entity a contractua.l obligation to deliver cash or anothcr finallchl instnnnent to a second entity, or to exchange other financial instnmx:nts on potenthlly
lmfuvorable terms ....ith the sccond ent~y, and (ii) conveys to that second cntity a contractual rW1t (a) to receive cash or auotller financnl instnllncnt frolllthc first entity, or (b) to
exchange otller financid inslnmx:nts on potenthl~' favorable temli with thc fIrSt entity. Accordingly, our final1chl ilStrum(lnts comtit of cash and cash equivalents, accOllllts
receivable, accounts payable, accmed lilbiliti;:s, secured convertible debentures, and derivativc financial instnnnents.

We carry cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accotmts payable and accmed lilbilitks at hktorical costs since their respcctiYe estinnted fuir valucs approxinnte carrying
''UJurs due to tlleir current nature. Wc al'>o carry convertible debentures at hi'itorical cost. However, the mir values of debt instnlln:nts are estumted lOr di<lclosure purposes
(below) based upon the present ''Rlue ofthe estinnted cash 110",'5 at nmket interest rates applicable to similar instnlll'ents.

Can)'ing
ValueNote

As ofSeptembcr 30,2009, estimated mir vaAlCs and respecti\'c carrying ''RAICS ofour secured convertible debentures arc as follows:
Fair

VaitICFinanchl JnstnUl'ellt

$ 1,000,000 J2% Secured Convcrtible Debenture
$ 500,000 12% Secured Convertible Debenture
$ 600,000 12% Secured Convertible Debenture
$ 500,000 12% Secured Conyertib1e Debenture
$ 5QO,000 12% Seemed Convertible Debenture
$ 1,100,000 12% Secured Convertible Debcnture

7
7
7
7
7
7

$
$
$
$
$
$

1,129,294
564,647
636,181
530,151
501,794

1,080,422

$
$
$
$
$
S

1,006,588
503,293
293,726
271,741
179,778
391,630

Dcrr.'Rti\'C financial il1Stnunents, as defined in ASC 815·10-15-83 Derivatives and Hedging, consist offumllcial ilStnm~nts or othcr contracts that contain a notional anxHlllt and
Olle or more wtderIying (e.g. intcrest rate, security pri:c or other ''llriable), require no initial net u\Vestn~nt and penni!: llet settlen'enl. Deri\'Rtive financial rnslnul'ents nny be
free-standing or embedded in othcr finaneiJl ulStnlll'ents. Furtller, derr.'lltive financhl iJlStnUl~nts are inithl~', and sllbsequent~', measured at mir vaAIe and recorded as Inhiliti;:s or,
in rare irlStances, assets.

We general~' do not use derr.'Uti\'C financial instruments to hedge e;\llosures to cash-Jlow, nmket or fureign-eurrency risks. However, we ha\'e entered into certaol other financhl
ulStmn~nls and contracts, such as our secured cOIl\'CrtibJe debenture and warrant financiIIg arrangen'ents that are either (i) not affurded eqll~Y classification, (ii) embody rkks not
c1ea~ly and closely rclated to host contracts, or (iii) nny be llet-cash settled by the counteIpariy. As required by ASC 815, tllese iJlSlnUl~nts are required to be carr)ed as derivati\'e
fubilities, at mit vaAIC, in our financial statelYCllts.
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TIle mir vallle ofour derivative Inbil~ies COllSi'it oftile fullowing:

Indexed September 30, September 30,
Derivati\'C Financnl Instmment Shares 2009 2008

Warrants:
September 10, 2008 Series B v.-arrants (Trandle 1) 2,000,000 $ 127,400 $ 187,800
September 10,2008 Series B warrants (Tranchc 2) 4,000,000 254,800 375,600
January 3D, 2009 Seres C-3 ,,,arrants 2,400,000 167,040
January 30,2009 Series SO warrants 480,000 33,408
Febnmry 6,2009 Series C-4 warrants 2,000,000 139,400
f'ebmmy 6, 2009 Series SO ,,,arrants 800,000 55,760
July 20,2009 Series C-5 warrants 2,000,000 146,600
September 25,2009 Series C-6 warrants 4,400,000 335,720
September 25,2009 Series BD warrants 880,000 67,144

CompOlUld Derivative Financnl TnstnUl'Xlnts:
$1,000,000 COilYertible Debenture, dated September 10, 2008 4,000,000
$500,000 ConvertIble Debenhrre, dated September 10, 2008 2,000,000
$69°,000 Convemble Debenltrrc, dated January 30, 2009 2,400,000
$500,000 Convertible Dcbenhrre, dated Febmary 6, 2009 2,000,000
$500,000 COllvcrtible Debenhrre, dated July 20, 2009 2,000,000
$1,100,000 Convertible Debenhtre, dated September 25, 2009 4,400,000

Total 35,760,000 $ 1,327,272 $ 563,400

TIle fOllowing table smllnnrizes the elli:cts on Olrr inCOll'Xl (loss) assocnted with (i) changes in the fair values ofour derr.'ati\'e .financial jnstnU1~nts and (it)day-one losses resulting
from inceptK>1l date derivati\'C iliit" values greater than the underlying proceeds in our financings:

Septertiler 10, 2008 Seres B warrants (Tranche 1)
SepteniJer 10, 2008 Series Bwarrants (Tranche 2)
January 30,2009 Series C-3 warrants
January 3D, 2009 Series BD warrants
Febmary 6, 2009 Series C-4 warrants
Fehmary 6, 2009 Series SD warrants
July 20,2009 Series C-5 "'arrants
Day;one derivCltr.'C losses

Total
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Year Ended
September 30 September 30,

2009 2008

$ 60,400 $ (2,600)
120,800 (5,200)

18,720
3,744

(4,800)
(1,920)
12,600

(80,898)

$ 128,646 $ (7,800)



Advel1isillg

In JlUlC 2009, we ilCurred prepaid advcrttiing fur the crealionofan infon'l:rcill to be aired during the deployll'Xlllt and launching ofour TK6000. TIle prepaid adverti:>ing was
charged to advcrttiing expense, as fullo-ws:

Amount

Cash pa)'lmnt
Share-based pa)1Uent(I,OOO,OOO COllllmn shares)
Total

Income Taxes

$

$

100,000
250,000

350,000

We record our mcol1'Xl taxes using the asset and fubility Il'l:thod. Under this ll'Xlthod, the filture tax consequences attributed to diflerences bet\veen the finanenl statement canying
al110tUlts ofexisting assets and liabilit~s and their respecti\-e tax basis are reflected as tax assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable incorrc in the
years in whkh those tell1poraT)' diffurcnces reverse. Changes in these deterrcd tax assets and fubilities are reflected in the provision for illcon);: taxes. However, we are required to
evaluate the reco\-embility ofnct deferrcd tax assets. Ifit is 1110re liket' than not that SOIl~ portion ofa net deterred tax asset willnot be realized, a vahlation allowance ~ recognized
with'a charge to the provisiHl fur itlCon);: taxes.

Net Loss per COllllllon Shut

Bask: loss per COllllllon share represents our net loss di\'ided by tllC weighted average IlIumer ofcommon shares outstanding durilg the period. Diluted Joss per conllnJn share
gn-es encct to all potentilily dilutn-e securitk:s. We compute the effects on diluted loss per common share arising -from warrants and options using the treasury stock Imlhod. Wc
compute the effects on diluted loss per conunJn share ari:>itlg ITomconvertible securities using the if..converted rrcthod. The effucls, ifanti - dilllti\'e are excluded.

Hecent accounting pronouncements

In Jlllle 2009. 'Die Financial AccountitJg Standard Board (''FASB'j issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2009·01, Generally Accepted AccOlUllingPrD.lCiples, which
cstablishes FASH Accotlllting Standards CodiocatKlIl (''the Codifi::ation") as the offuial single source ofauthoritative U. S, GAAP. All existing accounting standards are
superseded. All other accolUlting guklance not itlCiuded in the Codifuation will be considered non- authoritati\·e. TIle Codifi::ation also includes all rekwant SEC guidmlCe
organized lISitlg the san~ topka IstnlCture in separatc sections witbin the Codillcatbn.

Folbwing the Codiflcation, the FASB will not issue standards iti the fonnofStaten'ents, FASB StaffPositions or EIl);:rgitlg Issues Task Force Abstracts. Instead it will issue
ACCOlUltitlg Standards Updates ("ASU") whi:h will serve to update the Codifi::ation, provide background itlfunnation about tllC guklmlCe and provile the basis for cOllClusions on
the changes to the CodiOCation.

TIle CodiOCation is not intended to change GAAP, but it "''Ill change the way GAAP is organized and presented. TIle Codificatim is: etrecti\'e for our fiscal year ended September
30, ~009 financial statetmllts and the prulCipal itllpact on our financnI statements is limited to di:>closures, as aU filture rererellCes to authoritati\-e accounting literature will be
rererenced in accordmlCc with tile Codification.

In December 2007, tIle FASB re\1sed tile authoritativc guidmlCc fur business combitmtions. TIlts guidallCe establislles prnlCiplcs and requirerrcnts fur how the acquirer itl a bUSD.leSS
combitJatKlIl recognizes and treasures D.I its financill staten'Cnts the identifiable assets acquired, tIle liabilities asslllmd and any non - controllitlg interest in the acquiree. TItis
guiiallCc clmnges tIle accollllting for bltsUICSS combinations il a mmilier ofareas, including the treatm::nt ofcolltitlgent consKieratKlIl, preacquisition contingellC~s, tmnsaction costs
and restructuring costs. In addition, under the new guidance, changes in the acquired entity's deferred tax assets and uncertain tax positions after the Ircasllrement period will
impact income tax eXllense. l1lli gllidallCe was effecti\-e fur fiscal year beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and requires tile immediate e:-'l'ensing ofacquisition related costs
associated with acquisitions completed after December 31,2008. Adoption oftltis gllidmlCe on October 1, 2009 had no impact 011 our results ofopemtions, and fHlallCnl
positbn. I-!owe\'er, we eXllect tltis gllidatlCe will affect acquisitions IlIade thereafter, thOUgll the impact w:ill depend upon tllC sv-e and nature ofthe acquisition.
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In March 2008, the FASB issued author~ative guidance on disclosures about derivatr.'e instnm~nts and hedging actr.'itcs. TIlts guidance addresses enhanced disclosure concemillg
(a) the nnllner in wloch an entity uses derivatives (and the reasons is uses them), (b) the nnnner in Wilk:h dcrivatr.'es and related hcdged items are accOlUlted fur and (c) the effects
that dcrivatives and related hedged iteIlli have on an entity's nnancill positkm, financid perfunmncc, and cash fla",s, This guidance was cJfcctr.'e fur financill staten~nts issued fur
fIScal years and interin perbds beginning on or after Noyember 15, 200K Adoptbn ofthis guklance dii not have a Imternl impact on our financial positim or results of
opemtbm.

In Jl~ne 2008, the FASB issued authoritative guidance on the treatnK:nt ofparti:ipating secluitils in the calculation ofeamings per shares ("ESP"), TIlli guklance addresses whether
instnm~nts grantcd in share - based payrrcnt tmnsactkms are participating securitils pri:lr to vesting and, therefure, need to be inchil:led in the camillg5 aIlocation in computing ESP
under the two - class rrcthod. '111is guidance was cflcctr.'e fur fucal years begiJUling on or after December 15, 2008, Adoptbn ofthis guidance did not have a Imtcrial impact on
our rcsults ofopemtions and financial positbn, or on basic or diluted ESP.

In Apr.il 2009, the FASB issued authoritati\'C guklance on interim disclosures about min'aille offinancial irtstmments. TIlis gllklance requires disclosures about filir vahle offinancbl
Utstnlll~nts fur interimreporting pcriods as well as irl annual financnl staten~nts fur ulterim periods ending after JLUlC 15, 2009. Adoption ofthis guKlance had no efrect on our
results ofopcratiotts offinancial corKhl-blts,

In May 2009, the FASB issued authoritative gtlklance on subsequent events. TIlli gtlklance establislles gcncml standards ofaccotUiting fur and disclosure ofevents that occur after
tIle balance sheet dale but be10re financial staten~nts arc issucd or are avamble to be issucd. 'nits guidance :is cJfccti\'e fur interim or mumal financill pcrbds ending after JlUlC 15,
2009. Adoplkm ofthis guidance did not have an impact on our results ofoperatbIts or filancni position.

In August 2009, the FASB updated its authoritative gtlklancc 011 mir vallle measurement and disclosures. TIlis update provides amendn~llts to reduce potcntill ambiguity in fitlal1cill
reporting wilen n~asuring the mir ''ahle oflilbilities. Am:mg olllCr provisbns, this update provides clarification tllat in circUlrBtances irl whk:h a quoted price in an active nnrkct for
dle kfcnlk:alliability is not avamble, a reporting entity is required to measure mir ''a1uc ltsillg OIle or more oftlle valuation teclmqllcs described il ASC Update 2009 - 05. ASC
Update 2009 - 05 will beCOIre clfuclive fur our quarter financial statcn~nts at December 31, 2009. We have not }'Ct dctennined the impact that this update may have on our
financial staten~nts.

Note 3 - Going Conccl1l:

'Ille preparation of finmlCial statclrents in accordance with accoLUlting principles gClleratly accepted in tile United States contemplates Ihat operati:lns will be suslaulCd fur a
reasonable period. Howevcr, we have incurred operating losses of$2,737,817 and $2,009,907 during tile year ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, In additi:ln,
during t1lCse periods, we used cash of$1,715,260 and $ I10,508, respecti\'Cly, irl our opemting activitils. Since our ulCeption, we have been dcpendent upon ftUlds raised through
the issllallCe ofdebentures and warrants, TIlCSC conditions mise doubts about our ability to continue as a going concem ror a reasonable period. Our ability to contuule as a gOilg
COllCem fur a reasonable period is dependent upon our ability to raise sufficient capital to implen~lIt our business plan and to generate profits to becon};: fmancially vilbIe, During
tile year ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, we raised $2,397,400 and $448,300, respecti\'Cly, from tile issuallCe ofdebentures and warrants.

We cannot provide assurances regarding the success ofour current opcrnliolts. Our financial statem::nts do not ilclude adjustn~l\ts relating to the recoverability ofrecorded assets
or lilbilities that might be llCcessal)' should we be lmabte to contimlC as a going cOllcem.

53



Note 4 - Interlink Asset Group Acquisition:

On September to, 2008, we acquired certain tangible and intangible assets, fonn;:r!)-o\\ued by Interlink Global Corporntion (''Interlink''), (the "Interlink Asset Group") directly
from Interlink's creditor who had seized the assets pursuant to a Security and ColhteraIAgreenl;:nt. Our purpose in acquiring these assets, which included empJo)1ltellt rights to the
executive nnnageirent team ofInterlink, was to advance the TK6000 VolP Teclmology Program, which Interlink launched in July 2008. Aecording!)-, these assets substantially
comprkc our current business asscts and the infrastIllcture for our operntions. Contemporaneously with this purchase, we execllted an assigrl11l;:nt and intellectual property
agreentent with Interlink that served to perreet our o,"wlersllip rights to the assets.

Consideration fur the acqukition consisted ofa mee ,,,lIue $1,000,000 convertible debenture, phlS warrants 10 purchase 4,000,000 shares ofour canunon stock. On the date ofthe
Interlink Asset Gronp acquisitkm, we also entered into a financing agreententwith the creditor that provided for the issuance ofa fuce vahle $500,000 con\'ertible debenture, phlS
"''arrants to purchase 2,000,000 shares ofour comrmn stock fur net cash consideration ofS448,300. '!ltese financial instnuttents, and our aCCotlllting therefure, arc fitrlher
addressed in Note 7.

'I1le transfer ofthe Interlink Asset Group required us to determille whcther the group ofassets constitutcd a business, or whether tile group ofassets dn not constitute a busilleSS.
WC,ilccounted ror the acquisitiln oftIle assets ofInterlink Asset Group as an acquisitilllofproductive assets and not as a busincss. In addition to our ana~'Sk that gave rise to the
conclusion that the Interlink Asset Group did not constitute a business, we considered whether the two aforenl;:ntioned financing arrangemcnts should be combined fur purposes of
accOtmting fur the acqui:;itioll. In reaching a conclusions that tile}' should be combined we cOllsklercd and gave substantial weight to the fucts that (i) tltey were entered into
contempOmlteOllS!)-and in contemplation ofone another, (ii) tile}' were executed with tile san-c counterpart}' and tlte tenns and conditions ofHte fmancnl instnUll;:nts and lUKler~1llg

contracts are substantially the sante alKl (ill) t1tere i:; otherwise no economb need nor substantive btlSiness purpose fur structuring the transactilns separately. According!)-, tOr
purposes ofaCCotUlting fur the Interlink Asset Group acquisition we have combined tile financing arrangen.,;:nts associated wilh both tlte asset purchase and the cash financing
arrangement. Accounting for the financnl instnuflCnts arising from these arrangements is fbrther di5cllSsed in Note 7.

NotwithstmKling our conchl'iion that the Interlink Asset Group did not constitute a btl'iiness. Our n'£asurelYl;:nl principles provide that, "iten cOIl'iidemtioll is not in tlte funn ofcash,
measurement E based upon the fuir vahle ofthe considemtk.m given or the fuir \'ahte OftlIC assets acquired, whiclteyer 51mre cJear~' and closelyevidenl and, thtl'i n))rc relubl)'
nteasureab1e. We have conchlded that tlIC vahte ofthe consideration gi\'en representing the financial instntn~llts, is nore clearly evident mKl relhble fur tlns purpose because (i) tlte
exchange resulted -from exhaustivc negotiations with the creditor, (iij fuir \'aute l'reasurentellts ofour fUlanciaI instnun:mts are in part based upon llnrket indk:ators and asstlll1pliollS
derived fur active tnukets, and (iiQ willie ultirrnte~- reasomble, our fuir \'atue measuren~nls oftlle signifi::anl tangible and intangible asset relics heavily on subjecti\X: eSlilmtes and
prospectfix: financnl iltfonmtion. 1lte fullowing lable reflects the components oftlte conskleration paid to efiCcl tlte acquisition:

Financial Illstrurrcnt or Cost:

Convertible debentures:
$1,000,000 fuce vallie, 12% CQI1\x:rtib1e debentures
$500,000 m.cc vahle, 12% cOlwertible debentures

Class B "'arrants, iltdexed to 6,000,000 shares ofcomnXlll stock
Direct costs

$

$

Amount

1,014,002
507,000
555,600

39,200

2,1I5,802

Wc h,we e\'aluated tlte substance oftlte exchange for purposes ofidentifying all assets acquired. "Ilte recogrlition ofgoodwill E not contemplated in an exchange that is not a
bmitless or accDtmted fur as a bminess combillation.
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'I11e fulfowing table reflects the acquisilkm date Jatr vahlCs and the final albcation ofthe consideratkm to the assets acquired. TIle allocatbll ....llS perfunned wlder the asswnptbn
that an excess in conskieratkm over the Jair valucs ofthe assets acquired is allocated to tile assets subject to deprecnooll alld allXH1ilatbn, based upon their rcnti\'e fuir ,n!ues, mld
not to those assets with illdefinite Ir.'es, A diffurence in the recognized basis in the 'llhlC oftlle consideration between book and incon);: tax gives rise to the deferred income taxes,.
Our.analysis dil not resuh:in impainl);:llt, but we are required to contimlC to perfunn tills ana~'Sis as proviled in our impairments and disposals polk:y (sec Note 2).

Asset or Account Fair Value AlIocatbll

Cash $ 487,500 $ 487,500
Dcrerred finance costs 24,398 24,398
TeJeeonnUtUlk:ations equipment and other property 411,203 756,171
Intangible assets:

Knowhow ofspecial:izcd employees 212,254 212,254
Trademarks 180,925 332,708
E.mplo)1nent arrangements 122,400 225,084
Workfurce 54,000 54,000
Telephony Ik:ense 5,000 9,195
DomairIllan~s 4,200 7,723

Dcrerred illCome taxes (8,033)
Interest eXl)ellSe (finance costs allocated to warrants) 14,802 14,802

Total $ 1,516,682 $ 2,115,802

In connection with tile above allocation, "ie evaluated the presence ofiIl·process research and developn~nt that nuy require recognitbn (and illunediate VtTite·oJI). We concluded
that in·process research and development 'was de minilnus since de\'Clopmellt is planned to be outsourced subsequent to tire aequisitbn and, in fuet, no substanti\'C eflOrt and/or
costs were round in tile records oflllterlilk. Research and development will be eXllensed as it is incurred.

As lllore fitlly discussed in Note 9, we 5sued 6,000,000 shares ofcomnxlIl stock to our new mltlagen~nt team in connection with the Interlink Asset Group acquisitbn. 11lese
slmres are compensatory in nature and are thl~' vested. We have vahted tllC shares at $1,500,000, consistent with tair value Il'l:asurements used elsC\vltere in our accounting, and
recognized the expcllSc in compensation fur tile perkJd.

Note 5 - Telecommunications Equipment and Other Propert)':

TelecollllUtUlk:atkJns equipn~nt and other propertyeOllSist ofthe fullowing:

Telccoll1ll1lU1:icatbn equipment
Computer Cqlliplll::llt
Offk:e equ%)mellt and firrnishing
Purchased software

Sub- tolal
Less: accumulated deprC\:iatkm

Total

Lire

7
5
7
3

$

$

September 30,
2009 2008

650,804 $ 641,460
106,577 85,111
23,760 19,559
10,041 10,041

791,182 756,171
(125,867) (6,404)

665,315 ;;$==7:,;4~9,~76;;,;7

Ollr-te1ccomrl1lU1:ications eqlliprrcnt is deployed in our Network OperatiollS Center (''NOC'') as is lillst ofthe computer equipm;ml. Olher computer and ofOCe equipment and
filmishings are deployed at our corporate offices, which we lease WIder an operating lease. Deprechtion oftlle abo\'C assets mmunted to $119,463 during the fucal year ended
September 30, 2009 and $6,404 during year ellded September 30,2008,

55



Note 6 - Intangible Assets:

Intal'lgible assets consist offollowing: Lire September 30.
2009 2008

Traderrnrks 5 $ 332,708 $ 332,708
EIl1pIo}1ltent agreements 3 225,084 225,084
Knowhow and specialty skills 3 212,254 212,254
Workfurce 3 54,000 54,000
Telephony lk:ellses 2 9,195 9,195
Patents 20 11,024
Don~in names 2 $ 7,723 $ 7,723

851,988 840,964
Less accmnulated 3mortizntbn (247,001) (8,221)

$ 604,987 $ 832,743

A1l1Ortization oftlle above intangible assets alll:llUlted to $238,780 and $8,221 for year ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 'Ille weighted avcmge mmrtization
period for the amortizable intangtble assets is 3.0 years.

Estinuted filture mmrtization ofintangible assets fur each year ending after September 30, 2009, is as follows:

2010
2011
2012
2013

Total

$

$

246,060
225,910

70,238
62,779

604,987

Note 7 - Secured Convcltible Dcbentlll~s and Wanllnt Financing Al1llngements:

TIle carrying values ofour 12% secured convertible debentures consist oftile fullowing:

September 30.
2009 2008

$1,000,000 mcc value convcrtible debenture, due September 10, 2010

$500,000 fuce vallle convertible debenture, dllC September 10, 2010
$600,000 fuce vahle convertible debenture, due Janu3IY 30, 2011
$500,000 fuce value comertiblc debenture, due January 30,2011
$500,000 fuce vallle cOllvcrtible debenhlfe, dtle July 20, 2011

$1,1,00,000 mee \'alue convertible debenhlfe, duc Septerrber 25, 2011
Total

Current portbn
Long portion

2008 Com'cl1ible Debcnture Financing

$1,006,587

503,293
293,726
271,741
179,778
391,630

$2,646,755
1,509,880

$1,136,875

$1,013,611

506,804

$1,520,415

$1,520,415

On Septcmber 10, 2008, we issucd a $1,000,000 fuce Wille, 12% sccured convcrtible debclltllfe (T~ 1), dlle September 10, 2010 and Series B warrants indexed to 4,000,000
shares ofour comnxm stock il exchange fur tile Interlink Asset Group, discusscd inNote 4. Also on September 30,2008, we issucd a $500,000 face \'(due 12% secured
convertible debenture (T-2), due September 10, 2010 and Series B warmnts indcxed to 2,000,000 shares ofotlf commOll stock fur net cash proceeds of$472,800. 'l1le warmnts
hav{< a tcnn offue ycars. lllese financill instmntents were issued to the sanx: crcditor tIIldercontracts that are substantillly sinilar, unless otherwise l11entbned in the fullowing
discussion.
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'Dle ·pr.incipal aInllmt oftlle debentures is pa:rable on September 10,2010 and the interest is payable quarterly, on a calendar quarter basis. While the debcnture is outstanding, tile
investor has the option to convert the principal balance, and not the interest, into shares ofonr common stock at a conversbn price ofSO.25 per cOlllmon share, TIle tenus oftIle
conversion optnn provife fur anti-dilutbn protections for tmditbnal restmctlrrings ofour equity, such as stock-splits and reorganizations, irany, and for sales ofour comnnll stock,
or issuances ofcomm::m·indexcd financill instnllmnts, at mmllllts below the otllef\vise fixed com'Crsbn pri:e. Further, tile tenus oftlle convertible debenture provide fur certain
redemj)tion leahrres, It: in the event ofcertail defuults on the telTlli oftlle debentures, SOIl-c ofVlilk:hare imexed to equity ri'iks, we are required at the investors option to pay the
higher of(i) 110% oft1te principal balance, phlS accmed interest or (iO the if-coll\'crted value ofthe tUlderlyilg commll stock, using the 110% demult mmllllt, plus aecrued interest.
Ifthis dernult redenlption is not exercised by the investor, we would incur a defuult interest rate of 18% aIm the investor would h,we rights to our assets under the related Security
Agreement. We uny redeem the convertible debentures at an)1in~ a1110% ofthe principal mmunt, phIS accmed interest.

BeCatISe the two hybrid debt contracts were issued as compensatbn for the Interlink Asset Group and as fhrther disctlSsed in Note 4 we concluded that they should be combined
fur accountilg purposes, the accOlmting resulted in no beneficill cOIl\'Crsion reahrre.

2009 COI1YCl1ibIe Debenture Financings

We cntered into several Securitks Purchase Agreetrents with Debt Opporlmlity Fund, LLP ("DOF") during the year ended September 30,2009.

On Jammy 30, 2009 we issued (a) 12% Senior Secured Convcrtible Debentures in the aggregatc principal allXHmt of$600,000 with a nnturity date of
January 30,2011, cOlwertible into shares ofcomnnn stock at a com"ersion prke of$0,25; and (b) Seres C Warrants to ptrrchasc 2,400,000 shares of
our comnnn stock at anexercisc pri:e ofS0.50 lOr net cash proceeds of$507,900. TIle warrants have a tcnnof&:e years,

On February 6,2009 \....c issued (a) 12% Senbr Secured Convertible Debentures in thc aggregate principal all1CHmt ofS500,000 with a nnturity date 01
Janumy 30,2011, convertible into shares ofcomnxm stock at a conversion pri:e ofSO.25; and (b) Ser~s C Warrants to plrrchase 2,000,000 shares of
our connmn stock at an exercise price of$0.50 fur net cash proceeds of$443,250. llte warrants have a tennoffive years.

On July 20,2009, we iisued (a) 12% Scnior Secured Convcrtible Debentures in the aggregatc principal amount of$500,000 with a nnturity date ofJuly
20,2011, convcrtible into shares ofcollllmn stock at a convcrsion pri:e 0[SO,25; and (b) Series C Warrants to purchasc 2,000,000 shares ofour
comnnn stock at an exercise price of$0,50 fur net cash procceds of$446,250. 'Ilte warrants have a tennoffu'e years,

On September 25, 2009, we issued (a) 12% Scnbr Secured COlwertible Debentures in tJte aggrcgate priteipal a1mllllt of$1,100,000 with a tmturity
date ofluly 20, 2011, c01l\'Crtible into shares ofcolll/mn stock at a conversion price of$0.25; aim (b) Series C Warrants to purchase 4,400,000 shares
ofour conllmn stock at an exercise price ofSO,25 fur llet cash proceeds ofSl,OOO,OOO. TIle warrants have a tcnn offu'C )'Cars,

Each debenture bears interest on the prilCipal mmllllt outstandingalld tmpakl from tin~ to time at a rate ofl2% per annum nom tlte date Ofi5:sUallCC tmtil pail in itlll, Interest is
calculated on the basis ofa 360-dayyear and paid fur the actual IUmmer ofdays ehpsed, and accrues mm is payable quarterly or upon cOllYersion (as to the prirlCipal almtmt then
being converted), 'nte debentures C01l\'Crt into shares ofour common stock at the option oftlte holder at $0.25 per share (whk:h cOlwersion pricc is sllbjectto adjll'itn~nt tulder
certain cirCtUllStances). The debcntures are secured by a Ikn in all ofthe asscts ofthe Company. Further, the tCIlll'> oftlte COll\'Crtible debentures provXle fur defimlt redemptklll
features similar to those described abovc. Since the Serks C warrants offered fh1J ratchet anti-dilution protection, any preViHl'ily issued and outstanding warrants with a C01l\'Crsioll
prk:e greater than $0.25 automatically had their conversion prk:e ratchet dOVl11 to $0.25 as subsequent ksuances were nnde with a lower conversion price, TllCse filalteill
RlStnUl'Cnts RlChtded tlte Series C ....arrants associlted with the January 2009, Febnlal)' 2009 and July 2009 finalteing. Each Series C Com/n.Jn Stock Purchase Warrant is
cxereisable, it whole or in part, at any time after isSlIallCC and befure tlte close ofbusiness on the date five (5) years from tIte initill exercise date,
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TIte after and sale oftlte 12% Senklr Sccured Convertible Debentures, Series C Common Stock Purchase Warrants and Series BD ConIDlOn Stock Purchase Warrants "'-as
aflected in reliance on the exemptbns for sales ofsecurities not involving a publk: offering,. as set furth in Rule 506 promulgated mIDer thc Securities Act and in Se<:tioIl4(2) ofthe
Securities Act, based on the following: (a) tlte nlYestors confinl'Cd to us that tltey were eithcr "accredited nlVcstors," as defined in Rule 501 ofRegulation D promulgated wldcr the
Securities Act or had such background, education mID experience in financial and bUSDtesS nnttcrs as to be able to evaluate tlte merits and risks ofall investu'Xlllt in the securities;
(b) there was no publi:: offcring or general sofuitatKlll with rcspect to the offering; (c) tlte lllYestors ·were provided with certain di>closure lluteril1s and nn other infunmtbn
requested with respect to our company; (d) tlte investors acknowledged that all securities being purchased were ''restrk:ted securities" fur purposes oftIte Securities Act, and
agreed to transfer such securities only in a transaction registered mIder tlte Securities Act or exempt from registration tuIder tlte Securities Act; mID (e) a legelId was placed on the
certificates representilg each such security stating that it ....-as restrk:ted and could only be transrerred ifsubscquently registered mIder tlte Securities Act or transrerred in a
transaction exempt from registration mIder the Securities Act.
Miltown Partners & Co., LLC ("MiltO\vll Parhters'), an NASD registered broker dealer, acted as tlte placement agcnt fur tlte Company in connection with Ihe JanuaI)' 30, July
20, alId Scptcmber 25, 2009 Convertible Debt Otrerings (''2009 COIwertible Debt Offi:rings"). We paid Mklto....ll Paroters cash connnissions equal to $198,000 and we issued
Series BD Common Stock Purchase Warrants to Midto....l1 Partncrs cntitling Midto....ll Partncrs to purchase 1,720,000 shares oftlte Company's conUllOn stock at an initial
exercise price of$0.50 per share and 440,000 shares ofthc Company's conlillOll stock at an nlitial exercise prke $0.25 per share. Since tlte Series BD ....-arrants offered fiill ratchct
anti-dilutbn protcction, any previousb' issued mId outstmIdilg warrants with a convcrskm prke greater than $0.25 autOimticaIly had their conversion pri:c ratchet down to $0.25 as
subsequent issuances were nnde with a conversion price of$0.25.

On September 22,2009 we vokfcd and reissued warrants nl cOimectkm with our financillgtransactions. 'l1te cancellationalId re5suance ofwarrants was treated as a Iwditkation
wlder ASC 470~50 Modifications mId E;\1inguislnnenls. although cxtnlguishment accOlmting was not necessary since tlte change in cash flow was <10%.

Cancelled and re-issued warrants were as fuIlows:

Original Warrants
C-I warrants

SD-I warrants

BD-2 warrants

BD-3 warrants
BD-4 warrants

Accounting fol' the Financing Annngements:

hIdcxcd
Shares

2,400,000

2,000,000

480,000

400,000

200,000

200,000

Strike
Pricc

$0.50

$0.50

$0.50

$0.50

$0.50

$0.50

ReiSsued
Warrants

BD-4 warrants
8D-5 warrants
BD-6 ....-arrant5
BD-7 warrants
BD-8 ....-arrant5
BD-9 warrants

Indexed
Shares

2,400,000

2,000,000

240,000
240,000

200,000
200,000

200,000

200,000

Strike
Price

$0.50

$0.50

$0.25
$0.50

$0.25
$0.50

$0.25

$0.50

We have evahl<lted tIte teom mId cOlIditions oftlte secured convertible debcntures lUlderthe guidance ofASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. We havc detennined that, wllilc the
anti-dilution protections precludc treatl1~nt oftlte embedded com'Crsioll option as cotl\'Cntiona~ the cOlwersbn option is excmpt fromclassiOCation as a derivative because it
otherwise achieves tllC COnditKlIlS fur equity classiOCatlon (iffrccstanding) promed nl ASC 815. We have firrtlter dctenllBlCd that the defhult redemption reatures described above
arc not exempt fur treatn~llt as derivatf\'C financnl jnstnlll~nts, because tlte), are not clearly and closeb' rentcd in tenns ofrisk to the host debt agreell'Xlnl. On tIte inception date of
the drrangen'Xlnts and as ofSeptember 30,2008 and 2009, we determilted that the £'lir vahle ofthese compOltlId derivatr.'Cs is de minus. Howe\''Cr, we are required to re-cy-aluate
this ''Rhte at each reporting datc mId record changes in its :tail'vaItte, ifany, in income. For purposes ofdetenninillg tIte miT vahle oftlte compOlUld derf\'Rti\'C, we have evah18ted
multiple, probability-weighted cash flow scenarios. 1lICse cash flow scenarios include, and will continue to include fuir''Rlue infunmtbn about our C0ll11mll stock. Accordingly,
f1uctuatbns in our cOImmn stock vahle "-111 signiOCantty infitlCnce the fi.lture outcOines from app~1llg this teclu1kJllC.
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Since, as discussed above, the cmbedded COIlYersKlil optbns ditno! requirc treatment as derivative financnl instnnnents, we arc required to ewtluate the feature as embodying a
beneficial cOIl\'ersion reature under ASC 470-20, Debt with COIl\'ersionalld Other OptbllS. A benemial conversion feature ("BCF') is prcsent when the mir value ofthe under01ng
comnxm share exceeds the effi:clin: conversion prke ofthe convcrsion option. 'l1le effecti...e conversion prke is calculated as the basis in tIle financing arrangement allocated to tile
hybrid convertible debt agreen'l:nt, diyifed by the lllU1mer ofshares into ",11kh tIle instnunent is indexed. Because the two hybrid debt contracts dated September 10, 2008 were
issued as cornpensatbn fur the Interlink Asset Group and as firrther discussed in Note 4 we concluded that lIley should be combined for accOlmtmg purposes, tile accOlmting
rcsulted in no bCllefK:ial cOIl\'ersion reature. As reflected in tIle taMes below, the financing'> issued in 2009 were fuund to have a SCF. nese amJllilts gives effect to the (Q tile
trading market pri:c on the contract dates and (0) the eficcti:ve cOIl\'ersion pri:e ofeach issuance after allocation ofproceeds to aU financial instnurents sold based upon their
relative mirvalues. Notwithstanding, BCF was Iilnited to the value ascribed to tile rennining hybrid contract (using thc relatr.'C mir value approach). Accordingly, the BCF allocated
to pail-nl capital from thc 2009 fmancings amounted to $872,320 for tile year ended Septenmer 30, 2009.

We have evaluated the tenus and conditions oftlle Serk:s C and BD warrants under tlle guidancc ofASC 480, D.i5tillguishillg Lilbilities fr011l Eguity ("ASC 480"). TIle warrants
embody a ftumall'Xllltal change·ir-control redemption privilege wherein the holder nuyredeem lhe warrants in the event ofa change in control ror a share ofassets or consileratbn
received in such a contingent event. TIlis redemptbn feature places tile v.llrTants within the scope ofASC 480-10, as put warrants and, accordingly, they are classifK:d in liabilities
mmmeasured at inception and on an ongoing basis at fuirvulue. Fair vahle ofthe \\1lrrants was measured using the Bhck·Scholes-Merton valuation teclUlkIlle aim in apPoing this
tecllllque we ' ....ere required to develop cerlainsLlbjectivc asslUnptiollS. We have valued the ltllderlying cOllnnon shares at $0.25 on both the inceptbn and the financial statemenl
date being representatr.'C ofour best estomtes ofOUT enterprise vahlC, applymgdiscounted cash flow teclUlkIucs cOllsi'ltellt with approacllCs outlined by tlle An~rkan Institute of
Certuted Publk: ACCOlUltants.

PrelpimllS on tIle secured convcrtible debentures arose from innt:il recognition at mir vahlC, whi:h is higlter than fhcc value. DiscOlUlts arose from initt:il recognition at mir vahle,
whk:h is lower than mce Yalile. Premimns and discOltllts are allXlrlilcd through credits and debits to interest expense over tlle tenn ofthe debt agreelrent. AnlJrtization ofdebt
(discOlUlt) premimns amClltllts to $(170,942) and $587 ror tile )'ears ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectivcly.

Direct financillg costs are allocated to t1le financial nlStnurents issued (hybrid debt and warrants) based upon their relatr.'C mir vahles. AmOllllts related to the hybril debt are
recorded as deferred finance costs aim mmrtilcd through charges to i11terest e;\"pense over the lennoftlle arrangement ILSing the eflectr.'e interest lrethod. Amclltllts rclated to tile
warrants were charged directO' to incOire becalLSe the warrants werc classulCd in liabilities, rather than eqnity, as described above. Direct financing costs are mmrtized through
charges to nlterest e~'Pense ovcr the tenn ofthe debt agreement.
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'nle fOllowing tables illustrate tlle initial alloeatkll1 to tile secured convertible debentufCs and warrants financing arrangen-ents:

Secured convertible debentures
Series Bwarrants (classimd as liabilities)
CompOlUld derivative
Total

Secured convertible debentures
Series C warrants (classimd as labilities)
Ser~s BD warrants (c'lassi6ed as labilities)
Additional paid·in capital (OCF)
Direct financing costs
Day~one deriwltire Joss
Compowld derivative
Total

Secured convertible debentures
Series C warrants (classilX:d as Ihbilities)
Series BD v.armllts (classifud as liabilities)
Additional paid-in capital (BeF)
Direct financilg costs
Day-one derivative Joss
Compound derivative
Total

September to, 2008 September 10, 2008
$1,000,000 $500,000
Financing Financing

$ 1,014,102 $ 507,000
370,400 185,200

$ 1,384,502 $ 692,200

January 30, 2009 Febnmy 6, 2009
$600,000 $500,000
Financing Financing

$ 205,440 $ 200,400
185,760 134,600
37,152 53,840

196,800 150,000
(93,001) (77,923)
(24,251) (17,667)

$ 507,900 $ 443,250

July 20, 2009 September 25, 2009
$500,000 $1,100,000
Financing Financing

$ 160,800 $ 388,760
159,200 335,720

67,144
170,000 355,520
(34,534) (117,380)

(9,216) (29,764)

$ 446,250 $ 1,000,000

On September 24,2009, we obtained an e>..1cnskm ofthe interest payll-ents due Jtme 30, 2009 and September 30, 2009 to June 30, 2010 and September 30,2010, respecli\'ely.
TIte change in cash fbw from this IlXldifk:ation V{as analyzed to detennine ifit "'as greater than 10% ....i'k:h would give rise to e>..1ilguislm-ent accounting. In each case, the change in
cash flows was less than 10% so e>..1iugtlislnnent accOlUlting was not appli'able.

Fair Value Considemtions

We adopted the provisions ofASC 820 Fair Value Measnrements and Disclosures ("ASC 820") with respect to our financal ilSlnllYCnts. As required by ofASC 820, assets and
labilities measured at fuir vahle are classified ill their entirety based on the Iowestlcvel ofinput that is significant to their mir value meaSllrel1-ellt Our derivati\x: financial inslnunents
which are required to be measured at lair vahle on a recurring basis lmder ofASC 815 as ofSeptember 30, 2009 and September 30,2008 are all n~asnred at mir vallie using
Leyel3 inputs. Le\x:13 inputs are IUlobservablc inputs that are supported by little or no nurket activity and that are significant to the fuir \'Uhre ofthe assets or liabilitks.

60



'Ille fOllowing represents a reconcmation ofthe changes in tair \'Rlue offinanchl instnunents n~asured at tair value on a recurring basis using significant unobseI'\'Rb1c inputs (Le\'eI3)
during the year ended Scptcmber 30, 2009:

Beginning balance: Derivative financial inslnllnmts
Total gains (losses)
Pur~hases, sales, issuances and scttlen~nts, nct
Ending balance
ClUTcn! portion

Long portion, derivatr.-e liabilitK':s

$

$

563,400
128,646
635,226

1,327,272
382,200

945,072

TIre \vamnts are \'Rlued using the BL1Ck-Scho1cs-Mcrton (BSM) \'Rluatbn methodology because thallllodel embodies all ofthe relevant assllmptbns that address tire features
lUlderlying these ilStntll~nts.

BSM inputs are as fullows:



Notc 8 - Stockholders' Dcficit:

Share~bascd payments (emplo)'ccs):

On ~eptember 10, 2008, we issued 6,000,000 shares ofcomrmn stock to our ncw mmagcll'cnt team in cOlUlcclion with the Interlink Asset Group acqu~ition (see Note 4). lltesc
shares are compensatoI)' in nature and are ndlyvested. We have vahled tlte shares at $0.25, consistent v.ith fuirwthte measurements used elsc\\1tere il our accmmting.

Officer

Anastasios Kyrnkkles, CEO
Nicholas Kyriaki:les
Kenneth Hosrekl, EVP
Leo Manzewitsch, eTO
Gllillcnno Rodriguez, CFa

Share-based pa;yment fOl'goods and sClyices to non-employees:

Shares

2,100,000
600,000

1,100,000
1,100,000
1,100,000

6,000,000

Expense

$ 525,000
150,000
275,000
275,000
275,000

$ 1,500,000

During tlte year cnded September 30,2008, wc isSlted 2,150,000 shares ofcoll'llIDn stock to llOll-employees fur goods and seni:es.

COllSulfanUPro\1der Shares EXllCllSe

FAMALOM,LLC $ 450,000 $ 112,500
Decembra Diumnd 360,000 90,000
JolmClarke 100,000 25,000
DeadahiS Consulting, Inc. 90,000 22,500
Ron RouJe 1,000,000 250,000
Iseat Aponte 150,000 37,500

2,150,000 $ 537,500

OnJuly 9, 2009, wc issued 1,000,000 shares ofour common stock to non-employees fur goods and sen>ices.

Consultant/Provider

Omni Reliant

'''amlllts to purchase common stock:

Shares

1,000,000 $

Ex-pense

250,000

On September 25, 2009, we issued Series C \",arrants to purchase 4,400,000 shares ofour comnxm stock ill cOlUlectkm \\ith financing tmmactions discussed in Note 7. TItese
warrants have a strike price of$0.50 and five years from issuance.

On July 20, 2009, we issued Ser~s C warrants to purchase 2,000,000 shares ofour common stock in connection w~h financing tramactbns d~cussed in Note 7. 'l1tese ",arranls
hem: a strike price of$0.50 and expire five years from issuance.

On Febmar)' 6, 2009, we issued Ser~s C ....arrants to purchase 2,000,000 shares ofour common stock in connection with financing transactions discussed in Note 7. 1l1ese
warrants have a strike price of$0.50 and expire five years from issuance.

On January 30, 2009, we isstled Series C warrants to purchase 2,400,000 shares ofour common stock in connection w~h iinaneilg transactbns discussed in Note 7. TIICse
warrants have a strike price of$0.50 and cxpire five years from ~suallcc,
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We also issued Series BD warrants to purchase 1,080,000 shares ofour cOlrumn stock in connections with financing transactions discussed in Note 7. lllese warrants have a
strike price of$0.50 and expire in five years from issuance.

We also i-l.slled Scries ED warrants to purchase 1,080,000 shares ofourconumn stock in connections l,'lith financing transactions discllssed in Note 7. lllese warrants have a
strike price of$0.25 and expire In five ycars from issuance.

On Septcmber 10, 2008, we f>sued Class B warrants to purchase 4,000,000 shares ofour COlllll'Xm stock in connectKlIl with financing transactions discussed in Note 7. 'nlese
warrants have a strike price of$0.50 and e:\'Pire fue years from issuance.

On September 10, 2008, we issued CL,ss B warrants to purchase 2,000,000 shares ofour conumn stock in cOl1llection with financing transactims discussed in Note 7. lllese
.....'arrants hal,'c a strike price of$0.50 and e:-''Pire five years from issuance.

On January 17, 2007, we issued Class A warrants to purchase 3,099,712 shares ofourcoillmon stock in connectKm with a sale ofcolllmon stock. These warrants have a strike
prk:~ of$0.25 and e:\'Pire five years from issuance.

October I, 2006
Issllcd
Excrcised
Ex-pired

September 30, 2007
Issued
Exerciscd
E:-.])ired

September 30, 2008
Issued
Exercised
E:-''Pired/cancelled

September 30, 2009

Indexed Shares Weighted Strike

3,262,912 $ 1.00

3,262,912 $ 1.00
6,000,000 $ 0.50

9,262,912 $ 0.67
12,960,000 $ 0.50

(163,200) 0.25

22,059,712 $ 0.57

TIle weightcd average rennining lite oftile aggregate warrants is 4.5 years.

Refer to Note 2 fur incon~ assocntcd with the classilkatbn ofwarrallts Iiaba~~s at year end September 30,2009.

Note 9 w Commitment and Contingencies:

Leases

We !case our principal offk:e space mider an arrangement that is an opemting lease. Rent and associlted occupancy e:-''PCllSes fur year ended September 30, 2009 81id 2008 was
$165,716 and $43,753, respectively.

Minin.llUl1IlOll-CancellabJe firture lease payments as ofSeptembcr 30, 2009, were as fOllows: 2010 - $98,725.

Em(Jloyment anllngements

We have entered into an clllployn~nt agreemcntwith our ChiefE.-...:ec\rtive Officer, Anastasbs Kyriakides and in cOllskleratbn ofItis services 10 us, we have agreed to pay him a
base salar)' 0[$150,000 phLS certain bonuses and awards ifthe Company achkwes certain profilabilily Ieyels and adopts certain incentive compensatbn plans. As ofScptcmber 30,
2009, none oftllese irK:enti\'e arrallgcn~nts and plans had been realized. TIle agreen~nt is efIecli\e through September 30,2013,

63



Note 10 - Related Pat1ies:

Effecth'e IXcember 30, 2007, we sold all ofthe assets assocbted with our ad''ertising business as a going cOllcem to Robert H. Blank, who was then our Presilent and Chd
Operating Oiliccr. TIte purchase pri:e for tlte assets was $185,000. Mr. Blank paid the pmchase pri:c by assuming a cOll\'ertible debenture issued by us to Mr. Robin C. Hoo,w
in the amolUlt of$185,000. TIte convertible debenture constituted substantulb' all ofour Ibbilities at tlte tinl:: oftlle aequisitklll. In additbll, Mr. Hoover and Mr. Blank tendered
208 and 200 shares ofcomm:lll stock, respectr.'eO', to the Company. TItese shares had been issued to Mr. Blank and Mr. Hoover as "fonnders" shares.

EfIeelr.'C September 10, 2008, we issued 1,000,000 shares to Apogee Financial Inwshrel1ts, Inc. in connection with certain consulting serYK:es rendered to us. Mr. Ri:hard
DianxlIld is presK:l.ent ofApogee FinanciaI1n\'Cstmmts, Inc. and served as a n~mber ofom board ofdircctors lUllilhis resignatbn on November 23, 2009. On the date ofthe
issuance, Mr. Diamond was not a member ofour board ofdirectors.

Mkltowu Partners & Co., LLC (''Mkltovm Partners''), an FINRA registered broker dealer, acted as the placement agent in connection with nulltiple Convertible Debt Otrerings. In
conijCction with these ofteritlg'i, we pakl Midtovm Partners a cash cOIllllllision equal to $198,000; issued Series BD Common Stock Purchase Warrant to Mklto\\ll Partners
entitling Mklto\\ll Partners to purchase 1,080,000 shares ofour COJrUllOU stock at an itlithl exercise prke of $0.50 per share; and issllcd Serbs DD ConulXlll Stock Purchase
Warrant to Midtovm Partners entitlitlg Mkltown Partners to Illlfchase 1,080,000 shares ofour connmn stock at an initul exercise price of$O.25 per share. Midto\\1l Partners E a
v·:holly-O\\lted subsK:l.ial)' ofApogee Financullnvestlrents, Inc. Mr. Richard Dum:H1d i<; president ofApogee Fillt.'ulCullm'estnx:nts, IllC. and served as a u);::mber ofour board of
directors lUltil his resignation on Nm'elnber 23, 2009.

A company owned or contro!lcd by a nnjor shareholder ofNetTalk.com, Inc., proviled serv-k:es to us, as fulbws:

In Jime 2009, we incurred advertising expense for tlte creatkm ofan i11rolll::cchI to be aired duritlg the deplo)1renl and lawlChing ofour 1X6000. TIle deplo)11tellt and Iawlching of
our TK6000 has a been a success and the infolll::rehI is presentb' nmning weekly on Ilx>st US markets. 'nlC advertising c:..:pcnse nlCllITCd, v,'as as follows:

Items AmotUlt

Cash pa)11tent $ 100,000
Share-bascd pa)1nent (1,000,000 connmn shares) 250,000
Total $ 350,000

ACCOlUlts payable to OJrUli RcIhnl $ 85,479

Ad''ertising costs ~ itrromerchl and I'n:db costs $ 85,479

At September 30,2009, Due to oilicers amOlUlted to $56,300, the aIlXl\Ult is revolving and will be Iiqu.idated within OIte year.

Notc 11 - Discontinucd Operations:

On September 10, 2008, at the time we acquired the Interlink Asset Group, our managclltellt and Board ofDirectors committed to the discontinuance and disposal ofour
advertisitlg business. Wc disposed ofthis asset to be able 10 concentrate our eflbrts exchlSh'CO' on tlte deployu'X:1I1 oftlte 1K6000 product ofrerilg. We cOllCluded that tlte
advertisitlg business constituted a component ofour bllSnteSS and have presented the Wlit in the accompanying finallCial statenl::l1ts on the basis Ihat (a) the operations and cash flows
ofthe compOItellt have been eliminated from Ollf ongoing opemtions a resuh ofthc disposal transaction and (b) we have no significant continuing nwol"ement in tlte operations ofthe
COn~)Oltent after the disposal trausactbn. Durilg f:!Scal year ended September 30, 2008, we sold tlte advertising business resuhing in a ganl on sale of$168,083.

TIlCre are no assets or liabilities rennnung at September 30, 2009.

llte caption discOlltillllcd operations all om statetl1Cnts ofoperatK.lIls reflects the follow.ing:

September 30,
2009 2008

Tueon);:: ftomdiscontinued business
Gail; on sale ofequipu'X:nt

Total
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$

$

$

$

18,045
168,083
186,128



Note 12 - Income taxes:

Our incOim tax provision (benefit) fur the year ended September 30 consisted oftile fullowing:

September 30,
2009 2008

Current provision
Deferred provision
Changes in valuatimallowance

Our effuctin: tax rote dilfers froll1slatutory tax rates, as fullo"""5:

Federal statutory rate
State rate, net ofiederal benefit
Derivative income
Chapge in valuatbn allowance
Efrective tax rate

$

$

$

$

September 30,
2009 2008

34.0%
3.6%
4.3%

(41.9%)

0.0%

(8,033)

(8,033)

34.0%
3.6%

-%
(37.6%)

0.0%

Deterred tax assets and (Iiabilitcs) reJIccts the net tax eftCct oftemporarydiffurences beMeen the carryingam:nult ofassets and fubilit£s for financnl reporting purposes and
anxHUlts used fur income tax purposes. Significant components ofour dererred tax assets are as fullow5, as ofSeptember 30, 2009 and 2008:

2009
September 30,

2008

Property and fixed assets
Reserves and accmals
Net..opemting loss carry furwards

Valuation allo\'i1ulCe

Net dererred taxes, after valuation allo\\1\l1Ce

Our valuation allowance increased $1,076,640 and $211,194 during the year ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

$

s

(45,284) $
392

1,332,725

1,287,834
(1,287,834)

$

(1,254)

212,448

211,194
(211,194)

Based on our prior eamings and sufficiency ofirlCon~ to be utilized in carry back years and firture taxable income, it is lOOre likc~' than not that these net dererred tax assets wilinot
be utilized. TIterefure, a valuation allo"'1ulCe has been set up to reduce dererred tax assets to zero. As ofSeptember 30,2009, we have net operating loss carry fuf\\1\rd alllOlUlting
to $3,544,482 that are available, subject to limifatkms, to offiet filturc taxable inco~ through 2024. All prior tax years, subject to limitations, rennin subject to examination by
Fed~ml and state taxing authorities.
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Note 13 M Subsequent Events:

Effuctive November 15, 2009, our Board ofdirectors approved our 2010 Stock OptDn Plan. Our plan 1) a Iong- tennretention program that i> intended to attract, retain and
provide incentives fur our talented employees, officers and directors and to align shareholders and employee interests. We will grant stock options from our 2010 Stock Option
Plan during our fucal year ending on September 30, 2010.

On November 25, 2009 we filed Fonn 8 K to report the resignatDIl ofMr. RK:hard Dkumnd as our director.

On December 1,2009 we filed Fonn 8 K to report the approval and implerrentatDll ofour Code ofEthK:s.
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